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This meeting is being broadcast live by Access Communications for airing
on Access Channel 7. By remaining in the room, you are giving your
permission to be televised.

Revised Agenda
City Council
Monday, May 26, 2014

Open With Prayer
Recognition
Carol Lafayette-Boyd
Confirmation of Agenda
Minutes of the meeting held on May 5, 2014
Public Notice Bylaws and Related Reports

DE14-47 Jacqueline Tisher — Hope’s Home: Regina Planning Commission:
Application for Contract Zoning (13-CZ-8) Proposed Daycare Centre and
Respite Care Facility James Hill Road and Tutor Way, Harbour Landing
Phase 10 Stage 1

CR14-54 Regina Planning Commission: Application for Contract Zoning (13-CZ-8)
- Proposed Daycare Centre and Respite Care Facility - James Hill Road and
Tutor Way, Harbour Landing Phase 10 Stage 1

Recommendation

1. That the application to amend Regina Zoning Bylaw No. 9250 to rezone
James Hill Road, being Lot FF in Block 72, Plan 1/4 SW 11-17-20
W2M from UH — Urban Holding to C — Contract be APPROVED and
that the contract zone agreement between the City of Regina and the
applicant/owner of the subject properties be executed.

2. That further to recommendation 1, the proposed contract zone
agreement shall include the following terms:

a. The development shall conform to the attached plans labelled
Hope’s Home Harbour Landing, prepared by P3A, and dated
December 20, 2013, in Appendix A-3.1-2;

b. Space allocated for respite care facility be developed as shown on
the attached site plan;
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c. [Execution of a shared access agreement between the owner of the
subject property and the adjacent property owner for the shared
driveway along James Hill Road;

d. Execution of an shared access/encroachment agreement between the
owner of the subject property and the adjacent property owner for
the future shared breezeway;

e. Landscaping of the lot shall comply with the requirements of
Chapter 15 of the Zoning Bylaw No. 9250

f. Any zoning related detail not specifically addressed in the contract
zone agreement shall be subject to applicable provisions of the
Zoning Bylaw; and

g. The agreement shall be registered in the City’s interest at the
applicant’s cost pursuant to Section 69 of The Planning and
Development Act, 2007.

3. That the drop-off area on Tutor Way be at least 15 metres to the west of
the intersection.

4. That the City Solicitor be directed to prepare the necessary bylaws to
authorize the respective Zoning Bylaw amendment.

CR14-55 Regina Planning Commission: Application for Zoning Bylaw Amendment
(13-Z-30/13-CP-11) - Harbour Landing Phase 10 Stage 1 Appendix A-1

Recommendation
1. That the application to amend the Harbour Landing Concept Plan, as
depicted on the attached Appendix A-2.1-2.4, be APPROVED.

2. That the following lands in Phase 10 -1 of Harbour Landing be rezoned
from UH - Urban Holding, as shown on the attached plan of proposed
subdivision (See Appendix A-3), be APPROVED:

a. Rezone from UH to DCD 12 — Suburban Narrow Lot

Residential:

i.  Lots 1-7 in Block 72; and
ii.  All of Blocks 70, 73, 74, and 75.

b. Rezone from UH to R5 — Residential Medium Density:
i.  Lots 8-54 of Block 72; and
ii.  All of Block 71

c. Rezone from UH to R6 — Residential Multiple Housing:
1.  Parcel GG in Block 72; and
ii.  Parcel AA

3. That the City Solicitor be directed to prepare the necessary bylaw to
authorize the respective Zoning Bylaw amendment.
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CR14-56

2014-37

2014-39

2014-40

Regina Planning Commission: Application for Contract Zoning (13-CZ-
06) Proposed Additional Dwelling Unit in Apartment Building, 1936
Cameron Street

Recommendation

That the application to amend the contract zone approved under Regina
Zoning Bylaw No. 9250 for 1936 Cameron Street, being Lot 49, Block 336,
Plan No 10217439 be APPROVED and the contract zone be amended as
follows:

a. Replace section 5.(c) of the agreement with the following: “A
maximum of nine units shall be developed in the apartment
building and shall be consistent with the attached plans and
elevations, prepared by Gilchuck Design and Drafting and dated
October 3, 2012 and November 28, 2012.

The Regina Zoning Amendment Bylaw, 2014 (No. 9)
The Regina Zoning Amendment Bylaw, 2014 (No. 10)

The Regina Zoning Amendment Bylaw, 2014 (No. 11)

Delegations, Bylaws and Related Reports

DE14-48

CR14-57

DE14-49

CR14-58

Chad Novak: Finance and Administration Committee: Boundary
Alteration — 2014 Property Tax Exemptions

Finance and Administration Committee: Boundary Alteration — 2014
Property Tax Exemptions

Recommendation
1. That City Council approves the property tax exemptions outlined in
this report.

2. That the City Solicitor be instructed to bring forward the necessary
bylaw to provide for the property tax exemptions listed in Appendix
A, Appendix B and Appendix C.

Chad Novak: Finance and Administration Committee: 2013 Results —
General Operating Fund

Finance and Administration Committee: 2013 Results — General Operating
Fund

Recommendation
That this report be approved by City Council as provided.
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DE14-50

CR14-59

2014-41

Judith Veresuk — Regina Downtown BID: Finance and Administration
Committee: Funding Request — Downtown Visual Identity Guidelines

Finance and Administration Committee: Funding Request — Downtown
Visual Identity Guidelines

Recommendation
1. That $34,000 be transferred from the Downtown Deferred Revenue
Account and paid to Regina Downtown Business Improvement
District to support the Downtown Visual Identity Guidelines
Project, as recommended in this report.

2. That the City of Regina enter into an agreement with the Regina
Downtown Business Improvement District to govern the
management of the Downtown Visual Identity Guidelines project
and the future use and ownership of the Project deliverables, to be
negotiated at the discretion of the Executive Director of Community
Planning and Development.

The Properties Exempt From Taxation as Result of the 2013 Municipal
Boundary Alteration Bylaw

Committee Reports

CR14-60

CR14-64

Executive Committee
Utilization of Reserve Funding to Purchase Service Vehicle for Radio Shop

Recommendation

That the Chief of Police and City Manager be authorized to purchase and
retro-fit a new service vehicle for the radio shop operation at a cost of
approximately $30,000 funded from the Regina Police Service Radio
Equipment Reserve.

Organizational Appointments for 2014 - School Board/City Council
Liaison Committee

Recommendation

1. That the following nominees of the organizational representatives for
the School Board/City Council Liaison Committee be appointed for
terms of office effective upon Council approval and expiring December
31,2014:

e Ms. Julie MacRae
e Ms. Debra Burnett
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e Ms. Katherine Gagne
e Mr. Dale West

2. That the members appointed continue to hold office for the term
indicated or until their successors are appointed.

Finance and Administration Committee
CR14-61 2013 Annual Report

Recommendation
1. That the 2013 Annual Report be approved by City Council.

2. That the Director of Finance be authorized to finalize the Annual
Report, including the Financial Statements, with the auditor.

Public Works Committee
CR14-62 Emergency Flood Damage Reduction Funding Agreement

Recommendation
1. City Council authorize the Acting Executive Director of City
Operations or his or her designate to negotiate and approve the
Emergency Flood Damage Reduction Funding Program Agreement
(the “EFDRP Agreement”) between the City of Regina and the
Government of Saskatchewan as represented by the Saskatchewan
Watershed Authority; and

2. The City Clerk be authorized to execute the EFDRP Agreement on
behalf of the City.

Regina Planning Commission

CR14-63 Application for Discretionary Use (14-DU-04) Proposed House-Form
Commercial Office, 2113 Smith Street

Recommendation

That the discretionary use application for a proposed House-Form
Commercial Office located at 2113 Smith Street, being Lot 22, Block 406,
Plan No. 98RA28309, Centre Square neighbourhood be APPROVED, and
that a Development Permit be issued subject to the following conditions:

a) The development shall be consistent with the plans attached to this
report as Appendix A-3.1 to A-3.5 inclusive, prepared by KRN
Design Ltd. and dated February 11, 2014; and
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b) The development shall comply with all applicable standards and
regulations in Regina Zoning Bylaw No. 9250

Informational Reports

IR14-6 Regina Revitalization Stadium Project — Award of Request for Proposals
#2076

Recommendation
That this report be received and filed.

IR14-7 Regina and Region Water and Wastewater Study Funding

Recommendation
That this report be received and filed.

Adjournment



AT REGINA, SASKATCHEWAN, MONDAY, MAY 5, 2014
AT A MEETING OF CITY COUNCIL

AT 5:30 PM

Present: Mayor Michael Fougere, in the Chair
Councillor Sharron Bryce
Councillor Bryon Burnett
Councillor Jerry Flegel
Councillor Shawn Fraser
Councillor Bob Hawkins
Councillor Terry Hincks
Councillor Wade Murray
Councillor Mike O’Donnell
Councillor Barbara Young

Regrets: Councillor John Findura

Also in Chief Legislative Officer & City Clerk, Jim Nicol
Attendance: A/Deputy City Clerk, Erna Hall
City Manager & CAO, Glen Davies
Executive Director, Legal & Risk, Byron Werry
Executive Director, Planning, Jason Carlston
A/Executive Director, City Operations, Neil Vandendort
A/CFO, Pat Gartner
Director, Planning, Diana Hawryluk
Manager, Infrastructure Planning, Geoff Brown

The meeting opened with a prayer.

CONFIRMATION OF AGENDA

Councillor Sharron Bryce moved, seconded by Councillor Bob Hawkins, AND IT
WAS RESOLVED, that the agenda for this meeting be approved, as submitted, and
that the delegations listed on the agenda be heard when called forward by the Mayor.

ADOPTION OF MINUTES

Councillor Wade Murray, seconded by Councillor Terry Hincks, AND IT WAS
RESOLVED, that the minutes for the meeting held on April 14, 2014 be adopted, as
circulated.
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PUBLIC NOTICES., BYLAWS AND RELATED REPORTS

CR14-51 Regina Planning Commission: Application for Lane Closure (13-CL-07) -
235 7th Avenue, Eastview

Recommendation

1. That the application for the closure and sale of the lane as shown on the
attached plan of proposed subdivision prepared by P. Shrivastava
S.L.S., dated December 13, 2012 and legally described as follows, be
APPROVED:

North/south lane Plan F1625 located between Parcel 28 A Plan F1625
and Parcel C Plan 102112614 between 7™ Avenue and the Canadian
Pacific Railway;

2. That the City Solicitor be directed to prepare the necessary bylaw.
Councillor Mike O’Donnell moved, seconded by Councillor Terry Hincks, AND IT
WAS RESOLVED, that the recommendations of the Regina Planning Commission

contained in the report be concurred in.

CR14-52 Regina Planning Commission: Application for Zoning Bylaw Amendment
(14-Z-04) Hawkstone Phase 3, Stage 2A

Recommendation
1. That the application to rezone:

a) Parcel MR3 (Municipal Reserve) from UH-Urban Holding to
PS-Public Service

b) Proposed Parcels Ul and U2 from UH-Urban Holding to PS-
Public Service

¢) Proposed Parcel MU1 from DCD12-Suburban Narrow Lot
Residential to PS-Public Service.

be APPROVED.

2. That the City Solicitor be directed to prepare the necessary bylaw to
authorize the respective Zoning Bylaw amendment.

3. That pursuant to Section 18D.1.1 of the Zoning Bylaw, City Council
waive the requirement to post a public notification sign on the subject
lands, due to their remote location and the current unavailability of
direct public access.

Councillor Mike O’Donnell moved, seconded by Councillor Terry Hincks, AND IT
WAS RESOLVED, that the recommendations of the Regina Planning Commission
contained in the report be concurred in.
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2014-7 A Bylaw to Provide for the Closure and sale of a Portion of the lane at 235
7th Avenue
2014-33 The Regina Zoning Amendment Bylaw, 2014 (No. 8)

Councillor Barbara Young moved, seconded by Councillor Wade Murray, AND IT
WAS RESOLVED, that Bylaws No. 2014-7 and 2014-33 be introduced and read a first
time. Bylaws were read a first time.

The Clerk called for anyone present who wished to address City Council respecting
Bylaws No. 2014-7 and 2014-33 to indicate their desire.

No one indicated a desire to address Council.

Councillor Barbara Young moved, seconded by Councillor Jerry Flegel, AND IT
WAS RESOLVED, that Bylaws No. 2014-7 and 2014-33 be read a second time.

Councillor Barbara Young moved, seconded by Councillor Mike O’Donnell that City
Council hereby consent to Bylaws No. 2014-7 and 2014-33 going to third reading at
this meeting.

The motion was put and declared CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.
Councillor Barbara Young moved, seconded by Councillor Shawn Fraser, AND IT
WAS RESOLVED, that Bylaws No. 2014-7 and 2014-33 be read a third time. Bylaws

were read a third time.

DELEGATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS AND RELATED REPORTS

DE14-45 Greg Gianoli and Clayton Crawford: Regina Planning Commission:
Application for Discretionary Use (13-DU-21) Proposed Hazardous
Materials (Oil) Storage Facility, 439 9th Avenue North

Pursuant to due notice the delegation was present.

The Mayor invited the delegation to come forward and be heard. Greg Gianoli and
Clayton Crawford answered a number of questions.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 16(11)(c) of City Council's Procedure Bylaw
9004, this brief was tabled until after consideration of CR14-53, a report from the
Regina Planning Commission respecting the same subject.
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DE14-46 Jim Elliott: Regina Planning Commission: Application for Discretionary
Use (13-DU-21) Proposed Hazardous Materials (Oil) Storage Facility, 439
9th Avenue North

Pursuant to due notice the delegation was present.

The Mayor invited the delegation to come forward and be heard. Jim Elliott
answered a number of questions.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 16(11)(c) of City Council's Procedure Bylaw
9004, this brief was tabled until after consideration of CR14-53, a report from the
Regina Planning Commission respecting the same subject.

CP14-7 Enbridge Communications - Regina Planning Commission: Application
for Discretionary Use (13-DU-21) Proposed Hazardous Materials (Oil)
Storage Facility, 439 9th Avenue North

Councillor Mike O’Donnell moved, seconded by Councillor Wade Murray, AND IT
WAS RESOLVED, that this Communication be received and filed.

CR14-53 Regina Planning Commission: Application for Discretionary Use (13-DU-
21) Proposed Hazardous Materials (Oil) Storage Facility, 439 9th Avenue
North

Recommendation

That the discretionary use application for a proposed Hazardous Materials
Storage Facility located at 439 9th Avenue North, being Parcels D and E
Plan No FA4603; Parcel M Plan No. 66R35050, UH Subdivision be
APPROVED, and that a Development Permit be issued subject to the
following conditions:

a) The development shall be consistent with the plans attached to this
report as Appendix A-3.2, prepared by Enbridge Pipelines and
dated January 28, 2014;

b) In lieu of a building permit not being required for non-building
related elements of the development, the applicant shall submit a
detailed site plan for approval by the Director of Construction and
Compliance or designate;

¢) The development shall comply with all applicable standards and
regulations in Regina Zoning Bylaw No. 9250, including but not
limited to the Performance Regulations for Low Sensitivity Aquifer
Protection Overlay Zone in Table 10.3;

d) Prior to issuance of the site plan approval (as per condition 1b), the
applicant shall:

1. Submit a pre-use baseline soil chemical characterization
survey for petroleum products, trace metals, sulphates,
salinity and provide a copy to the City;

ii. Submit for review the Enbridge Safety Manual and Policies
component covering storage and handling requirements for
the typical construction chemicals;
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1ii. The applicant shall submit, to the satisfaction of the Director
of Construction and Compliance, a plan to prevent trenches
acting as conduits for spread of contamination through the
underground piping network;

iv. Provide documentation from the Saskatchewan Ministry of
Environment and/or Federal regulatory authority for
approval to construct, alter, expand, operate, and
decommission a hazardous substance and/ or waste
dangerous goods facility.

e) The applicant shall submit a quantitative assessment of the impact of
the facilities from a major incident by qualified professional for the
City’s information as well as for incorporation into an updated
Emergency response plan. This information shall be submitted prior
to the commencement of operations of the new facility, and must be
to the satisfaction of the Manager of Emergency Management and
Business Control.

Councillor Mike O’Donnell moved, seconded by Councillor Barbara Young, that the
recommendations of the Regina Planning Commission contained in the report be
concurred in.

Councillor Mike O’Donnell moved, in amendment, seconded by Councillor Jerry
Flegel, that the Discretionary Use Permit reflect the change in size of the tank from a
250,000 barrel tank to a 190,000 barrel tank.

The amendment was put and declared CARRIED.

The main motion, as amended, was put and declared CARRIED.

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Executive Committee

CR14-54 Regina Planning Commission - Citizen Appointments

Recommendation

1. That the following citizens be appointed to the Regina Planning
Commission for terms of office effective immediately, and expiring as
noted for each member:

David Edwards — term expires December 31, 2014
Phil Selenski — term expires December 31, 2015
Laureen Snook — term expires December 31, 2015.

2. That the members appointed to the Regina Planning Commission
continue to hold office for the term indicated for each vacancy or until
their successors are appointed.



-6- Monday, May 5, 2014

Councillor Bob Hawkins moved, seconded by Councillor Mike O’Donnell, AND IT
WAS RESOLVED, that the recommendations of the Executive Committee contained
in the report be concurred in.

ADJOURNMENT

Councillor Wade Murray moved, seconded by Councillor Sharron Bryce, AND IT
WAS RESOLVED, that City Council adjourn.

Council Adjourned at 6:25 p.m.

Mayor City Clerk
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There’s no place like Hope...

May 20, 2014

Office of the City Clerk,

15th Floor, City Hall

Regina, SK

Re: Presentation at May 26 City Council meeting — Contract Zoning Hope’s Home

Dear City Clerk,

Hope’s Home is requesting to present at the May 26, 2014 City Council meeting regarding
Contract zoning approval for our new development in Harbour Landing.

Following are presentation notes for Hope’s Home. | will also bring brochures to distribute to City
Councillors that describe our programs and services. | will present on behalf of the Board of
Directors. Members of our board will be available to assist in any questions that may be asked.

Thank you,

Jacqueline Tisher
Executive Director

Hope’s Home

waw.hopeshome.org EH()/W'sHamc U@hopes_home pinterest.com/hopeshomeregina mvimeo.com/hopeshome

Hope’s Home Inc. 2300 Dewdney Ave Regina, SK S4R 1H5 BN 864135470RR0001
t: 306.522.HOPE(4673) f: 306.205.HOME (4663) info@hopeshome.org
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Presentation Notes — May 26 Regina City Council meeting:

Hope’s Home families, board of directors and staff are very excited about our new development
in Harbour Landing. Since 2005 Hope’s Home has provided daycare and respite for children with
complex medical needs, supporting their families in the care of their special children. In 2013 we
expanded daycare services to Prince Albert and also opened our first of two supportive living
homes in Regina. Together we have celebrated many successes and have journeyed together
through times of loss. Harbour Landing development is a point in our city’s history that will prove

to be another celebrated success.

With zoning approval, Hope’'s Home will be able to build a 90 space daycare center with a 10 bed
respite/supportive living home for children and open our first group home for young adults with
complex medical needs. With 6 locations in Regina, this development will not only help
consolidate some of our services but also allow us to expand our daycare spaces and increase

our recreational programming for school age children.

Harbour Landing is a growing community with many families requiring daycare. As an early
learning complex care center, Hope’s Home offers daycare for children with complex medical

needs and their siblings but we also care for typical children within the community.

With anticipated zoning approval today, we can move one step closer in the excitement of
building Hope in Regina. On behalf of the Hope’s Home family, we want to thank Dundee (now
Dream), Stantec, P3A, A to B Development and the City of Regina for their incredible, ongoing
support in this project. Together we are making dreams come true, celebrating that “there is no

place like Hope”.

< www.hopeshome.org Bli(}/)u'sllomu leJ@hopesﬁhome .ipinterest.com/hopeshomeregina ﬁvimeo.com/hopeshome

Hope’s Home Inc. 2300 Dewdney Ave Regina, SK S4R 1H5 BN 864135470RR0001
t: 306.522.HOPE(4673) f: 306.205.HOME (4663) info@hopeshome.org



CR14-54

May 26, 2014

To:

Re:

His Worship the Mayor
and Members of City Council

Application for Contract Zoning (13-CZ-8)
Proposed Daycare Centre and Respite Care Facility
James Hill Road and Tutor Way, Harbour Landing Phase 10 Stage 1

RECOMMENDATION OF THE REGINA PLANNING COMMISSION - APRIL 23, 2014

1. That the application to amend Regina Zoning Bylaw No. 9250 to rezone James Hill Road,
being Lot FF in Block 72, Plan 1/4 SW 11-17-20 W2M from UH — Urban Holding to C —
Contract be APPROVED and that the contract zone agreement between the City of Regina
and the applicant/owner of the subject properties be executed.

2. That further to recommendation 1, the proposed contract zone agreement shall include the
following terms:

a.

b.

The development shall conform to the attached plans labelled Hope’s Home Harbour
Landing, prepared by P3A, and dated December 20, 2013, in Appendix A-3.1-2;

Space allocated for respite care facility be developed as shown on the attached site plan;
Execution of a shared access agreement between the owner of the subject property and
the adjacent property owner for the shared driveway along James Hill Road;

Execution of an shared access/encroachment agreement between the owner of the subject
property and the adjacent property owner for the future shared breezeway;

Landscaping of the lot shall comply with the requirements of Chapter 15 of the Zoning
Bylaw No. 9250,

Any zoning related detail not specifically addressed in the contract zone agreement shall
be subject to applicable provisions of the Zoning Bylaw; and

The agreement shall be registered in the City’s interest at the applicant’s cost pursuant to
Section 69 of The Planning and Development Act, 2007.

3. That the drop-off area on Tutor Way be at least 15 metres to the west of the intersection.

4. That the City Solicitor be directed to prepare the necessary bylaws to authorize the respective
Zoning Bylaw amendment.

REGINA PLANNING COMMISSION — APRIL 23, 2014

The following addressed the Commission:

Ada Chan Russell, City Planner, made a PowerPoint presentation, a copy of which is on
file in the City Clerk’s Office;

John Aston, representing A to B Development Consultants and Allison Wells,
representing Hope’s Home and;

Evan Hunchak, representing Dream Development.
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The Commission adopted a resolution to concur in the recommendation contained in the report,
after adding the following recommendation:

e That the drop-off area on Tutor Way be at least 15 metres to the west of the intersection.
Recommendation #4 does not require City Council approval.
Councillors: Jerry Flegel, Mike O’Donnell and Barbara Young; Commissioners: David

Edwards, Ron Okumura, Daryl Posehn, Phil Selenski, Laureen Snook and Sherry Wolf were
present during consideration of this report by the Regina Planning Commission.

The Regina Planning Commission, at its meeting held on April 23, 20214, considered the
following report from the Administration:

RECOMMENDATION

1. That the application to amend Regina Zoning Bylaw No. 9250 to rezone James Hill Road,
being Lot FF in Block 72, Plan 1/4 SW 11-17-20 W2M from UH — Urban Holding to C —
Contract be APPROVED and that the contract zone agreement between the City of
Regina and the applicant/owner of the subject properties be executed.

2. That further to recommendation 1, the proposed contract zone agreement shall include
the following terms:

a. The development shall conform to the attached plans labelled Hope’s Home
Harbour Landing, prepared by P3A, and dated December 20, 2013, in Appendix
A-3.1-2;

b. Space allocated for respite care facility be developed as shown on the attached
site plan;

c. Execution of a shared access agreement between the owner of the subject property
and the adjacent property owner for the shared driveway along James Hill Road;

d. Execution of an shared access/encroachment agreement between the owner of the
subject property and the adjacent property owner for the future shared breezeway;

e. Landscaping of the lot shall comply with the requirements of Chapter 15 of the
Zoning Bylaw No. 9250

f.  Any zoning related detail not specifically addressed in the contract zone
agreement shall be subject to applicable provisions of the Zoning Bylaw; and

g. The agreement shall be registered in the City’s interest at the applicant’s cost
pursuant to Section 69 of The Planning and Development Act, 2007.

3. That the City Solicitor be directed to prepare the necessary bylaws to authorize the
respective Zoning Bylaw amendment.

4. That this report be forwarded to the May 26, 2014 City Council meeting, which will
allow sufficient time for advertising of the required public notices for the respective
bylaws.



CONCLUSION

The applicant proposes to develop a vacant site into a multipurpose facility that accommodates a
daycare centre, a respite care facility, a supportive living home, and accessory offices.

The proposal is consistent with the polices contained in Regina Development Plan Bylaw No.
7877 (Official Community Plan).

BACKGROUND

An application has been received for rezoning and concept plan amendment for the subject
property located at the SW corner of James Hill Road and Tutor Way.

This application is being considered pursuant to Regina Zoning Bylaw No. 9250, Regina
Development Plan Bylaw No. 7877 (Official Community Plan), and The Planning and
Development Act, 2007.

DISCUSSION

Land use and zoning details are summarized as follows:

Existing and

Required Proposed
Zoning UH — Urban Holding C- Contract
Land Use Daycare Centre, Respite Care

Vacant Facility, Supportive Living
Home, Accessory Office

Nurnber of Parking Stalls 21 Stalls and 9 drop-off 50 stalls and 9 drop-off spaces
Required spaces
Minimum Lot Area (m®) 500 m” 7541 m”
Minimum Lot Frontage (m) 15m 72 m
Maximum Height (m) 20 m 7m
Building Area Not Applicable 3120.62 m”
Maximum Coverage % 50% 29%

The applicant (Hope’s Home) proposes to develop the subject property to consolidate its
services, which are currently offered at different locations in the city, at one site. There are two
buildings planned for the site. The main building is proposed to accommodate a daycare for 90
children, as well as a respite care facility for ten children with high medical needs. The main
building will also have offices and a library on the second floor. A secondary building is
proposed to be located west of the main building on the same site, which will accommodate a
supportive living home for four young adults who will be graduates of the children’s programs.

The applicant proposes to connect the main building to another building sited on the lot directly
south of the subject property via a breezeway across the property line. The adjacent building will
be another care facility whose users will share some amenities with Hope’s Home, such as the
lounge and café on the south side of the main building. The users of both buildings will also
share the proposed Paratransit lay-by on the east side of the property along James Hill Road. A
development application for the adjacent site has not yet been received.
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The applicant provides five drop-off stalls on site along the west entrance of the daycare. Four
more on-street stalls will be requested along Tutor Way to accommodate vans and larger vehicles
needed to transport children, which will not impact the circulation of the interior parking lot. The
number of parking stalls exceeds the minimum requirement by 29 to accommodate the high ratio
of staff and children at Hope’s Home. In this way, on-street parking will be minimized around
the property.

The subject property is currently zoned UH — Urban Holding. An application for Harbour
Landing Phase 10 Stage 1 has been received and is being considered concurrently for rezoning,
concept plan amendment and subdivision.

Conventional zoning does not allow the proposed breezeway connection from the main building
on the site to a future building on the property to the south. The breezeway would be an
encroachment of the side yard setback up to the south property line. Other than the extension of a
breezeway to the south property line, the development conforms to the conventional zoning
standards of Regina Zoning Bylaw No. 9250.

The proposed development is consistent with the purpose and intent of Contract Zoning with
respect to accommodating unique development opportunities. Currently, a respite care facility is
a use that is not contemplated in the Regina Zoning Bylaw No. 9250. To accommodate this use
and the proposed future breezeway, a contract zone is necessary. The contract zone will also
allow for the development of and a daycare centre.

Surrounding land uses include proposed medium density residential lands to the west and
proposed high density residential lots to the north within the Harbour Landing Phase 10
subdivision. The lot directly to the south will be a proposed care facility.

RECOMMENDATION IMPLICATIONS

Financial Implications

None with respect to this report.

Environmental Implications

None with respect to this report.

Policy/Strategic Implications

The proposal is consistent with the policies contained within Part A: Policy Plan of Regina
Development Plan, Bylaw No. 7877 (Official Community Plan) with respect to:

e 7.0— Housing Objectives
o Facilitating choice and integration of housing for special needs groups in the
community
o Promoting the location of daycare centres near or within larger social housing and
non-profit housing projects to assist single parent households and working couple
households of low to moderate income.
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o Encouraging developers to provide a greater mix of housing to accommodate
households of different incomes, types, stages of life and capabilities within each
new neighbourhood
o Ensuring that physically disabled persons are afforded a wide range of choice in
housing in terms of the type, location, affordability and design requirements to
achieve independent living.

The proposed development will offer daycare services and housing for children and young
people who require medical care. This housing option is a valuable addition to the Harbour
Landing subdivision. The supportive living facility provides a suitable living arrangement to help
residents achieve independent living.

The proposal is also consistent with the policies contained in Part B — Southwest Sector Plan, of
the OCP with respect to:

e 3.4 Facilitate Housing Choice
o Facilitating the development and integration of a range of housing types and
prices
e 7.1 Community Services
o Encouraging institutional uses to locate near or adjacent to arterial and/or
collector roads and near transit routes.

The respite care and supportive living facilities are located along collector roads, allowing easier
access to the site for residents, program users, and staff.

The development is also aligned with the Regina Comprehensive Housing Strategy to address
the need for housing diversity and housing for individuals with specific needs.

Transit service is not currently provided to this portion of the concept plan area. However, the
future transit route is identified on the concept plan and transit service will be provided at some

point in the future along James Hill Road.

Other Implications

The proposed development is consistent with the following policies contained in Design Regina,
which was approved by City Council in December 2013 and will replace the Regina
Development Plan as the city’s Official Community Plan once approved by the Province
including:

¢ providing a diversity of housing types to support resident from a wide range of
economic levels, backgrounds and stages of life, including those with specific needs;

e encouraging developers to provide a greater mix of housing to accommodate
households of different incomes, types, stages of life, and abilities in all
neighbourhoods;

e working with stakeholders to create and preserve barrier-free housing and housing for
persons with specific needs;

® permitting group care facilities in residential and mixed-use neighbourhoods; and
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® encouraging the provincial government and the community to establish locally based
attainable childcare facilities, which are essential to enabling parents to secure access
to employment.

Accessibility Implications

Most of the children who use the facilities on site require the use of a wheelchair. As such, both
buildings on the property are barrier-free.

The proposed development provides four parking stalls for persons with disabilities which
exceed the minimum requirements by three stalls

COMMUNICATIONS
Public notification signage posted on: January 29, 2014
Will be published in the Leader Post on: May 10, 2014
May 17, 2014
Letter sent to immediate property owners Not Applicable
Public Open House Held Not Applicable
Number of Public Comments Sheets Received 0
DELEGATED AUTHORITY

City Council’s approval is required, pursuant to Part V of The Planning and Development Act,
2007.

Respectfully submitted,

REGINA PLANNING COMMISSION

Elaine Gohlke, Secretary
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CR14-55
May 26, 2014

To:  His Worship the Mayor
and Members of City Council

Re:  Application for Zoning Bylaw Amendment (13-Z-30/13-CP-11)
Harbour Landing Phase 10 Stage 1 Appendix A-1

RECOMMENDATION OF THE REGINA PLANNING COMMISSION - APRIL 23, 2014

1. That the application to amend the Harbour Landing Concept Plan, as depicted on the attached
Appendix A-2.1-2.4, be APPROVED.

2. That the following lands in Phase 10 -1 of Harbour Landing be rezoned from UH - Urban
Holding, as shown on the attached plan of proposed subdivision (See Appendix A-3), be
APPROVED:

a. Rezone from UH to DCD 12 — Suburban Narrow Lot Residential:
1.  Lots 1-7 in Block 72; and
ii.  All of Blocks 70, 73, 74, and 75.
b. Rezone from UH to R5 — Residential Medium Density:
1.  Lots 8-54 of Block 72; and
1.  All of Block 71
c. Rezone from UH to R6 — Residential Multiple Housing:
1. Parcel GG in Block 72; and
ii.  Parcel AA

3. That the City Solicitor be directed to prepare the necessary bylaw to authorize the respective
Zoning Bylaw amendment.

REGINA PLANNING COMMISSION — APRIL 23, 2014

The following addressed the Commission:
— Ada Chan Russell, City Planner, made a PowerPoint presentation, a copy of which is on

file in the City Clerk’s Office; and

— Evan Hunchak, representing Dream Development.

The Commission adopted a resolution to concur in the recommendation contained in the report.

Recommendation #4 does not require City Council approval.

Councillors: Jerry Flegel, Mike O’Donnell and Barbara Young; Commissioners: David
Edwards, Ron Okumura, Daryl Posehn, Phil Selenski, Laureen Snook and Sherry Wolf were
present during consideration of this report by the Regina Planning Commission.
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The Regina Planning Commission, at its meeting held on April 23, 2014, considered the
following report from the Administration:

RECOMMENDATION

1. That the application to amend the Harbour Landing Concept Plan, as depicted on the
attached Appendix A-2.1-2.4, be APPROVED.

2. That the following lands in Phase 10 -1 of Harbour Landing be rezoned from UH - Urban
Holding, as shown on the attached plan of proposed subdivision (See Appendix A-3), be
APPROVED:

a. Rezone from UH to DCD 12 — Suburban Narrow Lot Residential:
i. Lots 1-7 in Block 72; and
1. All of Blocks 70, 73, 74, and 75.
b. Rezone from UH to R5 — Residential Medium Density:
1. Lots 8-54 of Block 72; and
1i. All of Block 71
c. Rezone from UH to R6 — Residential Multiple Housing:
1. Parcel GG in Block 72; and
1. Parcel AA

3. That the City Solicitor be directed to prepare the necessary bylaw to authorize the
respective Zoning Bylaw amendment.

4. That this report be forwarded to the May 26, 2014 City Council meeting, which will
allow sufficient time for advertising of the required public notices for the respective
bylaws.

CONCLUSION

The subject properties are located within the Harbour Landing subdivision and is currently zoned
UH — Urban Holding.

The proposed zoning amendments will facilitate the next sequential phase of development within
Harbour Landing. The concept plan amendments will result in a marginal increase in dwelling
units and population for this phase of Harbour Landing. The proposed density will result in the
addition of approximately 125 residents in the subdivision, bringing the projected population of
Phase 10-1 to 953.

The proposed concept plan amendment is consistent with policies contained within the Official
Community Plan (OCP) and is compatible with existing development and uses contained in the
Harbour Landing Concept Plan area.

BACKGROUND

A Concept Plan and Zoning Bylaw Amendment application has been received to amend the
Harbour Landing Concept Plan, in order to accommodate development of the proposed Phase 10
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Stage 1 subdivision. The Harbour Landing Concept Plan was originally approved by City
Council on August 20, 2007, and most recently amended on September 17, 2012.

The proposed amendments are being considered pursuant to Regina Development Plan Bylaw
No. 7877 (Regina’s Official Community Plan, or OCP) and The Planning and Development Act,
2007.

The related subdivision application is being considered concurrently in accordance with Bylaw
No. 2003-3, by which subdivision approval authority has been delegated to the Administration.
A copy of the plan of proposed subdivision is attached for reference purposes only.

DISCUSSION

The applicant is proposing amendments to the Harbour Landing Phase 10 Stage I subdivision
within the Harbour Landing concept plan. Both the proposed and existing concept plans are
shown in Appendix A-2.1 and A-2.5 respectively. To accommodate the demand for variety and
choice in the housing market, the amendments to the concept plan will result in an estimated
increase in dwelling units and population as reflected in the table below. Harbour Landing Phase
10 Stage 1 has a total area of 12.67 ha with a proposed gross density of 31.7 units/ha. The
projected increase in population is 125 residents.

The previous approved concept plan situated high-density residential lots along Campbell Street
and medium-density residential lots along Jim Cairns Boulevard. The proposed concept plan
locates the high-density lots to the corner of Tutor Drive and James Hill Road and along Jim
Cairns Blvd. The medium density lots front Tutor Drive and are situated behind the high density
lots along Jim Cairns Blvd. The changes in the concept plan will position higher density
developments along collector roads.

A care home and daycare is being proposed for the high-density designated Parcel FF in Block
72. This is the subject of a separate application. As such, Parcel FF is not being rezoned as part
of this application. A development application for the parcel has been received and is being
considered to rezone it to C - Contract in order to accommodate this use. A future senior’s home
is also being planned for Parcel GG.

Concept Plan Amendment Summary

Existing Concept Plan Proposed Concept Plan
No. of Dwelling Units 322 399
Population 828 953
Low Density Units 166 99
Medium Density Units 36 123
High Density Units 120 180

Zoning and land use details are summarized as follows:

Land Description Description of Development | Current Zone Proposed Zone

Lots 1-7 in Block 72 and Low-density residential lots UH - Urban DCD 12 — Suburban

all of Blocks 70, 73, 74, Holding Narrow Lot Residential
and 75.

Lots 8-54 of Block 72 and | Medium-density townhome UH - Urban RS — Residential

all of Block 71

lots

Holding

Medium Density
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Parcel GG in Block 72 and | High-density residential lots UH - Urban R6 — Residential
Parcel AA Holding Multiple Housing

Surrounding land uses include:

e proposed Phase 9 subdivision to the south, which will contain low, medium, and
high-density residential development;

e approved Phase 4 subdivision to the east, which is currently under development with
low and medium density residential lots, as well as Municipal Reserve MR 10;

¢ undeveloped lands to the north, the future use of which is pending approval; and

¢ lands currently under agricultural production, which have recently been annexed to
the City of Regina, to the west.

Connection to Devonia Park

Future urban development is planned to the west of Harbour Landing (Harbour Landing West
Neighbourhood). The lands include the Devonia Park subdivision, which is an area subdivided in
the early 1900s. A re-plotting of land would be required to redesign the lands west of Harbour
Landing, which will involve sufficient agreement or ownership of lots. The Administration has
decided that the Devonia Park subdivision plan must be retained in the event that a re-plotting
scheme of this area does not occur. As such, the road right-of-way dedications on the plan of
proposed subdivision have been aligned to ensure connections exist into the street and block
pattern of Devonia Park.

Traffic Implications

The Administration required the applicant to provide a trip generation analysis for Harbour
Landing based on the proposed concept plan changes. The applicant has provided transportation
data for the Harbour Landing subdivision to city engineering staff and has determined that the
existing road network can accommodate the proposed concept plan changes to Phase 10-1 of
Harbour Landing. If the proposals to develop the care home and daycare on Parcel FF and the
senior’s home on Parcel GG are approved, there will be a reduction in trip generation rates from
a typical high density development.

Servicing

The applicant has submitted servicing analysis that demonstrates that proposed water and
wastewater infrastructure will have the capacity to accommodate increased water demand and
increased flows due to densification of the subdivision. City engineering staff has reviewed this
analysis and concurs on the analysis.

RECOMMENDATION IMPLICATIONS

Financial Implications

Capital funding to provide municipal infrastructure that is required for subdivision and
development in the concept plan area will be the sole responsibility of the developer. The
municipal infrastructure that is built and funded by the developer will become the City’s
responsibility to operate and maintain through future budgets.
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Any infrastructure that is deemed eligible for Servicing Agreement Fee funding will be funded
by the City of Regina in accordance with the Administration of Servicing Agreements Fees and
Development Levies policy. Utility charges are applied to the costs of water, sewer and storm
drainage services.

Environmental Implications

None with respect to this report.

Policy/Strategic Implications

The proposal is consistent with the policies contained within Part A: Policy Plan of Regina
Development Plan, Bylaw No. 7877 (Official Community Plan) with respect to:

® Achieving a mix of housing types and densities to suit different lifestyles, income levels
and special needs in existing and future neighbourhoods;

¢ Promoting the development of sustainable suburban neighbourhoods;

e Achieving a compact urban form by favouring developments of new areas with higher
densities; and

¢ Encouraging developers to provide a greater mix of housing to accommodate households
of different incomes, types, stages of life and capabilities within each new
neighbourhood.

The proposed subdivision will provide various housing options for residents including detached
dwellings, town houses and apartment buildings. The proposal will contribute to sustainable
development and a compact urban form.

The proposal is also consistent with the policies contained in Part B — Southwest Sector Plan of
the OCP with respect to the policies regarding staged and sequential growth in the southwest part
of the City.

The policy also intends for a variety of housing types to be accommodated in new development

areas and that higher density housing along the roads defining the edges of neighbourhoods may
consist of townhouses, apartments and planned groups of dwellings. In addition, the location of

medium-higher density housing should take advantage of areas of higher activity and traffic.

Although the proposed development is not currently within 365 metre walking distance of a
transit stop or transit route, the overall concept plan area has been designed accordingly to
achieve this policy objective. In this case, future transit service is planned for James Hill Road,
which will ensure that this area will be fully within 365 m walking distance of transit services.

Other Implications

The proposal is also consistent with the policies contained within Design Regina, which was
approved by City Council in December 2013 and will replace the Regina Development Plan as
the city’s Official Community Plan once approved by the province. Design Regina encourages
developers to provide a greater mix of housing to accommodate households of different incomes,
types, stages of life and abilities in all neighbourhoods.



Accessibility Implications

None with respect to this report.

COMMUNICATIONS

Public notification signage posted on: February 12, 2013

Will be published in the Leader Post on: May 10, 2014
May 17,2014

DELEGATED AUTHORITY

City Council’s approval of concept plan amendments is required pursuant to Part [V and V of
The Planning and Development Act, 2007.

Respectfully submitted,

REGINA PLANNING COMMISSION

Cloime  Detillee

Elaine Gohlke, Secretary
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CR14-56
May 26, 2014

To:  His Worship the Mayor
and Members of City Council

Re:  Application for Contract Zoning (13-CZ-06) Proposed Additional Dwelling Unit in
Apartment Building, 1936 Cameron Street

RECOMMENDATION OF THE REGINA PLANNING COMMISSION - APRIL 23, 2014

That the application to amend the contract zone approved under Regina Zoning Bylaw No. 9250
for 1936 Cameron Street, being Lot 49, Block 336, Plan No 10217439 be APPROVED and the
contract zone be amended as follows:

a. Replace section 5.(c) of the agreement with the following: “A maximum of nine units
shall be developed in the apartment building and shall be consistent with the attached
plans and elevations, prepared by Gilchuck Design and Drafting and dated October 3,
2012 and November 28, 2012.

REGINA PLANNING COMMISSION — APRIL 23, 2014
The following addressed the Commission:
— Ben Mario, City Planner, made a PowerPoint presentation, a copy of which is on file in
the City Clerk’s Office; and

— Wade Probe and Tim Probe, representing PR Investments Inc.

The Commission adopted a resolution to concur in the recommendation contained in the report.
Recommendation #2 does not require City Council approval.

Councillors: Jerry Flegel, Mike O’Donnell and Barbara Young; Commissioners: David

Edwards, Ron Okumura, Daryl Posehn, Phil Selenski, Laureen Snook and Sherry Wolf were
present during consideration of this report by the Regina Planning Commission.

The Regina Planning Commission, at its meeting held on April 23, 2014, considered the
following report from the Administration:

RECOMMENDATION

1. That the application to amend the contract zone approved under Regina Zoning Bylaw
No. 9250 for1936 Cameron Street, being Lot 49, Block 336, Plan No 10217439 be
APPROVED and the contract zone be amended as follows:

b. Replace section 5.(c) of the agreement with the following: “A maximum of nine
units shall be developed in the apartment building and shall be consistent with the
attached plans and elevations, prepared by Gilchuck Design and Drafting and
dated October 3, 2012 and November 28, 2012.
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2. That this report be forwarded to the May 26, 2014 City Council meeting.

CONCLUSION

The proposal is summarized as follows:

® A contract zone was approved for the subject property to accommodate a low-rise
apartment building with eight dwelling units in 2012.

¢ The applicant is now proposing to amend the existing contract zone to accommodate an
additional dwelling unit (9™ unit) in a space that is designated for storage within the
building. The terms and conditions of the contract zone agreement restrict development
on site to eight dwelling units.

e There are no plans to change the exterior or make any additions to the existing building.

The Administration recommended denial as the report considered by Regina Planning
Commission at the March 12, 2014 meeting as it did not demonstrate sufficient community
support for the additional unit. However, since Regina Planning Commission referred the item
back to the Administration, some community support has been demonstrated and advanced by
the applicant. In particular, the Cathedral Area Community Association reiterated its previous
support for the building as originally proposed as a 10 unit building. The applicant also
submitted written support from tenants of the building, the North Central Community
Association, some property owners within the area, and others who have expressed an interest in
the building.

As such, the Administration has reconsidered its position and now recommends approval of the
proposal.

BACKGROUND

An application has been received to amend a previously approved contract zone to accommodate
a ninth dwelling unit in an apartment restricted to only eight units at 1936 Cameron Street. The
original contract zone for a building containing eight units was approved by City Council on
April 30, 2012. The building was completed last autumn and is currently occupied.

Regina Planning Commission first considered this proposal on March 12, 2014 and passed the
following motion:

“that this matter be referred to Administration for a further report to a meeting in
April, which includes written comments from the proponent’s further consultation
with the community and the Cathedral Community Association.”

The Administration requested the developer to address the motion by providing advice to engage
the surrounding community to obtain written comment. The developer provided a summary of
actions taken throughout the review process to obtain feedback from the community, attached in
Appendix C. Also attached in Appendix C are letters of support obtained by the developer from
the Cathedral Area Community Association, the North Central Community Association, local
businesses, existing tenants of the building, and property owners in the vicinity.
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This application is being considered pursuant to Regina Zoning Bylaw No. 9250, Regina
Development Plan Bylaw No. 7877 (Official Community Plan), and The Planning and
Development Act, 2007.

DISCUSSION

The applicant is proposing to amend the existing contract zone agreement to allow for a ninth
dwelling unit in an apartment building that is only approved for eight dwelling units. The portion
of the building identified for the ninth dwelling unit is currently used as a storage space within
the building. The proposed additional dwelling unit will be fully contained within the building
and no additions are planned to the building. Nine parking stalls are provided on site which
would meet the minimum parking requirement.

Surrounding land uses include detached dwellings in the immediate vicinity with some multi-
family on surrounding blocks.

Pursuant to The Planning and Development Act, 2007, terms of a contract zone may include the
use of the land and buildings, forms of development, site layout and external design, including
parking areas, landscaping, entry and exit ways, but not including the colour, texture or type of
materials and architectural detail. The building as proposed varies somewhat from the approved
drawings, but not to the extent that it created conflict with those features of the proposal that the
City has the authority to control. In particular, the internal partitioning of units is different than
originally proposed and a window had been added to the basement to allow for a suite to be
developed in the adjacent space.

When the development application was received for this property in 2011, the applicant proposed
an apartment building with 10 dwelling units. In follow up consultation with the community the
overall density of the project was identified as a significant concern. In addressing this concern
that Administration recommended that only eight dwelling units be approved for the apartment
building. The Administration’s position was that this was a compromise communicated to the
community and provided a level of certainty to the community regarding the development that
would be expected on site and that if a ninth dwelling unit were authorized it would represent a
breach of promise with the community.

Since Regina Planning Commission referred the item back, some support for a 9™ unit has been
demonstrated. In particular, the Cathedral Area Community Association has reiterated support
for the proposal. While it is recognized that opposition to the building remains in the community,
additional support has now been demonstrated and in particular from the Community
Association.

RECOMMENDATION IMPLICATIONS

Financial Implications

The subject area currently receives a full range of municipal services, including water, sewer and
storm drainage. The applicant will be responsible for the cost of any additional or changes to
existing infrastructure that may be required to directly or indirectly support the development, in
accordance with City standards and applicable legal requirements.



Environmental Implications

None to this report.

Policy/Strategic Implications

The Administration recommendation is supported by policy contained within Part A: Policy Plan
of Regina Development Plan, Bylaw No. 7877 (Official Community Plan) with respect to
ensuring that residential development is compatible with adjacent residential development.

The Cathedral Area Neighbourhood Plan designates the surrounding area for medium density
residential, which is between 25 and 50 units per hectare. While small in scale, the current
building is considered a high density residential development. However, the building was
accommodated with an amendment to the Neighbourhood Plan as an exception in the basis that
the overall form, scale, and fit of the building was able to be addressed under the provisions of
contract zoning. The Administration contends that the applicant’s proposal would bring the
development on site further from the intent of the development policy for this location within
Cathedral Neighbourhood.

Other Implications

None with respect to this report.

Accessibility Implications

The Uniform Building and Accessibility Standards Act requires 5% of units in new rental
buildings to be barrier-free including accessible washrooms, space in bedrooms and kitchens,
and balconies. For this proposal, no barrier-free units would be required.

COMMUNICATIONS

Communications strategy has been developed to address the community issues.

Public notification signage posted on: November 26, 2013
Will be published in the Leader Post on*: May 9 and 16, 2014
Letter sent to immediate property owners November 4, 2013
Public Open House Held N/A
Number of Public Comments Sheets Received 6

*subject to Regina Planning Commission recommendation of approval.

A more detailed accounting of the community concerns is provided in Appendix B along with
the Administration’s response to those issues, as well as the actual community comments
received during the review process. The applicant and other interested parties will receive
written notification of City Council’s decision.

Following consideration of the application by Regina Planning Commission, the applicant
undertook additional contact with the community. Written declarations of support were obtained
from the Cathedral Area Community Association, North Central Community Association,
existing tenants of the building, some property owners in the vicinity, and others who have self-
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identified an interest in the building. A summary of this engagement and response is provided in
Appendix C.

DELEGATED AUTHORITY

City Council’s approval is required, pursuant to Part V of The Planning and Development Act,
2007.

Respectfully submitted,

REGINA PLANNING COMMISSION

Clame  Betllee

Elaine Gohlke, Secretary




Appendix A-1

a 2 S—
o] T ¥yt
.8 g

N

-
"
Vi |
2

'y

B
£
—
O

g
' ’..- Tf

| --_I Subject Property

Project 13-CZ-06 Civic Address/Subdivision 1936 Cameron Street




Appendix A-2

_' Subject Property

Project _13-CZ-06 Civic Address/Subdivision 1936 Cameron Street




Appendix A-3.1

REAR ALLEY

PROPERTY LINE = 7.62 METERS PROPERTY LINE = 7.62 METERS
2 2 2
B & 5
e & @
2 g 2
& & 3 3
st 6.08 METER ONE WAY DRIVEWAY % 3
= P 2
z z Z
o ] o
o a 8
7.5 METER PRIVEWAY
s § =4 = s - s =1
& & & 5 & &
3 3 3 9 8 g
= = = = s 2
g g g g g g
£ £ £ £ £ £
= = = = = =
3 8 5] <1 IS} S
G G 8 S b 3
= = = = = =
E = H = H <
0 0 o 0 0 0
5 g 8 8 2 4
- mucows e o
I ! I !
% i i Il i g
) H I 1 i o
= =
Z| 1200 1.200 [=
3 3
E =
i "
) = ]
2 2
5
g g
B
LOT DETAILS:
LOT AREA = 580.855 5Q. M.
BUILDING AREA = 171.747 SQ. M.
PARKING LOT = 284.852 5Q. M.
LANDSCAPE AREA = | 24.256 5Q. M.
E
1.200 1.200
i j 1
fmmﬁint\mn
/ [
A / \\\ GREEN ASH
’ PROPERTY LINE = 7.62 MEFERI@ \ FROPERTY LINE = 7.62 METERS
PR INVESTMENTS INC
A ?‘ITEE PLAN AFFORDABLE RENTAL INCOME
AlLl 1.5,
19321936 CAMERON STREET
REGINA, SASKATCHEWAN
— ——— s SITE PLAN
GENERAL NOTES ABBREVIATIONS
| B TR e
o B e o e b oG
SHALL BE REPORTED 10 THE DRAFTSMA BEFORE CONSTRUCTION. . = PRESSURE TREATED) B = GRADE BEAM —
couscs o e v o~ o MARCH 21, 2012
D o 3 e Wi .
| U e
e EEE, S s
MDD S LTS UL SR TEONEE. =MEAD Tour
Design & Drafing e e A5 NOTED
el "SHEET MO REVISION:
I Al | A
——

Project

13-CZ-06

Planning Department

Civic Address/Su

bdivision

1936 Cameron Street




Appendix A-3.2

XF i
E -
St . <]
= : g B . :
L i £ 25 <2 4
Vo 2 2 e 851 [219]gle
A : = 11 R REE
o==|0 5 x el e =4 w312
g e 32 |5|8lz]a
& 2 of ¢ el Ef Blo|2| —
@ = = S |2 =} -
# E 2 ﬂg‘% S ol
|| <
‘ : Tk E bk
- & = & c a o

. Y

Planning Department

Project 13-CZ-06 Civic Address/Subdivision 1936 Cameron Street




Appendix A-3.3

Ichuk
Design & Drafting

©

i)
g
|
E
T £
) &
© LU\

\- J

Planning Department

Project 13-C2-06 Civic Address/Subdivision 1936 Cameron Street




Appendix A-3.4

>
= " ( -
5
23 o E= <]
L- | ¢ BZl | |, ,
= 3 o o B5|2 |%lg E
Uz E w 5 BE|E |El3l.le
g 2 e 9 o | O
— 0 : = gl = =2 |38 alelt]le
i~ : El e 33 |2lE]z2|2
i il 2 ou|E R|s|2| e
] L 12 g8 _§g o
i Y 3
¥ | <
N N i - H EE
l - E R EE R I
]
p
b
o
E
=
g
5
e
gl
ol
{Ht
=

Planning Department

Project 13-CZ-06 Civic Address/Subdivision 1936 Cameron Street




Appendix B

Public Consultation Summary

Response No. of | Issues Identified

Responses

Completely opposed 5

The neighbourhood was originally not in favour of the
proposal.

The developer should be required to conform to City Council’s
original decision.

The building has brought down the quality of the
neighbourhood.

There is a garbage problem in the lane.

There is a parking problem on the street.

Some tenants of the building have demonstrated poor
behaviour.

Accept if many
features were different

Accept if one or two
features were different

1 support this proposal 1 Parking on Victoria Avenue is scarce during the work week.

1.

Issue The applicant should be required to conform to City Council’s original decision.

Administration’s Response: The applicant has been compliant with the original decision. Should
City Council not approve the application, the building will be required to remain an eight
dwelling unit building. Initially the Administration agreed that the building should be maintained
as eight units. This decision was based primarily on lack of support from the community.
However since Regina Planning Commission last considered the proposal the applicant has
undertaken additional community consultation and demonstrated additional community support.
As such, the Administration is now recommending approval of the amendment to the contract
zone agreement to accommodate one additional dwelling unit.

Issue Garbage problem

Administration’s Response: The building uses private garbage pick-up on-site. The location of
solid waste pick up is reflected on the site plan.

Issue: Parking on-street

Administration’s Response: The building meets typical requirements for on-site parking, which is
one stall per dwelling unit. The additional unit would likely not perceptibly impact street parking.
The City is aware of the impacts of parking on neighbourhoods adjacent to downtown. Parking
on Cameron Street does not appear to be an issue in the evenings when most residents are home.

Issue: Behaviour of tenants

Administration’s Response: Behaviour of tenants or residents of any private homes cannot be
regulated by land use. The police should be notified of any suspected illegal activity or nuisance.
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March 26, 2014 |

To whom it may concern

These points show the extreme efforts used to establish reliable feedback for the board to better
evaluate reasonability to decide in favor of adding a 9" suite.

1) Mayors housing initiative is to provide Low Income Housing
-$550.00/month is the lowest rate for this type of housing in the city.
-built as safe housing
-New, healthy, 2013 Codes
-Professionally Managed
-High demand
; -1 to 1 Parking
2) Developer paid city $5,000.00 to provide direct local area awareness through mail outs and public
notices attached to city tree on location. These notices allowed feedback since Nov/13,
3) Developer canvassed 4 city suggested blocks over 6 nights for additional public survey to be mailed in
regarding parking issues and approval in general. '
4) Developer requested an updated letter to an earlier approval letter from the Cathedral Area
Association.
5) Developer received support from Rob Deglau and his delegation of North Central for a development
of this kind to be move predominate as it supports all his calls for better housing for low income earners.
6) Developer canvassed several businesses in close proximity and received signatures from all that were

discussed with.
7) Developer had discussions with local Counselor Shawn Fraser, to request any objections that he may

or could possibly think of.

8) Developer went back numerous times of day and night and weekend to evaluate parking concerns
with use of a camera. All pictures are available and most are date stamped. There is never a time when
at least 2 parking spots are available at any of the given times. It also should be noted that in
investigating this problem, it was found that some of the individuals parking on this street would walk
downtown to work. Possible solution is to have the block changed to two hour parking and the area
residents can apply for annual parking permits.

9) Developer requested all tenants in 1936 Cameron to send informative letters to powers that be, to
show how much housing like this is necessary and appreciated. One tenant even had her dad want to
send in letter from his home in Prince Albert.

10) Developer attended a Council meeting on March 24, 2014 to hear and present discussions
pertaining to unorthodox housing standards. ‘

11) Developer will be holding a press conference within the next month. The Media will be showing
how Provincial Funding has helped Developers and Municipalities to provide housing to LOW INCOME

EARNERS. Their idea!

- Wo. CLL :ProLe, |



Ben Mario
%

From: Cathedral Area Community Association <caca@sasktel.net>
Sent: Tuesday, March 25, 2014 4:01 PM

To: Ben Mario

Ce: Kramer, Brent; Clipsham, Fred

Subject: 1936 Cameron St

Ben - The Cathedral Area Community Association supports the proposed 9th unit at 1936 Cameron Street.

You will recall the Association gave conditional support to the original 10 unit proposal in 2011, provided
parking was not an issue with the neighbourhood. That is still our position.

We welcome this development to the neighbourhood.

Regards

Fred Clipsham

Chair, Planning Committee
CACA



NORTH
Cen

Community Association

March 20, 2014

Wade Probe

P.R. Investments Inc
1547 Anson Road
Regina, SK S4P OE1

Dear Mr. Probe,

We have been following your infill development in Cathedral at 1936 Cameron St and
are encouraged to see such a sensitive infill like yours. To many times we see developers
slap together unsightly boxes in order to meet the minimum requirements set out by
government. £

We have heard that your development has come across some difficulty in getting your
9" suite approved by the city. As a community association we cannot emphasis how
important affordable housing is for our city and especially for residents who choose to
live in the older neighbourhoods. Not only do we support more affordable housing we
hope that you would consider bringing projects like this to North Central.

Sincerely,

.

Rob Deglau
Community Relations

1264 Athol Street, Regina, Sask. Canada. S4T 7V3 Office 791-9888 Fax 757-1052



December 15, 2011

Ada Chan Russzell

Planning & Development Division
Planning & Sustainability Department
City of Regina

Dear Ms. Russell

Re; Application for Contract Zone ( 11-CZ-6)
Proposed Low Rise Apartment Building 1932 -1936 Cameron Street

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the sbove Application.

.The proposed construction of a Low Rise Apartment Building at 1932 —36 Cameron Street
has been much discussed since we were presented with the plans by PR Developments in
late October. The Board found merit with the plans and a few concems.

The design of the apartments is complementary to the surrounding neighbourhood; the
intention to accommodate single, lower-rental tenants is suitable; and the ability to transform
twodmnagedorda'elictneighbomhoodpmparﬁesatonocmaﬂ appealing to the Board,

We are pleased thatﬂxeappﬁcanthasbeenabletopmvidesuﬁcimtpaﬂdngonﬂlesiteto
meet the minimum required by the Zoning Bylaw. The street is already compromised due to
much on-street residential parking, and the Board would not like to see this situation
demiommfmthesakeofthoughmfﬁc,ﬁrniwdvisibﬂiwforpedmm,mdvnMGe
security. ) ; :

The apartments would also place rental accommodation on a block where none now
currently exists. 'IheAssociationismtopposedtothisfnmoralone,butwou]dnctlﬂceto
see future neighbourhood apartment development condoned and approved due 1o pre-
existing rental accommodation alone. The neighbourhood is, and should remain, a mixture
of owned residential and rental accommodation.

That being said, the apartment development is seen as a timely, suitable development in the
arca. The Association supports the development and overall proposal with the above
concerns in mind as the Application proceeds so that the needs of the nearby residents are
not compromised by this and any future developments.



We are hopeful that the Community Association can work with the City of Reginato do a
review of the Cathedral Neighbourhood Plan in the near future. The Cathedral Area has
changed significantly in the 25 + years since the existing Neighbourhood Plan was
developed and we would prefer to consider applications such as this in the context of an up-
fo-date overall plan.

Sincerely,

Phil Jeffreys :
Cathedral Area Community Association President
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-ameron Stree!

Regina, SK, S4T 2V1
PR Investment Inc.
1547 Anson Road
Regina, SK
S$4P OE1

To whom it may concern,

I am writing this letter to explain why the apartment in which | am currently living has been an absolute blessing.
I am a recent graduate from the University of Saskatchewan which means | have a degree but also a lot of
student debt. My family lives in Saskatoon but the best job opportunity | could find was in Regina and so | made -
the decision to move in order to take a position which was aligned with my education, Along with the move,.
came a lot of moving and getting set up expenses. My mission now that | am settled in :he city is to pay off my
debts, spend as cautiously as possible and eventually start saving for a home. Being in an entry level job with the
current cost of living is tough, so when | found an apartment close to where | work downtown at an affordable
cost and in a great neighbourhood, | could not pass it up.

I now walk every day 10 blocks to work as well as to get groceries and grab coffee on the weekend. | am saving
on rent, on gas and on not having to pay for parking downtown. What PR Investments has done is create an
affordable but also friendly and comfortable place for me to live. While | do not enjoy the unnecessary luxuries
like stainless steel appliances, hardwood floors and tiled bathrooms, the apartment is spacious (so | can practice
yoga in my living room), is inviting from the exterior and allows me to entertain visitors with a wonderful open
concept kitchen and a small second bedroom for when my parents come to town. The design of the kitchen also
enabled me to avoid having to buy a kitchen table and chairs set.

The fact that | can actually afford a new apartment contributes to feeling safe and at home in my apartment. 've
had friends have to deal with issues such as black mold, cockroaches and finicky appliances. In my apartment |
don’t have to worry about those things and that just makes me feel all the more comfortable. -

! love having a place where friends and family feel comfortable and actually want to come visit me, a place
where | can relax after working 60 hour work weeks, where I can rely on having hot water all the time for
showering after the gym or hot yoga and especially having all the appliances like a microwave, stove/oven, large
fridge, dish washer and laundry machine and dryer. It isn’t near the amount of space that | had with my parents
in Saskatoon, but it feels like home and allows me to live comfortably so | can focus on paying down my debt
and being a great contributor to society, '

1 hope PR Investments can continue to create affordable living for people like me who are driven, aim to make a
difference in their community and just need a little help while starting out on their own for the first time.
Renting in Regina is scary, especially when you are a young single female just wanting to live in a safe, affordable
and clean apartment on your own when general rent prices seem impossible to keep up with. '

Thank you PR Investments, for choosing me to live in my current apartment building, | wouldn’t want to live

reg:



o

suondnusip Jueual 8dUeI|0] 0437

Axd ay3 u) s301d Wioospag 7 13 T MON 1S9MOT]

sis Suiyem

(saoueydde mau Eo_ﬁzbmcou 9xZ) Inoysnoayl Juajdiyg ASisug

$19501) Ul YjeMm

9UNS U3 ||eys Buppied T

Auodjeg
Aipuneq ayinsuz

-31ns

«$IN0QUBIBU 43y |[e 0] S33UBQUNISIP JO 3SNEI3Q 0F 13] 0 pey am 113 JU3pN3s pjo JA 8T B 03 pajual am Jey) a3ins wajgqoid auo AUO-Z0E#H v x

0002T S| T |000S§S $| 3ingsous

000vZ S| T 00°0SS $| €107 19220

000t $| T |o000Ss $| £tozSTAON

L) 000'8T $| T [000SS $| aingaduss

: 000TZ $| T |o000sS $| 3ingeous

0000t S| T |000SS S| ¥Ingaouss

o 0008 S| ¢ |000SZ $| wngeours

@ 000%C $| T [o000sz $| 3pngeours
. | swoay) Mueus) _ . !
1ahojdwi3 qor | °8v | eepumg | jenuuy |[suupg | jusy o yiSua awep juayp ssa.ppy

€102 T 1sn8ny pauado

ONISNOH 319VAU044Y JIWOINI MO TVIDNIAOYd HLIM L¥0443 JAILYYIdO-0D L13341S NOHINY) 9€6T




Wade Probe

Fione B S e ey
Sent: Tuesday, March 18, 2014 4:40 PM

To: ‘wade@prinvestments.ca'
Subject: [Spam] FW: Support for reduced rent Apartments

rrom: (IR
Sent: March-18-14 4:35 PM

To: "admin@2ndhomesuites.ca’; "rob@2ndhomesuftes.ca’
Cc: 'wade@2ndhomesultes.ca’
Subject: Support for reduced rent Apartments

Dear Wade, Here is a letter of support for your reduced rental projects.

To Who it may Concern,

My daughter has been living in a PR investment low rent Apartment for the past 10 months or 50. As a
parent and an Educator | cannot express how important it is for young people to get secondary Education for a brighter
future and to better society. As you know Education and living expenses are not cheap and school debt can mount very
quickly. It has been such a blessing to have reduced rent for our daughter at this time in a building that is not only
expertly built and maintained but safe and conducive for her to study in. We are impressed with how PR investments
have built and designed this building to be constructed so impeccably and how it adds to the character of the
neighborhood. To have everything a student would need like washer and dryer in each suite and other proper

" appliances so they can focus on their studies is so convenient. | know that we would find it very difficult to afford

- schooling for our daughter if the rent was higher and feel we need more buildings that have reduced rent for students.
We have a son going to university next year as well and will be looking for a reduced rent apartment for him as well in
Regina. | would hope that the City of Regina would support more rent reduction buildings as it is very difficult to find
suitable apartments for students. | think that PR investments is doing a great service for the City of Regina and our
province by investing in our students and future workforce and leaders.

Thank you for your Consideration,

i



Tuesday, March 18th 2014

Dear PR investments

I would like to thank you for providing me with accommodations throughout my time at
school in Regina. You have provided me with a cheap way of living, which is much
appreciated. As a student money is always a struggle and there are not many options to
find cheap rent for 5650 a month anywhere else in the city. The money saved on rent is
put towards books and supplies for school, as well as groceries and power bills. This is a
hhge help. | feel that allowing PR investments to build another low income building or
unit would help out students like me who are struggling with financial aid to find fit
accommaodations for their time here in Regina. This is my first time renting, so | have
been pleased so far with having my own washer and dryer in my apartment and having

brand new appliances. It is a huge convenience.

I have never rented anywhere else before and this is my first time. 1 appreciate the
opportunity that PR investments have given me by getting funding for low or no income
people. It helps greatly, and | am very grateful for it.

Thanks,

R
S S i)

Regina SK
54T 2v1




Wednesday, March 19" 2014

To whom it may concern,

| would like to thank PR investments for providing me with such a great ptace to
live. | am a dental hygiene student and therefore had to move to the city of Regina
as it is the only city in Saskatchewan whom offers this program. | was very
stressed about finding a place to live here as | have no family or relatives here and
it was my first move away from home. PR investments made it easy for me to be
able to be independent and get the help that | need to get through school. As
student money is always tight between rent, food, tuition, books and dental
instruments it is hard to keep up. | very much appreciate the apartment that PR
investments have provided me with. They have allowed me to feel like Regina as a
friendly place to call home. My suite is the perfect size for me, | also feel very safe
in it as the location is great and very residential. My suite also includes all brand
new appliances including an in-suite washer and dryer. | am very grateful for alf
the conveniences that they have provided me with.

| also feel that our apartment building is a great asset to the street and
community. As a resident, | have noticed that there are lots of nice friendly peaple
in our building who don't mind holding a door open for you or helping you carry in

" your groceries when your arms are full. Another reason is that our parking lot has
bright lights, which also serve as a security measure and keep the alley and cars
parked in it well lit and safe. | feel that a 9™ suite would just be one more kind
person there to help someone out. Funding this suite is very appreciated and will
give another student or low-income family a safe and great place to live. PR
investments have a wonderfuf program going for low-income families, as there is
not a lot of choices in the city. As a student | have asked other classmates about
their living situations and none of them have found as great of accommodations
as what PR investments have provided me with. | have full confidence that you
would not regret your decision by aliowing them to build a 9% suite for this program.
I'have personally met with the owners of the building and | assure you that they
only have its best intentions at heart.

Thank you for taking the time to read my letter, and if you have any questions or

concems abiﬂ it iou are more than welcome to contact me via email

Thank you,




March 16, 2014

To: Whom it may concern

Re: Letter required by landiord

IR e,

Regina, SK
S4T2V1

Heilo,

This letter is in response to the reguest | received on Saturday March 15, 2014. | am a student at SIAST
in Regina and have been renting the sulte | am currently in since mid-November. | am from Manitoba
and when | first came to Regina for schoof finding a good place to live was very difficult. | had lived in
two previous accommodations here and dealt with things such as theft by roommates, mold problems
and bug infestations. When I found this suite | knew it would be perfect. As a student and not having a
support system of family and friends here in Regina, this place Is not only affordable for my limited
budget but it is a safe, clean building as well. The lower cost rent has made it possible for me to afford to
live here while going to school. | appreciate having the washing machine and dryer in-suite as it saves
the cost of having to go to a Laundroriat or paying per load. Having the limited budget of a student this
is very helpful. Having newer appliances is also great. In one of my previous accommodations, | had an
old fridge which had broken the 2™ day | was there and the landlord refused to fix it which was
extremely frustrating. [ don't have to experience things like that with the new appliances and great
maintenance team PR Investments has for this building. If | could no longer stay in this apartment | do
not know where | would go and it worries me that | would not be able to afford to live while attending
school. When looking for a place to live earlier in the fall | could not find anything comparable to this
building. If it was lower cost, it was in an unsafe area or unclean; if it was clean and in a nice area it was
$1000 per month or more. | appreciate staying in this building and hope to continue to live here.

I hope this letter is sufficient for its purpose. Thank you for your time.

Sincerely,
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REGINA | City of Regina

Infinite Horizons

Resident Survey

File: 13-CZ-06

Date: March 17, 2014

Purpose: Regina Planning Commission of the City of Regina has requested the developer to
obtain feedback from the community on a proposal. The results of this survey will help
inform a decision on this matter.

Location: 1936 Cameron Street

Proposal: To add a 9" unitin an apartment building that is currently approved for 8 units

Please check f the following statements: ;
o - long a5 all regriced buildy

)i | support adding a 9" suite to the building 5&@5 ool frlu:, allonmnces &+
lq,.‘f) e L
o | oppose adding a 9" suite to the building

Please provide your contact information and Return survey to the City in the following ways:

SPwie . To: Ben Mario, Senior City Planner
oo o s Eiyelaghn
Planning Department
MQC—“"-@"’“ St P.0. Bax 1790
: Regina, SK S4P 3C8
T"“""“"‘q—-— Fax: 306-777-6823

Phone:  306-777-7582
Email: bmario@regina.ca

Please retumn survey by March 26, 2014

Planning Department

Community Planning and Development Division
Queen Elizabeth Il Court | 2476 Victoria Avenue
PO Box 1790 | REGINA SK S4P 3C8
Regina.ca




Wade Probe

From:

Sent: Tuesday, March 25, 2014 6:17 PM
To: wprobe@prinvestments.ca
Subject: Re: Cameron street apartment

From
Date: Tuesday, 25 March, 2014 5:48 PM

To: < nt.ca>
Ce:
Subject: Cameron street apartment

To whom it may concern

We the owners—uf the following properties

Reﬁrds

O N\
NG &TW

Cameron St and-Cameron St have

no issue with a 9th suite in the apartment complex on Cameron Street owned by the Probe's

Sitesk



Wade Probe

From:

Sent: Tuesday, March 25, 2014 4:41 PM
To: Wade Probe

Subject: [Spam] Re: 1936 Cameron

bey

On 2014-03-19, at 5:53 PM, Wade Probe wrote:
' \

Thanks for the time today. Hopefully something comes together that we can help each other. The letter needs to reply
to the need of low income housing that is available to low income earners. i.e. waitress, and such. As a business owner
in the cathedral area, the need for safe and healthy accommodations are far and few between for your employees and
are essential for business owners to succeed. For the city to disallow even one suite that can make the life of an
employee feel positive, is very disappointing.

Thanks the rest I'll leave up to you.

V¥¥ade Probe, B.Ed
CFO/Controller - P.R. Investments Inc
1547 Anson Road
Regina, SK S4P 0E1
(P) 306.545.4666
(F) 306.546.4411
rinvestments.ca

<image001.jpg>

<Mail Attachment.eml>
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Ben Mario :
\

From: Wade Probe <wprobe@prinvestments.ca>
Sent: Thursday, March 27, 2014 4:24 PM

To: Ben Mario

Subject: FW: Apartment complex

One more to add to the list

Wade Probe, B.Ed

CFO/Controller - P.R. Investments Inc
1547 Anson Road

Regina, SK S4P 0E1

(P) 306.545.4666

(F) 306.546.4411

wprobe@prinvestments.ca

NVESTMENT

From:
Sent: Thursday, March 27, 2014 1:01 PM

To: wprobe@prinvestments.ca

Subject: Fwd: Apartment complex

Sent from Samsung Mobile

-------- Original message --------

From: juiishinsn
Date:03/27/2014 12:58 PM (GMT-06:00)

To:
Subject: Fwd: Apartment complex

Sent from my iPhone
Begin forwarded message:

From
Date: March 27, 2014 at 12:55:10 PM CST



~: [

Subject: Apartment complex

Hello-

Please accept this letter as confirmation that I support the renovation to add a ninth apartment to
the apartment complex behind my house. I understand that the renovations will affect the inside
of the building only and that there are already sufficient parking stalls to accommodate another

tenant.

Please feel free to contact me to discuss further.
Thank you,

S
#RGamet Street



day of

, 20

Approved as to form this

City Solicitor

BYLAW NO. 2014-37

THE REGINA ZONING AMENDMENT BYLAW, 2014 (No. 9)

THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REGINA ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:
1 Regina Zoning Bylaw No. 9250 is amended in the manner set forth in this Bylaw.
2 Chapter 20 - Agreements is amended by rezoning the lands in Regina,

Saskatchewan, as outlined on the map attached as Appendix "A", legally described
as:

Legal Address: Lot 49, Block 336, Plan 102117439
Civic Address: 1936 Cameron Street
Current Zoning: C-Contract

Proposed Zoning C-Contract

3 The City Clerk is authorized to execute the Contract Zone Agreement attached as
Appendix "B" and forming part of this Bylaw.

4 This Bylaw comes into force on the date an interest based on the Contract Zone
Agreement is registered in the Land Registry at Information Services Corporation.

READ A FIRST TIME THIS 26th DAY OF May 2014
READ A SECOND TIME THIS 26th DAY OF May 2014
READ A THIRD TIME AND PASSED THIS 26th DAY OF May 2014
Mayor City Clerk (SEAL)
CERTIFIED A TRUE COPY
City Clerk
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Bylaw No. 2014-37
Appendix "B"

THIS AGREEMENT made as of this é day of , 2014,

BETWEEN:

THE CITY OF REGINA
in its capacity as approving authority
pursuant to The Planning and Development Act, 2007
(the “City”)

-and -

P.R. INVESTMENTS INC.
(the “Owner/Applicant”)

CONTRACT ZONE AGREEMENT

WHEREAS:

A. The City has an approved official community plan as contemplated in section 69 of The Planning
and Development Act, 2007 that contains guidelines respecting the entering into of agreements
for the purpose of accommodating requests for the rezoning of lands to permit the carrying out of
a specific proposal, referred to as “contract zoning”; and

B. The Owner/Applicant is or is entitled to become the registered owner of the lands and buildings
(if any) located at 1936 Cameron Street, Regina, Saskatchewan, and legally described as:

Surface Parcel(s): # 202763246
Reference Land Description: Lot 49, Block 336, Plan 102117439

C. The Owner/Applicant has applied to the City to have the Property rezoned from R4 — Residential
Older Neighbourhood Zone to C-Contract to permit the use of the Property for the carrying out of
a specific proposal described as: Apartment Building (the “Proposal”).

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

L. Preamble. The preamble forms an integral part of this Agreement.

2 Establishment of the Contract Zone. The City hereby agrees that the zoning of the Property
shall be a contract zone (C-Contract) pursuant to the provisions of The Planning and
Development Act, 2007 and Design Regina: The Official Community Plan Bylaw, No. 2013-48 to

accommodate the Applicant’s Proposal (“Contract Zone™).

Effective Date. The effective date of this Agreement shall be the date of passage of the bylaw

»w
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2

by City Council authorizing the Contract Zone (the “Effective Date”), it being understood by the
Owner/Applicant that the relevant amendments to the Zoning Bylaw shall not take effect until an
interest based on this Agreement is registered against the affected title(s) to the Property at the
Saskatchewan Land Titles Registry.

Permitted Development and Use. The development and use of the Property permitted within
the Contract Zone shall be as follows:

(a) Permitted use. Existing and proposed use and development on the Property shall be
limited to Apartment Building;

(b) Site Layout and External Design. The site layout and design of existing and proposed
development on the Property shall be consistent with the site plan prepared by Gilchuk
Design and Drafting and dated March 21, 2012, which is attached to this Agreement as
Schedule “A”;

(c) Landscaping. Landscaping for the Property shall comply with the applicable
development standards for parking areas pursuant to Chapter 15, Section 3.3 of the
Regina Zoning Bylaw, No. 9250,

(d) Parking. Parking requirements for the Property shall comply with the applicable
development standards pursuant to the Regina Zoning Bylaw, No. 9250;

(e) Signage. Signage on the Property shall comply with the applicable development
standards pursuant to the Regina Zoning Bylaw, No. 9250;

(f) Access. Vehicle entry and exit from the Property shall comply with the applicable
development standards pursuant to the Regina Zoning Bylaw, No. 9250, and

® Other. Except as expressly modified or otherwise stated herein, the Property shall be
subject to and comply with the applicable requirements and provisions of the Regina
Zoning Bylaw No. 9250.

Conditions. The Contract Zone and this Agreement shall be conditional on the following:

(a) A barrier including parking curbs or fencing shall be erected between the parking area on
the subject property and the public laneway;

(b) The applicant shall plant two large calliper Brandon Elms at the front of the property
along Cameron Street;

(c) A maximum of nine units shall be developed in the apartment building and shall be
consistent with the attached plans and elevations, prepared by Gilchuck Design and
Drafting and dated October 3, 2012 and November 28, 2012;

(d) The applicant shall submit a detailed landscape plan identifying all plant material, their
species, and location to the Development Officer for review and approval prior to the
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issuance of a building permit;

(e) None of the land or buildings comprising the Property shall be developed or used except
in accordance with this Agreement.

Time Limits.
(a) The City’s approval to initiate the proposed development on the Property shall be valid
for a period of two years from the Effective Date.

Compliance with Laws Other than Zoning. The Owner/Applicant agrees to comply with and
to conform to the requirements of every applicable statute, law, bylaw, code and order in
connection with its development, use or occupancy of the Property, which govern the Property
and not to use either the land or building for any unlawful purpose.

Termination. Subject to the requirements of The Planning and Development Act, 2007, this
Agreement may be terminated or declared void by the City if:

(a) the Property is developed or used contrary to the provisions of this Agreement; or
(b) the development fails to meet a time limit prescribed in this Agreement.

Re-Zoning on Termination. In the event that this Agreement is declared void or otherwise
terminated or expires, the zoning of the Property shall revert to the following:

(a) R4 — Residential Older Neighbourhood Zone

Liability on Termination and Indemnity. In the event that this Agreement is declared void or
otherwise terminated, the City shall not be liable to the Owner/Applicant for any compensation,
reimbursement or damages or account of profit or account of expenditures in connection with the
Profit.

Departure or Waiver. Departure from or waiver of the terms of this Agreement shall be
deemed not to authorize any prior or subsequent departure or waiver and the City shall not be
obligated to suffer any continued departure or grant further waiver(s). No alteration or
modification of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be binding unless the same is in
writing and signed by the parties.

Severability. If any covenant or provision of this Agreement is deemed to be void or
unenforceable in whole or in part, it shall not be deemed to affect or impair the validity of any

other covenant or provision of this Agreement.

Governing Jurisdiction. This Agreement shall be governed and interpreted exclusively in
accordance with the laws of the Province of Saskatchewan.

Amendment of Agreement.
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(a) Pursuant to The Planning and Development Act, 2007, the council of the City may, on
the application by the Owner/Applicant or any subsequent owner of the Property:

(1) vary this Agreement,
(ii) enter into a new agreement; or
(iii)  extend any time limit established in this Agreement.

(b) Notwithstanding clause (a), the provisions hereof may not otherwise be modified, unless
design modifications are approved by the Development Officer, in his/her sole
discretion, pursuant to that certain policy document approved by the Council of the City
on or about March 25, 1991 and entitled Guidelines for Changes to Contract Zones.

Notice. Any notice required to be given by the parties under the terms hereof shall be in writing
and may be delivered personally or mailed in a properly stamped and addressed envelope to the
party to be notified at the address as follows:

(a) to the City at: Director of Planning and Sustainability
City of Regina
P. O. Box 1790
Regina, SK S4P 3C8

(b) to the Owner/Applicant at: PR Investments Inc.
Attention: Wade Probe
1547 Anson Road
Regina, SK S4P OEI

Registration of Agreement. The parties acknowledge and agree that:

(a) this Agreement is made pursuant to section 69 of The Planning and Development Act,
2007;

(b) the City shall register an interest against the title(s) to the Property based on the terms of
this Agreement and, upon such registration, this Agreement shall be binding on and run
with the Property as against the Owner/Applicant and the Owner/Applicant’s heirs,
executors, administrators, successors and assigns; and
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e the interest mentioned in clause (b) shall register in preference to all other encumbrances
against the Property save and except those acceptable to the City.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties have hereunto affixed their hand and seal on the day and
year first above written.

THE CITY OF REGINA

(seal)

City Clerk

P.R. INVESTMENTS IN

Per:

P&
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AFFIDAVIT VERIFYING CORPORATE SIGNING AUTHORITY

CANADA ) it zf ZAAZ P@ , of Regina,
PROVINCE OF SASKATCHEWAN ) Saskatchewan, MAKE OATH AND

TO WIT: ) SAY THAT:

T

)
— gnn i A
1. I am an Officer of K/g _L/[/L/E _{{/7415&)79,71/%% in the within agreement; and

corporate seal.

2. I'am authorized by the corporation to execute the document withous4ffixi

SWORN BEFORE ME at Regina, )

Saskatchewan, this__ (O day )

of MO 201 ) Z
) &

)

(hlee=oux foc )
A COMMISSIONER FOR OATHS in
and for the Province of Saskatchewan.

My Commission expires (O T2) \80\%
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ABSTRACT

BYLAW NO. 2014-37

THE REGINA ZONING AMENDMENT BYLAW, 2014 (No. 9)

PURPOSE:

ABSTRACT:

STATUTORY
AUTHORITY:

MINISTER’S APPROVAL:

PUBLIC HEARING:

PUBLIC NOTICE:

REFERENCE:

AMENDS/REPEALS:

CLASSIFICATION:

INITIATING DIVISION:

To amend Regina Zoning Bylaw No. 9250.

The proposed amendment would allow for the development
of a ninth dwelling in the existing apartment whereas the
existing contract zone restricts the number of dwellings to
eight.

Section 69 of The Planning and Development Act, 2007.

N/A

Required, pursuant to section 207 of The Planning and
Development Act, 2007.

Required, pursuant to section 207 of The Planning and
Development Act, 2007.

Regina Planning Commission Meeting, April 23, 2014
RPC14-16.

Amends Regina Zoning Bylaw No. 9250.
Regulatory

Community Planning and Development

INITIATING DEPARTMENT: Planning



day of

Approved as to form this

, 20

City Solicitor

BYLAW NO. 2014-39

THE REGINA ZONING AMENDMENT BYLAW, 2014 (No. 10)

THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REGINA ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:
1 Regina Zoning Bylaw No. 9250 is amended in the manner set forth in this Bylaw.
2 Chapter 19 - Zoning Maps (Map No. 2484) and Chapter 20 - Agreements is

amended by rezoning the lands in Regina, Saskatchewan, as outlined on the map
attached as Appendix "A", legally described as:

Legal Address: Portion of SW 11-17-20 W2M, being proposed new Lot
FF, Block 72
Civic Address: N/A

Current Zoning: UH - Urban Holding
Proposed Zoning: C - Contract

3 The City Clerk is authorized to execute the Contract Zone Agreement attached as
Appendix "B" and forming part of this Bylaw.

4 This Bylaw comes into force on the date an interest based on the Contract Zone
Agreement is registered in the Land Registry at Information Services Corporation.

READ A FIRST TIME THIS 26th DAY OF May 2014.
READ A SECOND TIME THIS 26th DAY OF May 2014.
READ A THIRD TIME AND PASSED THIS 26th DAY OF May 2014.
Mayor City Clerk (SEAL)
CERTIFIED A TRUE COPY
City Clerk
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Appendix "B"

THIS AGREEMENT made as of this day of ,2014,

BETWEEN:
THE CITY OF REGINA
in its capacity as approving authority
pursuant to The Planning and Development Act, 2007
(the “City™)

-and -

Dream Asset Management Corporation
(the “Owner”)

-and -

Hope's Home Incorporated
(the “Applicant™)

CONTRACT ZONE AGREEMENT

WHEREAS:

A. The City has an approved official community plan as contemplated in section 69 of The Planning
and Development Act, 2007 that contains guidelines respecting the entering into of agreements
for the purpose of accommodating requests for the rezoning of lands to permit the carrying out of
a specific proposal, referred to as “contract zoning™; and

B. The Owner is or is entitled to become the registered owner of the lands and buildings (if any)
located at the southwest corner of Tutor Way and James Hill Road, Regina, Saskatchewan, and
legally described as:

A portion of SW 11-17-20 W2M, being proposed for subdivision as:

Surface Parcel(s):
Reference Land Description: Lot FF, Block 72, Plan , Extension

€. The Owner/Applicant has applied to the City to have the Property rezoned from UH - Urban
Holding to C-Contract to permit the use of the Property for the carrying out of a specific proposal
described as: Multipurpose Care Facility (the “Proposal”).
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NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

1.

2.

Preamble. The preamble forms an integral part of this Agreement.

Establishment of the Contract Zone. The City hereby agrees that the zoning of the Property
shall be a contract zone (C-Contract) pursuant to the provisions of The Planning and
Development Act, 2007 and Design Regina: The Official Community Plan Bylaw, No. 2013-48 to
accommodate the Applicant’s Proposal (“Contract Zone™).

Effective Date. The effective date of this Agreement shall be the date of passage of the bylaw
by City Council authorizing the Contract Zone (the “Effective Date”), it being understood by the
Owner and the Applicant that the relevant amendments to the Zoning Bylaw shall not take effect
until an interest based on this Agreement is registered against the affected title(s) to the Property
at the Saskatchewan Land Titles Registry.

Permitted Development and Use. The development and use of the Property permitted within
the Contract Zone shall be as follows:

(a) Permitted use. Existing and proposed use and development on the Property shall be
limited to a multipurpose care facility, which shall include a daycare centre, respite care
facility for children and accessory offices, and a supportive living home for adults. The
occupancy of each facility shall not exceed the licensing limits imposed by the Province
of Saskatchewan or the intensity of use of the City’s R6 — Multiple Residential zone,
whichever is less.;

(b) Site Layout and External Design. The site layout and design of existing and proposed
development on the Property shall be consistent with the site plan prepared by P3A and
dated February 21, 2014, which is attached to this Agreement as Schedule “A”;

(c) Landscaping. Landscaping for the Property shall comply with the applicable
development standards for landscaped areas pursuant to Chapter 15 of the Regina Zoning
Bylaw, No. 9250,

(d) Parking. Parking stalls, including no less than four barrier free stalls and nine daycare
drop-off spaces, shall be consistent with the site plan prepared by P3A and dated
February 21, 2014, which is attached to this Agreement as Schedule “A”.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parking requirements for the Property shall at all
times comply with applicable development standards for parking areas pursuant to
Chapter 14 of the Regina Zoning Bylaw, No. 9250,

(e) Signage. Signage on the Property shall comply with applicable development standards
for signage pursuant to Chapter 16 of the Regina Zoning Bylaw, No. 9250,

63) Access. Vehicle entry and exit from the Property shall be via one access point at Tutor
Way and one access point at Waterer Crescent as shown on the site plan attached as
Schedule A or such other locations as the City, in its sole discretion, may approve; and
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() Other. Except as expressly modified or otherwise stated herein, the Property shall be
subject to and comply with the applicable requirements and provisions of the Regina
Zoning Bylaw No. 9250.

Conditions. The Contract Zone and this Agreement shall be conditional on the following:

(a) Execution of a shared access agreement between the owner of the subject property and
the adjacent property owner for the shared driveway along James Hill Road,;

(b) Execution of a shared access agreement between the owner of the subject property and
the adjacent property owner for the future shared breezeway; and

(c) None of the land or buildings comprising the Property shall be developed or used except
in accordance with this Agreement.

Time Limits.
(a) The City’s approval to initiate the proposed development on the Property shall be valid
for a period of two years from the Effective Date.

(b) The term of this Agreement and the Contract Zone provided for herein shall be in effect
from the Effective Date until the termination of this use.

Compliance with Laws Other than Zoning. The Owner and Applicant agree to comply with
and to conform to the requirements of every applicable statute, law, bylaw, code and order in
connection with its development, use or occupancy of the Property, which govern the Property
and not to use either the land or building for any unlawful purpose.

Termination. Subject to the requirements of The Planning and Development Act, 2007, this
Agreement may be terminated or declared void by the City if:

(a) the Property is developed or used contrary to the provisions of this Agreement; or
(b) the development fails to meet a time limit prescribed in this Agreement.

Re-Zoning on Termination. In the event that this Agreement is declared void or otherwise
terminated or expires, the zoning of the Property shall revert to the following:

(a) R6 — Residential Multiple Housing.

Liability on Termination and Indemnity. In the event that this Agreement is declared void or
otherwise terminated, the City shall not be liable to the Owner or Applicant for any
compensation, reimbursement or damages or account of profit or account of expenditures in
connection with the Property.

Departure or Waiver. Departure from or waiver of the terms of this Agreement shall be
deemed not to authorize any prior or subsequent departure or waiver and the City shall not be
obligated to suffer any continued departure or grant further waiver(s). No alteration or



13.

14.

15.
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modification of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be binding unless the same is in
writing and signed by the parties.

Severability. If any covenant or provision of this Agreement is deemed to be void or
unenforceable in whole or in part, it shall not be deemed to affect or impair the validity of any
other covenant or provision of this Agreement.

Governing Jurisdiction. This Agreement shall be governed and interpreted exclusively in
accordance with the laws of the Province of Saskatchewan.

Amendment of Agreement.

(a) Pursuant to The Planning and Development Act, 2007, the council of the City may, on
the application by the Owner and Applicant or any subsequent owner of the Property:

(i) vary this Agreement;
(i) enter into a new agreement; or
(1ii)  extend any time limit established in this Agreement.

(b) Notwithstanding clause (a), the provisions hereof may not otherwise be modified, unless
design modifications are approved by the Development Officer, in his/her sole
discretion, pursuant to that certain policy document approved by the Council of the City
on or about March 25, 1991 and entitled Guidelines for Changes to Contract Zones.

Notice. Any notice required to be given by the parties under the terms hereof shall be in writing
and may be delivered personally or mailed in a properly stamped and addressed envelope to the
party to be notified at the address as follows:

(a) to the City at: Director of Planning
City of Regina
P. 0. Box 1790
Regina, SK S4P 3C8

(b) to the Owner at: Dream Asset Management Corporation
#105-1230 Blackfoot Drive
Regina, SK, S4S 7G4
Attention: Vice President, Land

to the Applicant at: Hope’s Home Incorporated
2300 Dewdney Avenue
Regina, SK, S4R 1HS
Attention: Executive Director
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16. Registration of Agreement. The parties acknowledge and agree that:

(a) this Agreement is made pursuant to section 69 of The Planning and Development Act,
2007,

(b) the City shall register an interest against the title(s) to the Property based on the terms of
this Agreement and, upon such registration, this Agreement shall be binding on and run
with the Property as against the Owner and the Owner’s heirs, executors, administrators,
successors and assigns; and

(c) the interest mentioned in clause (b) shall register in preference to all other encumbrances
against the Property save and except those acceptable to the City.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties have hereunto affixed their hand and seal on the day and
year first above written.

THE CITY OF REGINA

(seal)

City Clerk

DREAM ASSET MANAGEMENT

CORPORATION
Per:

% “t /m; S Ié‘ r-oF ('M
Per:

HOPE’S HOME INCORPORATED
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ABSTRACT
BYLAW NO. 2014-39

THE REGINA ZONING AMENDMENT BYLAW, 2014 (No. 10)

PURPOSE: To amend Regina Zoning Bylaw No. 9250.
ABSTRACT: The proposed rezoning would allow for a multipurpose
facility and accommodate a daycare centre, a respite care

facility, a supportive living home and accessory offices.

STATUTORY
AUTHORITY: Section 69 of The Planning and Development Act, 2007.

MINISTER’S APPROVAL: N/A

PUBLIC HEARING: Required, pursuant to section 207 of The Planning and
Development Act, 2007.

PUBLIC NOTICE: Required, pursuant to section 207 of The Planning and
Development Act, 2007.

REFERENCE: Regina Planning Commission Meeting April 23, 2014
RPC14-17.

AMENDS/REPEALS: Amends Regina Zoning Bylaw No. 9250.

CLASSIFICATION: Regulatory

INITIATING DIVISION: Community Planning and Development

INITIATING DEPARTMENT: Planning



day of

Approved as to form this

, 20

City Solicitor

BYLAW NO. 2014-40

THE REGINA ZONING AMENDMENT BYLAW, 2014 (No. 11)

THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REGINA ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:
1 Regina Zoning Bylaw No. 9250 is amended in the manner set forth in this Bylaw.

2 Chapter 19 - Zoning Maps (Map Nos. 2284 and 2484) are amended by rezoning the
lands in Regina, Saskatchewan, as outlined on the map attached as Appendix "A",

legally described as:

Legal Address: Habour Landing Phase 10 Stage 1
Portion of Parcel X, Plan No. 101926436

Civic Address: N/A

Current Zoning: UH - Urban Holding

Proposed Zoning:  As detailed in the following table

Zone Lots
DCD 12 - Suburban Narrow Lot | Lots 1-7 in Block 72 and all of Blocks 70,
Residential 73, 74 and 75.

RS - Residential Medium Density | Lots 8-54 of Block 72 and all of Block 71
R6 - Residential Multiple Housing | Parcel GG in Block 72 and Parcel AA

3 This Bylaw comes into force on the day of passage.
READ A FIRST TIME THIS 26th DAY OF May 2014.
READ A SECOND TIME THIS 26th DAY OF May 2014.
READ A THIRD TIME AND PASSED THIS 26th DAY OF May 2014.
Mayor City Clerk (SEAL)
CERTIFIED A TRUE COPY
City Clerk
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ABSTRACT

BYLAW NO. 2014-40

THE REGINA ZONING AMENDMENT BYLAW, 2014 (No. 11)

PURPOSE:

ABSTRACT:

STATUTORY
AUTHORITY:

MINISTER’S APPROVAL:

PUBLIC HEARING:

PUBLIC NOTICE:

REFERENCE:

AMENDS/REPEALS:

CLASSIFICATION:

INITIATING DIVISION:

To amend Regina Zoning Bylaw No. 9250.

The proposed amendment will allow the applicant to rezone
the lands within the Harbour Landing 10-1 subdivision from
UH-Urban Holding to various residential zones to
accommodate a variety of housing options in the Harbour
Landing concept plan area.

Section 46 of The Planning and Development Act, 2007.

N/A

Required, pursuant to section 207 of The Planning and
Development Act, 2007.

Required, pursuant to section 207 of The Planning and
Development Act, 2007.

Regina Planning Commission Meeting April 23, 2014
RPC14-18.

Amends Regina Zoning Bylaw No. 9250.
Regulatory

Community Planning and Development

INITIATING DEPARTMENT: Planning



DE14-48

BOUNDARY ALTERATION — 2014 PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTIONS

Good evening City Council, Members of the Public,

My name is Chad Novak, and | am the founder of the Saskatchewan Taxpayers Advocacy Group, which
is a grassroots organization that is intended to bring a level of accountability and transparency to our
Municipal Governments. You can find more information on our efforts at www.chad4regina.com.

This evening, you have before you a recommendation to approve Property Tax Exemptions to the tune
of 5686,077.28, just for the 2014 year alone. This is due to annexation of lands that many Regina
residents have raised concerns about, given that it has not been demonstrated to them that there is an
actual need for these extra lands. We are very cognisant of the fact that we have an affordable housing
and homelessness crisis in our fair City. However, that is not intended to be used as justification to
simply annex lands at your free will, nor is it an excuse to encourage further housing development,
reqgardless of the market price, or considering the very real barriers to entry in our current housing

market. | reference the Housing First initiative that is proven worldwide, and is only now being
implemented in Regina, due to a requirement by the Federal Government to do so. Many other
jurisdictions also have the province and municipalities assisting with the Housing First initiative
financially, but it appears as though this is not the situation here in Regina, or in Saskatchewan.

Upon a detailed review of the list of properties included in the report before you this evening, it seems
as though this is not being done in a fair and equitable manner with the rest of the citizens of Regina,
and it is our genuine concern that these exemptions are being offered to individuals, companies or
organizations that simply don’t financially require the exemptions. Of course these land owners would
argue that they are entitled to the exemptions, given that they aren’t being provided the same level of
services as other serviced lots in Regina, but this is also the same concern that your very administration
have raised with the desire for Wascana Village to be built to the Southeast of our City Limits. If it can be
demonstrated that these land owners are actually some of the parties that formally requested that the
City of Regina annex their lands in the first place, then it would be reasonable to assume that they
should have been cognisant of the potential financial implications of such a request. Surely the City of
Regina would have provided them full disclosure of the pros and cons of annexation, during the due
diligence process of the annexation.



It is our genuine concern that this is unfair to other taxpayers in the City of Regina who have requested
similar tax exemptions or other assistance by the City of Regina and been refused for a number of
different reasons. Other perceived unfair exemptions, most notably, of course, would be the
Saskatchewan Roughriders, Regina Airport Authority and the Royal Regina Golf Course. The latter of
which was, thankfully, denied by your administration.

We currently have a situation in Regina that is unacceptable to many taxpayers, on a socially responsible
level, but also on a moral level. We have crumbling roads around us, core infrastructure that needs
desperate attention, and a pension deficit in the hundreds of millions of dollars. Yet, our administration
doesn’t seem to bat an eye at approving record debt for a stadium, tax breaks for those that have failed
to demonstrate the financial need for these breaks, and taxpayers being told they must pay thousands
of dollars to get their basic infrastructure restored to the condition it was when the properties were
built some 50-75 years ago. | don’t know about you, but | would consider yourselves lucky that
taxpayers of Regina haven’t started a tax revolt, similar to how businesses did back in the 1980’s, which
led to the elimination of the business tax. This is a democracy that we live in, and all taxpayers deserve

fair and equitable treatment, and | would respectfully request that this be considered this evening

when you vote on this recommendation before you, and deny every single request in full.

Thank you for your time, and | would gladly answer any questions or concerns you may have.

Chad A. Novak, CMA

Saskatchewan Taxpayers Advocacy Group

www.chad4regina.com
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CR14-57
May 26, 2014

To:  His Worship the Mayor
and Members of City Council

Re:  Boundary Alteration — 2014 Property Tax Exemptions

RECOMMENDATION OF THE FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE
- MAY 6, 2014.

1. That City Council approves the property tax exemptions outlined in this report.
2. That the City Solicitor be instructed to bring forward the necessary bylaw to provide for
the property tax exemptions listed in Appendix A, Appendix B and Appendix C.
FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE — MAY 6, 2014

Mr. Chad Novak, representing the Saskatchewan Taxpayers Advocacy Group, addressed the
Committee.

The Committee adopted a resolution to concur in the recommendation contained in the report.
Councillors: Bryon Burnett, Bob Hawkins, Terry Hincks and Wade Murray were present during
consideration of this report by the Finance and Administration Committee.

The Finance and Administration Committee, at its meeting held on May 6, 2014, considered the

following report from the Administration:

RECOMMENDATION

1. That City Council approves the property tax exemptions outlined in this report; and

2. That the City Solicitor be instructed to bring forward the necessary bylaw to provide for
the property tax exemptions listed in Appendix A, Appendix B and Appendix C.

CONCLUSION

The exemptions outlined in Appendix A, Appendix B and Appendix C are consistent with the
recommended tax mitigation principles outlined in Boundary Alteration Report CM13-14
approved November 6, 2013, and it is recommended that the exemptions in Appendix A,
Appendix B and Appendix C be approved.



BACKGROUND

Unless specifically exempted, all property in a municipality is subject to assessment and taxation
pursuant to The Cities Act. There are specific exemptions provided in subsection 262(1) of The
Cities Act. Further, City Council may, by bylaw, exempt from taxation the whole or part of any
land or improvement designated in the bylaw. Council may also enter into agreements, on any
terms and conditions, to exempt property from taxation for not more than five years.

DISCUSSION

On November 6, 2013, Council approved the resolutions for boundary alteration, tax mitigation
principles and tools for impacted landowners; specifically recommendation (6), that City Council
approve the recommended tax mitigation principles and the recommended tax tools for impacted
land owners, and direct Administration to communicate these to impacted land owners as
outlined in the body of Report CM13-14.

The impact of the boundary alteration approved November 6, 2013 on individual landowners is
that of new assessments on the lands incorporated into the city. The possible change in their
property taxes upon annexation was a concern raised by impacted land owners. While each
property’s assessment and taxation is unique, the following principles and tools were adopted by
Council November 6, 2013:

1. Protect the property owner, whose land is annexed into the City of Regina from
unreasonable financial hardship.

2. Balance the need to protect the City’s financial viability with protecting its long-term
growth needs.

(98]

Property tax mitigation will be applied through existing legislation.
4. Property tax mitigation will expire over time either when the property is developed or
when the time frame for the mitigation expires.

The approved tax mitigation tools are:

a) For those properties where the main property use is commercial or industrial in the
Commercial Corridor (attached as Appendix A): Five-year phase-in — For the properties
where the main current property use is commercial or industrial in the commercial
corridors on Victoria Avenue East and Dewdney Avenue East. Since these properties are
in the imminent development area, tax mitigation should include a phase-in of the tax
change between RM tax levels to City tax levels over five years. The amount of
exemption will then decrease each year by 20 per cent over the next four years so that in
year five the property will not have an exemption and will pay taxes based on the City tax
levels. This option takes into account that a number of the ratepayers in this category
would also receive the benefit of no longer paying the water surcharge.

b) For lands within the 300,000 growth plan (attached as Appendix B): Five-year tax
mitigation — These properties will receive an exemption that will bring the first year
property taxes to what they would have paid in the RM. This exemption amount
(percentage) will be applied for the five years and serve as the base for taxation in years
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two to five. After five years, the exemption will expire and the properties will be subject
to property taxation based on the City tax levels.

c) For lands beyond the 300,000 growth plan: Long-term 15-year Administration.
Recommended tax mitigation (attached as Appendix C): For long-term agricultural land,
a long-term remedy is proposed - These properties will receive an assessment exemption
that will bring the first year property taxes to what they would have paid in the RM. This
exemption amount (percentage) will be applied for five years and serve as the base for
taxation in years two to five. After five years, the exemption will expire and
Administration would recommend that Council provide another five-year exemption to
identified long-term properties. Administration would continue recommending the
exemption to identified long term properties within this annexation area up to a
maximum of fifteen years exemption.

The levels of mitigation applied to the land will in general reflect the levels of services that the
property is receiving. Existing uses of the land will continue until the land is planned for
development. Development will occur in a staged approach consistent with growth management
policies in the current OCP and development regulations in the Zoning Bylaw to ensure an
orderly transition from primarily agricultural land to urban development.

There are some linear properties, such as pipelines and railways, within the annexed area and
crossing through the city not receiving tax mitigation. Properties where the tax difference
between the 2013 rural taxes and the 2013 estimated municipal tax is less than $10.00 will not
receive tax mitigation.

The estimated total municipal share of all the exemptions in Appendices A-C approximates
$381,058.22 and represents the first year of a five-year exemption policy for lands within the
2013 Boundary Alteration area.

RECOMMENDATION IMPLICATIONS

Financial Implications

The property tax exemptions listed in Appendices A-C total approximately $668,380.42 in
foregone tax revenue. The City's share of this foregone revenue is approximately $381,058.22.

Environmental Implications

None with regard to this report.

Policy and/or Strategic Implications

The annexation and tax mitigation is aligned with the strategic objective of managing growth.

Other Implications

None with regard to this report.



Accessibility Implications

None with regard to this report.

COMMUNICATIONS

All affected land owners have received communication with respect to the resolutions previously
passed by Council regarding assessment exemptions for lands within the Boundary Alteration
area. The exemptions outlined in this report will be reflected on 2014 Amended Assessment
Notices and Property Tax Notices for the affected properties.

Copies of the report will be provided to the Regina Public School Board, Regina Catholic School
Board and the Regina Library Board.

DELEGATED AUTHORITY

This report requires the approval of City Council along with the passage of a bylaw.
Respectfully submitted,

FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE

C

Ashley Thompson, Secretary




Appendix A - Commercial Corridor Annexation Tax Exemptions

Foregone Total
Account Civic Address Assessed Value % Exempt Municipal Tax Foregone Tax
10268941 601 CONDIE ROAD 7,400 66.72% 58.64 105.50
10268897 1101 CONDIE ROAD 760,300 44.61% 4,028.48 7,248.16
10268078 1201 CONDIE ROAD 1,019,800 59.14% 7,163.43 12,888.65
10268935 9800 DEWDNEY AVENUE 4,075,000 66.76% 32,312.36 65,645.87
10269001 1701 KENNEDY STREET 1,515,000 68.17% 12,266.78 22,070.76
10268997 4000 E VICTORIA AVENUE 5,686,000 34.43% 23,252.45 41,836.51
10268077 4001 E VICTORIA AVENUE 6,675,500 47.71% 37,828.40 68,062.00
10268975 4150 E VICTORIA AVENUE 2,642,100 23.85% 7,484.49 13,466.31
10268139 4200 E VICTORIA AVENUE 565,400 57.41% 3,855.38 6,936.71
10268141 4330 E VICTORIA AVENUE 529,300 54.48% 3,425.02 6,162.40
10268982 4500 E VICTORIA AVENUE 2,824,300 43.87% 12,660.74 22,679.21
10268140 4600 E VICTORIA AVENUE 929,300 45.03% 4,970.30 8,942.71
10268992 4601 E VICTORIA AVENUE 1,539,800 50.97% 8,775.81 15,475.15
10268143 4750 E VICTORIA AVENUE 2,240,600 38.01% 10,115.49 18,200.09
10269034 4850 E VICTORIA AVENUE 1,733,300 43.28% 8,910.16 16,031.42
10268142 5050 E VICTORIA AVENUE 3,158,900 46.90% 17,596.79 31,660.67
10269444 5200 E VICTORIA AVENUE 3,242,600 54.05% 19,586.42 35,180.42
10269032 1700 ZINKHAN STREET 1,798,600 69.16% 14,774.55 26,582.81

Commercial Corridor Totals: 40,943,200 47.89% 229,065.69 419,175.35



Appendix B - Lands Within the 300,000 Growth Plan

Foregone Total

Account Civic Address Assessed Value % Exempt Municipal Tax Foregone Tax
10268073 4800 ARMOUR ROAD 143,800 90.87% 852.65 1,217.05
10268955 5000 ARMOUR ROAD 241,500 67.80% 1,069.43 1,926.93
10268952 5800 ARMOUR ROAD 287,100 63.42% 1,189.41 2,264.27
10269505 4400 CAMPBELL STREET 101,200 39.43% 260.39 745.49
10269420 4500 CAMPBELL STREET 345,100 60.12% 1,355.31 2,697.39
10268134 4800 CAMPBELL STREET 145,000 89.59% 848.09 1,223.87
10268098 4820 CAMPBELL STREET 32,600 15.33% 32.59 223.24
10268135 605 CONDIE ROAD 248,600 67.16% 1,090.44 1,980.11
10268147 1300 N COURTNEY STREET 2,931,000 18.63% 5,608.97 7,577.56
10268772 1400 N COURTNEY STREET 154,500 86.22% 869.44 1,292.61
10268149 1550 N COURTNEY STREET 911,700 31.92% 1,608.67 6,210.62
10268977 1600 N COURTNEY STREET 154,500 86.61% 873.37 1,293.90
10269249 1750 N COURTNEY STREET 156,400 86.00% 878.45 1,308.63
10268773 1760 N COURTNEY STREET 801,600 49.75% 2,208.47 6,035.83
10269002 4001 E DEWDNEY AVENUE 206,800 73.50% 992.59 1,674.95
10269240 5201 E DEWDNEY AVENUE 405,600 26.49% 678.37 2,834.20
10268898 10000 DEWDNEY AVENUE 206,900 73.53% 993.00 1,675.08
10268080 10600 DEWDNEY AVENUE 257,700 66.31% 1,116.02 2,047.87
10269161 11400 DEWDNEY AVENUE 255,400 66.26% 1,104.95 2,028.81
10269248 12400 DEWDNEY AVENUE 242,800 67.97% 1,077.76 1,937.96
10268744 13000 DEWDNEY AVENUE 384,400 42.24% 1,060.60 2,857.61
10268743 600 FLEMING ROAD 253,200 66.65% 1,101.95 2,013.57
10269421 4245 GARRY STREET 16,200 14.85% 15.69 110.82
10268133 4820 GARRY STREET 32,600 15.33% 32.59 223.24
10272004 600 PINKIE ROAD 215,800 72.01% 1,014.38 1,740.27
10269452 1301 N PINKIE ROAD 259,700 66.23% 1,123.33 2,063.31
10268088 5813 SECORD AVENUE 19,500 21.31% 27.08 135.92
10269403 4801 E VICTORIA AVENUE 244,700 67.54% 1,078.96 1,950.23

300,000 Population Totals: 9,655,900 41.62% 30,162.95 59,291.34



Appendix C - Lands Beyond the 300,000 Growth Plan

Assessed Foregone Total
Account Civic Address Value % Exempt Municipal Tax Foregone Tax
10269919 6500 26TH AVENUE 36,200 95.77% 226.36 300.35
10269307 6501 26TH AVENUE 27,100 94.35% 166.97 221.55
10268615 6500 28TH AVENUE 27,100 94.35% 166.97 221.55
10268381 6501 28TH AVENUE 36,100 95.75% 225.17 298.77
10269859 6501 29TH AVENUE 19,400 92.06% 115.90 153.78
10268166 5800 31ST AVENUE 9,700 20.57% 12.94 17.17
10269453 9000 9TH AVENUE N 330,700 42.32% 877.73 1,244.50
10268137 9001 9TH AVENUE N 924,300 40.93% 2,173.18 3,5679.20
10268996 9300 9TH AVENUE N 261,300 66.44% 1,133.99 1,504.69
10268086 9801 9TH AVENUE N 398,800 49.07% 1,278.14 1,695.97
10268942 11601 9TH AVENUE N 220,800 83.31% 1,201.27 1,593.96
10269920 3800 ABBOTT STREET 25,300 15.20% 25.09 33.29
10269976 3801 ABBOTT STREET 36,200 15.38% 36.35 48.23
10269309 3900 ABBOTT STREET 27,100 15.24% 26.97 35.78
10269310 3901 ABBOTT STREET 27,100 15.24% 26.97 35.78
10268609 4020 ABBOTT STREET 10,800 14.37% 10.07 13.35
10268671 4037 ABBOTT STREET 10,800 14.37% 10.07 13.35
10268467 4069 ABBOTT STREET 1,800 70.96% 7.58 10.05
10269461 4101 ABBOTT STREET 14,400 14.74% 13.83 18.34
10268733 4157 ABBOTT STREET 10,800 14.37% 10.07 13.35
10268153 6700 ARMOUR ROAD 225,600 70.49% 1,038.18 1,377.56
10268774 7801 ARMOUR ROAD 779,100 51.30% 2,213.40 3,813.65
10269162 8201 ARMOUR ROAD 259,200 66.37% 1,123.34 1,490.56
10269961 3800 BELMONT STREET 36,200 15.38% 36.35 48.23
10269994 3801 BELMONT STREET 78,200 21.68% 110.72 146.91
10269341 3900 BELMONT STREET 27,100 15.24% 26.97 35.78
10269372 3901 BELMONT STREET 27,100 15.24% 26.97 35.78
10268587 4021 BELMONT STREET 14,400 14.74% 13.83 18.34
10268454 4028 BELMONT STREET 21,700 15.10% 21.34 28.30
10268944 4053 BELMONT STREET 12,600 14.58% 11.94 15.84
10268184 4117 BELMONT STREET 21,700 15.10% 21.34 28.30

10268537 4201 BELMONT STREET 19,400 12.63% 15.90 21.09



Assessed Foregone Total
Account Civic Address Value % Exempt Municipal Tax Foregone Tax
10269141 3300 CAMPBELL STREET 254,800 67.18% 1,117.90 1,483.34
10269058 3500 CAMPBELL STREET 456,800 31.88% 918.73 1,543.51
10272977 3600 CAMPBELL STREET 219,200 49.59% 1,291.09 2,322.96
10268567 4044 CAMPBELL STREET 16,200 14.85% 15.69 20.81
10268864 4112 CAMPBELL STREET 12,600 14.58% 11.94 15.84
10269430 4244 CAMPBELL STREET 16,200 14.85% 15.69 20.81
10269119 4300 CAMPBELL STREET 18,000 14.95% 17.57 23.31
10269410 3801 CARLTON STREET 36,200 15.38% 36.35 48.23
10269477 3900 CARLTON STREET 27,100 15.24% 26.97 35.78
10269492 3901 CARLTON STREET 18,100 14.95% 17.57 23.31
10269093 4021 CARLTON STREET 27,100 15.24% 26.97 35.78
10268444 4040 CARLTON STREET 18,100 14.95% 17.57 23.31
10268208 4108 CARLTON STREET 10,800 14.37% 10.07 13.35
10268198 4140 CARLTON STREET 18,000 14.95% 17.57 23.31
10269390 4200 CARLTON STREET 10,800 14.37% 10.07 13.35
10268150 1950 N COURTNEY STREET 155,800 86.29% 877.32 1,164.11
10268886 2200 N COURTNEY STREET 910,300 36.84% 1,843.66 3,212.68
10269455 3801 COURTNEY STREET 673,800 41.22% 1,813.93 2,406.91
10268981 4800 E DEWDNEY AVENUE 1,108,400 35.97% 2,381.37 3,651.73
10269902 3800 DONALD STREET 36,100 14.96% 35.18 46.67
10268518 3809 DONALD STREET 14,400 14.74% 13.83 18.34
10268656 3841 DONALD STREET 18,100 14.95% 17.57 23.31
10268274 3901 DONALD STREET 27,100 15.24% 26.97 35.78
10268492 3920 DONALD STREET 18,100 14.95% 17.57 23.31
10268810 4021 DONALD STREET 27,100 15.24% 26.97 35.78
10268399 4112 DONALD STREET 10,800 14.37% 10.07 13.35
10269508 4121 DONALD STREET 10,800 14.37% 10.07 13.35
10268508 3821 ELLICE STREET 19,900 15.03% 19.45 25.80
10268718 3848 ELLICE STREET 14,400 14.74% 13.83 18.34
10268289 3900 ELLICE STREET 27,100 15.24% 26.97 35.78
10268815 3901 ELLICE STREET 14,400 14.74% 13.83 18.34
10269024 3933 ELLICE STREET 12,600 14.58% 11.94 15.84
10268796 4020 ELLICE STREET 27,100 15.24% 26.97 35.78
10268220 4101 ELLICE STREET 28,900 14.74% 27.66 36.69



Assessed Foregone Total
Account Civic Address Value % Exempt Municipal Tax Foregone Tax
10269296 4200 ELLICE STREET 19,400 92.06% 115.90 153.78
10268648 3821 FORT STREET 18,100 57.48% 67.58 89.67
10268701 3840 FORT STREET 18,100 14.95% 17.57 23.31
10268912 3916 FORT STREET 19,900 15.03% 19.45 25.80
10268622 3921 FORT STREET 12,600 14.58% 11.94 15.84
10269538 4036 FORT STREET 10,800 14.37% 10.07 13.35
10268409 4100 FORT STREET 36,100 14.96% 35.18 46.67
10268828 4101 FORT STREET 36,100 14.96% 35.18 46.67
10268375 4200 FORT STREET 10,800 14.37% 10.07 13.35
10269061 4201 FORT STREET 19,400 12.63% 15.90 21.09
10268629 3900 GARRY STREET 21,700 15.10% 21.34 28.30
10269006 4036 GARRY STREET 18,000 14.95% 17.57 23.31
10268885 4100 GARRY STREET 36,100 14.96% 35.18 46.67
10268874 4129 GARRY STREET 12,600 14.58% 11.94 15.84
10269072 4200 GARRY STREET 19,400 12.63% 15.90 21.09
10268156 4301 GARRY STREET 18,000 14.95% 17.57 23.31
10268641 5900 PARLIAMENT AVENUE 9,700 20.57% 12.94 17.17
10268437 5909 PARLIAMENT AVENUE 15,600 20.75% 20.94 27.77
10268823 5920 PARLIAMENT AVENUE 9,700 20.57% 12.94 17.17
10269018 6000 PARLIAMENT AVENUE 11,700 21.06% 16.00 21.22
10268257 6001 PARLIAMENT AVENUE 9,700 20.57% 12.94 17.17
10268775 6101 PARLIAMENT AVENUE 19,500 21.31% 27.08 35.92
10268616 6116 PARLIAMENT AVENUE 11,700 21.06% 16.00 21.22
10268482 6200 PARLIAMENT AVENUE 19,500 21.31% 27.08 35.92
10269083 6201 PARLIAMENT AVENUE 19,500 21.31% 27.08 35.92
10269352 6300 PARLIAMENT AVENUE 19,500 21.31% 27.08 35.92
10269035 6301 PARLIAMENT AVENUE 19,500 21.31% 27.08 35.92
10269331 6400 PARLIAMENT AVENUE 19,500 21.31% 27.08 35.92
10268589 6401 PARLIAMENT AVENUE 19,500 21.31% 27.08 35.92
10269257 6500 PARLIAMENT AVENUE 19,500 21.31% 27.08 35.92
10268599 6501 PARLIAMENT AVENUE 19,500 21.31% 27.08 35.92
10272003 100 N PINKIE ROAD 330,900 69.32% 1,497.66 1,987.25
10269047 400 PINKIE ROAD 5,922,900 58.33% 41,034.69 73,830.86
10268151 1801 N PINKIE ROAD 398,300 42.76% 1,112.26 1,475.86



Assessed

Foregone

Total

Account Civic Address Value % Exempt Municipal Tax Foregone Tax
10269150 6000 E PRIMROSE GREEN DRIVE 5,100 50.59% 16.82 22.31
10269053 6100 E PRIMROSE GREEN DRIVE 167,800 6.49% 129.34 232.71
10269151 6200 E PRIMROSE GREEN DRIVE 3,753,800 62.22% 27,615.60 49,614.91
10268974 6201 E PRIMROSE GREEN DRIVE 2,629,100 50.89% 15,891.48 28,592.42
10268072 1101 PRINCE OF WALES DRIVE 139,100 91.99% 835.84 1,109.08
10268964 500 TOWER ROAD 141,800 47.12% 435.98 578.49
10269247 2331 TOWER ROAD 437,100 54.38% 1,478.04 2,123.99
MULTIPLE 2501 - 3201 TOWER ROAD 515,200 66.62% 2,084.32 3,106.43
10269241 3601 TOWER ROAD 641,400 49.19% 1,858.06 2,912.35
10268146 4201 TOWER ROAD 417,700 65.92% 2,340.70 4,111.95
10269055 4301 TOWER ROAD 414,900 26.22% 604.53 1,035.82
10268154 5601 E VICTORIA AVENUE 179,000 79.37% 927.63 1,230.87
Beyond 300,000 Population Totals: 24,958,100 53.05% 121,829.58 207,610.59



DE14-49

2013 GENERAL OPERATING FUND RESULTS

Good evening City Council, Members of the Public,

My name is Chad Novak, and | am the founder of the Saskatchewan Taxpayers Advocacy Group, which
is a grassroots organization that is intended to bring a level of accountability and transparency to our
Municipal Governments. You can find more information on our efforts at www.chad4regina.com.

This evening, you have before you a recommendation to approve a report on the 2013 General
Operating Fund Results, which includes such items as a $85 MILLION Utility Reserve, and a $17 MILLION
Land Development Reserve, to point out only two startling figures.

It is our genuine concern that, given the results laid out before you tonight, there was no reasonable
justification for the property tax increase this year, or last, or the utility rate increases over the past
number of years, and anticipated in the next couple of years, at minimum. We have tens of millions of
dollars in our “savings account”, to use a laymans term, that we are doing absolutely nothing with. It
should be noted that in your five year projections, even the utility reserve isn’t expected to be depleted
significantly, which raises serious concerns, as this is the reserve that should be tapped into for major
capital projects, such as the much debated P3 Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrades. It also raises
major concerns amongst taxpayers who are currently paying 50-70% more than our counterparts in
some parts of Western Canada, just to be granted the ability to turn on the tap and have fresh drinking
water, and water for every day uses, such as laundry and bathing. The justifications that our current and
previous Councils have provided to the taxpayers just don’t hold water, pardon the pun.

We hereby request that, based on the information before you in this report, you request City
Administration to revisit the 2014 Property Tax Increases, and the Utility Rate increases not only for
2014-2016, but also for the past several years. It would be our desire to have Regina fall in line with
other municipalities of similar size in Canada. This would require an immediate cut of at least 50% to our
Water Rates, and we would gladly meet with you to discuss our request in further detail, if it is
determined that this is something that Council feels appropriate for the taxpayers of our great City.

As stated previously, we are only wanting fair and equitable treatment for all taxpayers of Regina, and
we feel that basic needs such as tap water, and reasonable tax rates, in relation to the services received,



are reasonable requests in order to provide a socially responsible governing body and to return Regina
to being one of the most cost effective municipalities in North America to live and do business in.

Thank you for your time, and | would gladly answer any questions or concerns you may have.

Chad A. Novak, CMA

Saskatchewan Taxpayers Advocacy Group

www.chad4regina.com

CuAD Nevak FOrR TAXPAYERS OF REGINA

Founder of the
Saskatchewan Taxpayers Advocacy Group

Proupry Stanoimng LIe For ReGina
-~ INDIVIDUAL TAXPAYER RIGHTS --
DEDICATED TO ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY

- Your Ciy -----ceemacaaa.
—------- Your Voice ---—--------

Your Solution ----

@ ChaddRegina Chad4Regina Taxpayers




CR14-58
May 26, 2014

To:  His Worship the Mayor
and Members of City Council

Re: 2013 Results — General Operating Fund

RECOMMENDATION OF THE FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE
- MAY 6, 2014

That this report be approved by City Council as provided.

FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE — MAY 6, 2014

Mr. Chad Novak, representing the Saskatchewan Taxpayers Advocacy Group, addressed the
Committee.

The Committee adopted a resolution to concur in the recommendation contained in the report.
Recommendation #2 does not require City Council approval.

Councillors: Bryon Burnett, Bob Hawkins, Terry Hincks and Wade Murray were present during
consideration of this report by the Finance and Administration Committee.
The Finance and Administration Committee, at its meeting held on May 6, 2014, considered the

following report from the Administration:

RECOMMENDATION

1. That this report be approved by City Council as provided.
2. That this report be forwarded to the May 26, 2014 meeting of City Council.

CONCLUSION

This report provides information on the operating results for 2013. The surplus for the General
Operating Fund of the City of Regina on an unconsolidated basis was $2.4 million. This amount
has been audited by the City’s External Auditors, Deloitte. The draft 2013 annual report is also
being presented to the Finance and Administration Committee as a separate report. The draft
2013 annual report includes consolidation of other entities, accruals, amortization and other
financial transactions that generate different financial results, based on a different basis of
accounting required by the Public Sector Accounting Standards.

BACKGROUND

The purpose of this report is to provide information on the 2013 operating results of the General
Operating Fund.



DISCUSSION

The 2013 General Operating Fund results report an operating surplus of $2.4 million. The
surplus mainly arose from higher revenues than budgeted reflecting increases in service related
revenues, municipal surcharges on electrical and gas distribution, and government grants and
transfers. It is important to note that the General Operating Fund reflects mill rate supported
activities, but does not include capital expenditures, the City’s water and sewer utility, and real
estate activities.

For 2013, the General Operating Fund has an operating surplus of $2,431,929.62

General Operating Budget Summary

2013 Budget 2013 Actuals Difference Percentage
Revenues $ 340,883,377 $ 354,651,611 $§ 13,768,234 4.0%
Expenditures 340,883,377 352,219,681 11,336,304 3.3%
Difference $ - $ 2,431,930 _$ 2431930 0.7% "

Note 1: Total Surplus as a percentage of total budgeted revenues.

The General Operating Fund includes the activities of a number of cost centres such as the
Landfill, Golf Courses, and Cemeteries. For these items, revenues are netted against
expenditures and the difference is transferred to the appropriate reserve to fund future capital
expenditures. This increased transfer to the reserve is reflected in the operating results as an
increased expenditure. In the case of Regina Police Services, a similar process is followed, with
any increase in revenues over expenditures transferred to the Regina Police Reserve. This
process is also carried out with the activities associated with building/development permitting
activities resulting in a transfer to the Planning & Sustainability Reserve.

Revenues

General Operating Revenues were $13.8 million higher than budget; following are the significant
differences:
— $7.4 million in fees and charges revenue:

*  $2.5 million increase in Building Permit Fees

* $1.7 million in miscellaneous revenues

* $1.1 million increase in SAF Administration Fees

*  $0.7 million increase in Transit Fees

* $1.4 million is related to facility rentals, recreation and programming fees

— $3.4 million in Government Grants and Transfers, $2.1 million is the unbudgeted revenue
from Saskatchewan Housing Corporation for the North West Land Housing Development,
$0.5 million is the increase in the Paratransit grant, $0.5 million in Federal and Provincial
Police grants, and $0.3 million for the Municipal Operating Grant,

— $3.2 million increase in Provincial Electrical Distribution surcharges

— $1.7 million increase related to internal revenues associated with funding from reserves
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— ($1.4) million decrease in Licenses, Levies & Fines mainly associated with decreases in
Paved & Gravel Alleys

— ($0.5) million decrease in Taxation Revenues

Expenditures

In addition to the anticipated increase in operating revenues, General Operating Expenditures
were $11.3 million higher than budget which mainly results from unbudgeted transfers to
reserves. Excluding reserves transfers there was an under spend of $3.2 million. The main
reasons for expenses being lower than budgeted are:

— $3.5 million decrease in debt servicing costs as the City has not borrowed as much as
planned
— $1.9 million in under spending across a number of operating areas

This under spending was offset by over spending in the following:
— $(1.3) million in Police expenditures

— $(0.9) million associated with City Operations arising from overspends in Winter Road
Maintenance ($3.3 million), Transit ($2.0 million) and Roadways ($0.8 million) offset by
under spending in Fire ($2.1 million), Open Space and Environmental ($0.9 million) and
Asphalt, Concrete and Sweeping & Alley Services ($2.3)

— $14.5 million increase in Reserve Transfers;

e $7.4 million to the Asset Revitalization Reserve

e $2.5 million to the Planning & Sustainability Reserve (arising from increased
revenues associated with Building Permit Fees)

e $2.0 million to the Social Development Reserve (related to the payment received

from Saskatchewan Housing Corporation from sale of North West Lands)

$0.7 million to the RRI Stadium Reserve

$0.5 million to the Police Reserve

$0.2 million to the Golf Course reserve

$1.2 million other transfers to cemeteries, pest management, parking , facilities

and other smaller reserves

Reserve Transfers

In 2013, the net impact to the General Fund Reserve for 2013 was a decrease of $1.5 million for
a year end balance of $25.1 million, excluding the year end surplus. The following amounts
were transferred from the General Fund Reserve for the various stated purposes.

- CR13-90 — $1.5 million for purchase of North Railway lands and Elphinstone lands
- CR13-66 - $0.4 million for Regional Planning processes

- $0.3 million for the 2013 approved general capital program

- CR13-74 - $0.1 million for property purchase at 1675 Winnipeg Street
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The reserve received $0.5 in funding associated with the reserve policy review which transferred
amounts from other reserves associated with the amount over the maximum allowable.

In accordance with the Regina Administration Bylaw, the following 2013 Operating Surpluses
(Deficits) were closed to the following reserves: $2.4 million to the GFR, $36.3 million to the
General Utility Reserve, $2.5 million to the Planning & Sustainability Reserve, $9.2 million to
the Landfill Reserve and $1.2 million to the Asphalt Reserve,$0.4 million to the Regina Grants
Reserve, $0.5 million to the Cemetery Reserve, $0.5 million to the Employer Provided Parking
Reserve, $0.7 million to the Golf Course Reserve, and $0.3 million to the Pest Management
Reserve. As well, a transfer to $17.9 million was made to the Land Development Reserve due to
significant land sales during the year.

Comparison to Annual Financial Statements and Public Sector Accounting Guidelines

The results summarized in this report for the General Operating Fund are not directly comparable
to the consolidated results reported in the annual financial report. The reasons are:

1. The operations of the General Operating Fund are only one component of the consolidated
operations included in the annual financial report. The annual financial report consolidates
the financial position and results of the City and related entities, including the Regina Public
Library, Regina Regional Opportunities Commission, Regina Downtown Business
Improvement District, Regina’s Warehouse Business Improvement District, and Buffalo
Pound Water Administration Board. The City’s operations that are consolidated include the
operating and capital funds for the General Fund, Water and Sewer Utility Fund, and the
Other Funds, including the Real Estate Operations.

2. Pursuant to the requirements of The Cities Act, the annual financial report is prepared in
accordance with the accounting standards issued by the Public Sector Accounting Board
(PSAB) of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants. The operating and capital
budgets are prepared in accordance with Sections 128 through 130 of The Cities Act. There
are differences between the annual financial report and the annual budgets in the way certain
financial transactions are reported. The major differences are with respect to:

— Transfers to and from reserves,

— Recording of tangible capital assets and amortized depreciation,

— Accounting for debt principal and interest payments; and,

— Accounting for liabilities for vacation, sick credits and closure, and post closure landfill
costs.

RECOMMENDATION IMPLICATIONS

Financial Implications

In accordance with the Regina Administration Bylaw 2003-69, Schedule A, the surplus in the
General Operating Fund is transferred to the General Fund Reserve.

The City’s non-consolidated 2013 audited reserve position is $185.2 million as compared to
$146.3 million in 2012 (see Appendix A). The 2013 audited General Fund Reserve balance is
$27.6 million or7.8 % of annual operating expenditures. After the 2014 Council approved
operating and capital budget transfers, the General Fund Reserve balance is projected to be $20.4
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million or 5.5% of annual operating expenditures. The General Fund Reserve balance is within
the targeted balance range of $18.6 million to $37.2 million, representing 5% to 10% of annual
budgeted operating revenues.

The $27.6 million audited General Fund Reserve includes the transfer of the 2013 general
operating surplus of $2.4 million.

Environmental Implications

There are no environmental implications related to this report.

Policy and/or Strategic Implications

Improved financial reporting and communication increases City Council and citizen’s
understanding of the City’s operational results. 2013 City reserves levels have increased from
2012 levels after significant 2013 capital funding was provided from these reserves. The
maintenance of these reserve levels continues to ensure financial sustainability and enables the
City to invest in future programs and assets.

Other Implications

None identified in this report.

Accessibility Implications

None identified in this report.

COMMUNICATIONS

No communication plan is required for this report. The annual results of the General Operating
Fund are part of the consolidated financial statements, which are audited and will be released
publicly on May 16, 2014 as part of the public agenda for the May 26, 2014 City Council
meeting.

DELEGATED AUTHORITY

This report must be forwarded to City Council.
Respectfully submitted,

FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE

Ashley Thompson, Secretary




Appendix A

Reserve Balances

2013 to 2012 Comparisons

(in thousands)

2013
Reserve
Change
2013 2012 2012 to Percentage
Reserve (Audited) (Audited) 2013 Chang_je

General Utility Reserve 85,179 63,026 22,153 26%
General Fund Reserve 27,574 27,051 523 2%
Landfill Reserve 21,402 18,318 3,084 14%
Land Development Reserve 17,710 6,496 11,214 63%
Social Development Reserve 5,654 4,145 1,509 27%
Asset Revitalization Reserve 5,611 7,644 -2,033 -36%
Winter Road Maintenance Reserve 3,523 3,523 - -
Regina Police Service General Reserve 1,440 2,354 -914 -63%
Equipment Replacement Reserve 4,534 4,354 180 4%
Asphalt Reserve 819 1,246 -427 -52%
Golf Course Reserve 554 730 -176 -32%
Grants Reserve 512 936 -424 -83%
Planning & Sustainability Reserve 6,726 3,990 2,736 41%
Employer Provided Parking Reserve 685 537 148 22%
Cemetery Reserve 507 520 -13 -3%
Technology Reserve 757 644 113 15%
Regina Police Service Radio Equipment Reserve 155 111 44 28%
Pest Management Reserve 337 296 41 12%
Facility Reserve 600 400 200 -
Regina Revitalitation Initiative Reserve'" 710 - 710 -
Operational Commitments Reserve® 161 - 161 -
Total Reserves 185,150 146,321 38,829 21%

Note:

1. Regina Revitalization Initiative Reserve was approved by Council on July 8, 2013 (CR13-101)

2. Operational Commitments Reserve was approved by Council on December 19, 2011 (CR11-173




2013 Annual Report and
Financial Statements
May 6, 2014
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Highlights

» City of Regina Annual Report & Financial
Statements

» Your Financial staff has provided 21
consecutive “Awards of Financial Statement
Excellence” as recognized by the
international GFOA

~
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2013 Financial Statements -
Overview

» Overall increase in net financial assets of $35.4
million

» An operating surplus of $153.1 million that is closed
to an accumulated surplus of $1.45 billion

» Tangible capital assets of $1.324 billion

» Total reserves of $203.8 million

» Revenue increases of $58.0 million in 2013

» Expense increases of $11.9 million in 2013

~
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Financial Assets & Liabilities

> 2013 net financial assets increased $35.4 million
from 2012 to $115.8 million

Change in Assets:
— Accounts/Taxes Receivable increased $11.0 million
— Long term investments increased $24.9 million
Change in Liabilities:
— Deferred revenue has increased $6.5 million.
— The landfill liability increased $3.2 million.
— Accounts/taxes payable decreased by $5.5 million
— Long term debt decreased by $4.3 million

~
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Operations

» The City and related entities generated a $153.1 million
increase in accumulated surplus in 2013

> $117.7 million of this increase is related to non-financial
assets, such as tangible capital assets, with a $35.4 million
increase in Net Financial Assets

» The difference between the $2.4 million General Operating
Surplus and the $153.1 million increase in accumulated

surplus is a result of:

— Consolidation of other entities, such as the City Utility and the Public Library
— Transfers to Reserves

— Repayment of Debt

— PSAB requirements (accruals)

vestment in capital & amortization against capital

~
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Reconciliation of Surplus

2013 General Operating Surplus
Operating results of other Organizations
Debt repaid

Net increase in Tangible Capital Assets
Net decrease in Capital Carry-forward
Change in appropriated SA Fees
Decrease in future obligations

Increase in Reserves

Amt Incl. in Operating Results Transferred to a
Reserve

2013 Consolidated Surplus

(millions $)

2.4
(0.5)
4.3
116.5
(8.2)
4.2
(3.8)
40.6

(2.4)

153.1

~

City of Regina | REGlNA




Revenues

> Revenue of $586.6 million in 2013 is a $58.0
million increase (11%) from 2012

— Fees and charges revenue increased $31.3 million

— City Municipal taxes/grants in lieu/others increased $13.2
million
— Electrical/gas distribution revenues are up $3.9 million

— Government operating/capital transfers are up $1.9 million
— Land sales are up $15.5 million

— Contribution to Tangible Capital Assets are down $4.8 million
— No gains on portfolio investments were realized which is a $3.0
million reduction from 2012

~
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Expenditures

» Expenses of $433.5 million in 2013 are a $11.9
(2.8%) million increase from 2012

— Wages and benefits have increased $8.5 million an increase
of 3.9%

— Amortization expense has increased $3.5 million
— Cost of utilities have increased $3.5 million

— Materials, Supplies and Contracted services have decreased
$3.2 million, a decrease of 2.6%

~
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Reserves

» Total consolidated reserves are $203.8 million, an
increase of $40.6 million

» City of Regina Reserves are $185.2 million, a $38.8
million increase from 2012 reserves

e The General Fund Reserve increased $0.5 million to $27.5
million

» The General Utility Reserve increased $22.2 million to $85.1
million

« Land Development Reserve increased $11.2million to $17.7
million

e The Landfill Reserve increased $3.1 million to $21.4 million

 All other City of Regina Reserves increased a total of $1.9
million in 2013

~
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Sustainability

Financial Assets to Liabilities Ratio

This indicator reports the ratio of a government’s financial assets
to 1ts liabilities.

Sustainability 1s the degree to which a government can maintain
its existing financial obligations without increasing its debt or tax
burden.

A result lower than one indicates liabilities exceed financial
assets and future revenues will be required to pay for past
transactions and events.

A result higher than one indicates financial assets exceed
liabilities and financial resources are on hand that can finance
future operations.

~
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Sustainability

Financial Assets to Liabilities Ratio

1.6
1.4+
1.2

0.8
0.6
0.4
0.2

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

The City's financial assets to liabilities ratio has increased from 1.07
to 1.44 from 2009 to 2013 showing improved sustainability.
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Flexibility
Interest to Total Revenue Ratio

Flexibility 1s the degree to which a government can change its
debt or tax burden and still meet its existing financial
obligations.

This ratio indicates the proportion of total revenue that 1s
required to pay interest charges on debt and therefore, 1s not
available to pay for program costs.

The more a government uses revenues to meet the interest
costs on past borrowing, the less will be available for program
spending.

~
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Flexibility

Interest to Total Revenue Ratio

1.00% 1

0.75% -

0.50% -

0.25% -

0.00% -
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

The City’s ratio decreased from about .9% to .61% from 2010 to
2013. The City’s flexibility has increased since 2010.

~

City of Regina | REGl NA




Vulnerability

Government Transfers to Total Revenue Ratio

 This indicator reports the ratio of Federal and Provincial
government transfers to total revenues.

* Vulnerability 1s the degree to which a government is dependent
on sources of funding outside of its control or 1s exposed to
risks that could impair its ability to meet its existing financial
obligations.

* An increasing dependence on other levels of government for
revenues means that the City 1s increasingly vulnerable to the
fiscal decisions of another.

~
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Vulnerability

Government Transfers to Total Revenue Ratio

25%0

20%

15% 1

10% 1
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The City has reduced its reliance on government transfers from 25%
of total revenues in 2009 to 12.7% in 2013 which indicates decreasing
vulnerability.
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DE14-50

May 20, 2014

To: His Worship the Mayor Fougere
and Members of City Council

Re: Funding Request — Downtown Visual Identity Guidelines

In support of City Council’s consideration of the above-noted agenda item at its
May 26, 2014 meeting, I will be present representing Regina Downtown BID and
will offer to answers any questions that City Council might have regarding this
report.

Sincerely,

Judith Veresuk

Regina Downtown Business Improvement District
1822 Scarth St., 2nd Floor | Regina, SK S4P 2G3 | p: 306.359.7541 | f: 306:359:9060

info@reginadowntown.ca | www.reginadowntown.ca




Regina Downtown Business Improvement District
1822 Scarth St., 2nd Floor | Regina, SK S4P 2G3 | p: 306.359.7541 | f: 306:359:9060
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CR14-59
May 26, 2014

To:  His Worship the Mayor
and Members of City Council

Re:  Funding Request — Downtown Visual Identity Guidelines

RECOMMENDATION OF THE FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE
- MAY 6, 2014.

1. That $34,000 be transferred from the Downtown Deferred Revenue Account and paid to
Regina Downtown Business Improvement District to support the Downtown Visual
Identity Guidelines Project, as recommended in this report.

2. That the City of Regina enter into an agreement with the Regina Downtown Business
Improvement District to govern the management of the Downtown Visual Identity
Guidelines project and the future use and ownership of the Project deliverables, to be
negotiated at the discretion of the Executive Director of Community Planning and
Development.

FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE — MAY 6, 2014.

Ms. Judith Veresuk, representing the Regina Downtown Business Improvement District,
addressed the Committee.

The Committee adopted a resolution to concur in the recommendation contained in the report.
Recommendation # 3 does not require City Council approval.

Councillors: Bryon Burnett, Bob Hawkins, Terry Hincks and Wade Murray were present during
consideration of this report by the Finance and Administration Committee.
The Finance and Administration Committee, at its meeting held on May 6, 2014, considered the

following report from the Administration:

RECOMMENDATION

1. That $34,000 be transferred from the Downtown Deferred Revenue Account and paid to
Regina Downtown Business Improvement District to support the Downtown Visual
Identity Guidelines Project, as recommended in this report.

2. That the City of Regina enter into an agreement with the Regina Downtown Business
Improvement District to govern the management of the Downtown Visual Identity
Guidelines project and the future use and ownership of the Project deliverables, to be
negotiated at the discretion of the Executive Director of Community Planning and
Development.

3. That this report be forwarded to the May 26, 2014 City Council meeting for approval.



CONCLUSION

The City of Regina (City) wishes to partner with the Regina Downtown Business Improvement
District (RDBID) to develop a series of guidelines to establish standards for furnishings and
signage in the downtown to create a coherent atmosphere throughout the area. The
Administration recommends that $34,000 be allocated from the Downtown Deferred Revenue
Account (DDRA) to augment the funds and in-kind services being provided by the RDBID for
this project.

BACKGROUND

The Regina Downtown Neighbourhood Plan (RDNP) directs the City to develop a wayfinding
strategy (Action C.6) and to enhance the public realm through street furniture, shelters and
pedestrian scaled lighting (Action T.2). The intent of the Downtown Visual Identity Guidelines
project is to establish standards to address the signage and furnishing requirements of the RDNP
in order to create a coherent image for the downtown’s public realm that will be implemented in
the future by the City, the RDBID and through development agreements as new construction
occurs.

In 2012, the DDRA was established to receive funds from the over-dedication of surface parking
stalls in the Office Area Zone and from downtown development agreements. Funds in the
account are to be spent on urban design upgrades as well as transit and traffic improvements
within the downtown area. The current balance of the account is $238,000. Future additional
account revenues from existing development agreements will total approximately $450,000 over
the next 10 years.

DISCUSSION

The guidelines that will result from this project will provide significant benefits to the City.
They will help to reduce administrative costs for City staff and developers and their consultants
by establishing a standard suite of furnishings and signage for downtown. Establishing this set
of standards will help streamline the design and design review processes for both internal and
private developments. City staff will provide developers with our furnishing standards up-front
before the design process begins, so developers and designers will not have to spend time
choosing or seeking approval for project specific furnishings and staff will not have to spend
time evaluating proposed furnishings. Standard furnishings will also allow for simpler, more
effective management of the City’s inventory of replacement parts. Familiarity with the
proposed furnishings will also allow for more efficient maintenance practices.

By partnering with the RDBID on this project, the City’s investment is effectively doubled while
staff time to manage the project is reduced, enhancing our capacity to work on additional
priorities. The timing of the project is well sequenced in relation to other actions identified in the
RDNP and once completed, will help direct upcoming capital investments in furnishings and
signage within the downtown area. The DDRA is an appropriate funding source for this project
given the alignment between the fund’s terms of reference and the project’s urban design and
operational goals.
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Appendix A outlines the proposed project timelines and deliverables. Upon completion, the
Downtown Visual Identity guidelines will be brought before Council for their approval, thereby
establishing a corporate standard.

RECOMMENDATION IMPLICATIONS

Financial Implications

The proposed development of Downtown Visual Identity Guidelines is a partnership with the
RDBID. The RDBID’s contribution to the project includes $15,000 in capital contributions,
$56,400 in-kind project management staff resources and a commitment to cover any project
contingencies up to $5,000 as outlined below. The City’s proposed contribution to the project is
$34,000 to be funded from the DDRA, plus staff participation on the project steering committee
and through the stakeholder input and review processes. Staff time and capital contributions by
the City will account for roughly 40-50% of the maximum expected project costs.

RDBID In-kind services (per project phase):

Analysis Phase: $7,500 capital contribution to project fees
$9,600 in-kind project management (8 hrs per week, 10 weeks,
$120 per hour)
Identity Development Phase: $7,500 capital contribution to project fees
$15,600 in-kind project management (8 hrs per week, 10 weeks,
$75 per hour and 8 hrs per week, 10 weeks, $120 per hour)
Final Resolution Phase: $31,200 in-kind project management (8 hrs per week, 20 weeks,
$75 per hour and 8 hrs per week, 20 weeks, $120 per hour)

Environmental Implications

None with this report.

Policy and/or Strategic Implications

This investment is aligned with the actions identified in the RDNP. The financial partnership is
aligned with the City’s Strategic Plan, 2014-2017 Direction 2: Improve Financial Viability.

Other Implications

None with this report.

Accessibility Implications

None with this report.

COMMUNICATIONS

Significant public consultations were undertaken during the development of the Regina
Downtown Neighbourhood Plan. The recommended actions identified in the plan, two of which
this project responds directly to, were vetted with the public, internal and external stakeholders.
Further consultation will be undertaken with internal and external stakeholders as a part of this
process.



DELEGATED AUTHORITY

The Committee’s decision on this item requires City Council’s approval.
Respectfully submitted,

FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE

Ao

Ashley Thompson, Secretary
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20 January 2014 File No: 13-37

Agreement

Judith Veresuk, Executive Director

Regina Downtown Business Improvement District
1822 Scarth Street (2nd Floor)

Regina, Saskatchewan

S4P 2G3

RE: REVISED SCHEDULE AND SCOPE OF WORK
VISUAL IDENTITY PROJECT
REGINA DOWNTOWN BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
REGINA, SASKATCHEWAN

Dear Ms. Veresuk:

Thank you for selecting our consulting team to work with you on the proposed project. We are
forwarding our intended scope of work, based on the recent discussion with your team. This scope also

identifies a preliminary schedule / target dates for each phase of the process.

We trust you will find this proposal to your satisfaction. We are available to discuss any item

or scope of work noted herein. We look forward to working with you on this project.

Sincerely,

Meagan Gauthier

KREATE ARCHITECTURE AND DESIGN LTD.

200 - 2300 Dewdney Avenue Kurt Dietrich, Dipl.AT, Dipl.Arch. SAA, MRAIC
Regina, SK S4R 1H5
Phone: 306.585.2400 office@kreate-arch.com

Facsimile: 306.585.2399 www.kreate-arch.com



Visual ldentity

Regina Business Improvement District

Regina, Saskatchewan
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City Solicitor

BYLAW NO. 2014-41

THE PROPERTIES EXEMPT FROM TAXATION AS A RESULT OF THE 2013

MUNICIPAL BOUNDARY ALTERATION BYLAW

THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REGINA ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:

Purpose

1

The purpose of this Bylaw is to exempt certain properties which were annexed
into the City of Regina as a result of the 2013 municipal boundary alteration from
property taxes in whole or in part for the 2014 financial year.

Authority

2

The authority for this Bylaw is subsection 262(3) of The Cities Act.

Definitions

3

In this Bylaw:

“Commercial Corridor Lands” means those lands listed in Schedule “A” to this
Bylaw;

“Lands Within the 300,000 Growth Plan” means those lands listed in Schedule
“B” to this Bylaw; and

“Lands Beyond the 300,000 Growth Plan” means those lands listed in Schedule
“C” to this Bylaw.

Calculation of Exemption

4

The owners or occupants of the Commercial Corridor Lands, the Lands Within
the 300,000 Growth Plan and the Lands Beyond the 300,000 Growth Plan are
partially exempted from payment of property tax payable by the owner or
occupant of the land and improvements to the extent calculated as follows:

= for each identified property the maximum tax payable to the City will be
equal to the amount that would be payable for the same property if it were
assessed by the Rural Municipality of Sherwood for 2014, without any
discount or other exemption, as outlined in the respective schedules A-C.

The exemptions in this Bylaw shall:

(a) apply only to taxes assessed in 2014 on land or improvements; and



Bylaw No. 2014-41

(b) not include special taxes, local improvement levies, public utility charges,
development fees or other such charges imposed by the City or other

taxing authority.

6 The City Assessor shall conclusively determine the scope and extent of any
exemption.

7 This Bylaw comes into force on January 1, 2014.

READ A FIRST TIME THIS  26th DAY OF May 2014.

READ A SECOND TIME THIS 26th DAY OF May 2014.

READ A THIRD TIME AND PASSED THIS 26th DAY OF May 2014.

Mayor City Clerk (SEAL)

CERTIFIED A TRUE COPY

City Clerk
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ABSTRACT

BYLAW NO. 2014-41

THE PROPERTIES EXEMPT FROM TAXATION AS A RESULT OF THE 2013
MUNICIPAL BOUNDARY ALTERATION BYLAW

PURPOSE: To exempt certain properties from property taxes in whole or
in part for the 2014 financial year as a result of the 2013
municipal boundary alteration. 2014 is the first year of a 5
year tax mitigation policy.

ABSTRACT: Provide property tax exemptions to owners and occupants of
land that was annexed into the City of Regina as a result of

the 2013 municipal boundary alteration.

STATUTORY
AUTHORITY: Subsection 262(3) of The Cities Act

MINISTER’S APPROVAL: N/A

PUBLIC HEARING: N/A

PUBLIC NOTICE: N/A

REFERENCE: Finance and Administration Committee, May 6, 2014, FA14-
10

AMENDS/REPEALS: N/A

CLASSIFICATION: Administrative

INITIATING DIVISION: Community Planning and Development

INITIATING DEPARTMENT: Assessment, Tax & Real Estate



CR14-60
May 26, 2014

To:  His Worship the Mayor
and Members of City Council

Re: Utilization of Reserve Funding to Purchase Service Vehicle for Radio Shop

RECOMMENDATION OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
- MAY 14, 2014

That the Chief of Police and City Manager be authorized to purchase and retro-fit a new service
vehicle for the radio shop operation at a cost of approximately $30,000 funded from the Regina
Police Service Radio Equipment Reserve.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE — MAY 14, 2014

Superintendent, Lance Dudar and Communications Manager, Elizabeth Nguyen representing the
City of Regina Police Department were present to answer questions of the Committee.

The Committee adopted a resolution to concur in the recommendation contained in the report.

Mayor Michael Fougere, Councillors: Bryon Burnette, Sharron Bryce, John Findura,
Jerry Flegel, Terry Hincks, Bob Hawkins, Wade Murray, Mike O’Donnell and
Barbara Young were present during consideration of this report by the Executive Committee.

The Executive Committee, at the PRIVATE session of its meeting held on May 14, 2014,
considered the following report from the Mayor’s Housing Commission:

RECOMMENDATION OF THE BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS
- APRIL 22,2014

The Chief of Police and City Manager be authorized to purchase and retro-fit a new service
vehicle for the radio shop operation at a cost of approximately $30,000 funded from the Regina
Police Service Radio Equipment Reserve.

BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS — APRIL 22, 2014
The Commission adopted a resolution to concur in the recommendation contained in the report.
Mayor Michael Fougere, Councillors: Terry Hincks and Wade Murray, and Commissioners:

Ron Rasmussen and Gordon Selinger were present during consideration of this report by the
Board of Police Commissioners.
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The Board of Police Commissioners, at the PRIVATE session of its meeting held on April 22,
2014, considered the following report from the Chief of Police:

RECOMMENDATION

The Chief of Police and City Manager be authorized to purchase and retro-fit a new service
vehicle for the radio shop operation at a cost of approximately $30,000 funded from the Regina
Police Service Radio Equipment Reserve.

CONCLUSION

The Regina Police Service Radio Equipment Reserve provides funding for the City owned
trunked radio system and other expenditures attributable to the operations of the Communication
Technology Unit (CTU). The two vans used to provide technical, preventative, and ongoing
repair and maintenance for the radio system are 15 and 8 years old. The older of the two is no
longer safe to operate and requires replacement at an approximate cost of $30,000. The purpose
of this report is to seek approval to purchase the replacement vehicle through the Regina Police
Service Radio Equipment Reserve.

BACKGROUND

The Regina Police Service and City of Regina co-operatively operate a trunked radio system that
provides two-way radio communication for the Police Service, all City departments and tenants
including EMS, Provincial Corrections, Wascana Centre Authority and various other related
agencies.

The Regina Police Service operates the radio system for all users. The Radio Shop operates with
two technicians and a coordinator and houses all the equipment required to appropriately
maintain the radio system and its components. The radio shop equipment includes two service
vans. The purpose of this report is to seek funding from the Radio Equipment Reserve to replace
one of the existing vehicles.

DISCUSSION

The Regina Police Service operates the radio system on behalf of all users, and charges an
annual fee that funds the operation of the Radio Shop and ensures the appropriate care and
maintenance of all radio infrastructure.

The Radio Shop staff complement includes two technicians. The technicians are responsible to
monitor, repair and maintain the radio system infrastructure and user gear. There are some tasks
that the technicians are responsible for that require that they work together, and in those cases
they require one service vehicle and their various tools and supplies. Much of the time however,
the radio technicians are most effective and productive if they work alone; each going separate
directions, providing support to different infrastructure/users at the same time. They require two
vehicles to effectively do that.
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The current operation includes two minivans as outlined in the following table:

Description Vehicle #1 Vehicle #2
Make Ford Ford
Model Windstar FreeStar
Year 1999 2006

Current Kilometers 60,329 41,214

A vehicle inspection was performed on the Ford Windstar by the RPS Fleet Services in January
2014. During the inspection, Fleet Services determined that the vehicle needed to be pulled out
of service due to the extent of the rusting and damage to the body condition, as well as the
condition of the front brakes, wheel alignment, and the steering components. As it stands, the
vehicle would no longer pass a SGI safety inspection.

It is estimated that a new service vehicle would cost approximately $26,000. The retrofitting to
install shelves and protection screening is approximately $4,000. The total cost of a new vehicle
is approximately $30,000 (PST included). It is general practice for the Police Service to purchase
used vehicles when replacing unmarked vehicles. Predominately the purchases are of “buy-
backs” that are approximately one year old with extremely low kilometers.

There are two methods to fund the replacement of the vehicle. The vehicle could be funded
through the radio shop operating budget. The cost would be included in the total expenditures for
2014, and charges to all users would increase to reflect the cost of the vehicle. In 2015, the
charge to all users would decrease to more normal amounts. Radio system users have indicated
that this is manageable for them, but it is a less than desirable approach as it causes operating
budgets to fluctuate. Sound budget management discourages this type of fluctuation on a one
time basis.

The second and more preferable option to fund these items through the Regina Police Service
Radio Equipment Reserve. The radio program is operated as a cost centre and at the end of each
year any surpluses or deficits to the operation are cleared through the Regina Police Service
Radio Equipment Reserve.

The Regina Police Service Radio Equipment Reserve is intended to fund radio projects as
outlined in The Regina Administration Bylaw No. 2003-69. Specifically the Reserve reads:

15. The account balance for the Regina Police Service Radio Equipment Reserve shall
include the account balance of the reserve at the start of the year adjusted by:

(a) The net revenue or expenditure of the communications equipment service facility
(Radio Shop) of the Regina Police Service established to provide maintenance for the
trunked radio system jointly used by the Regina Police Service and the City; and

(b) Transfers to fund capital or operating expenditures for communication expenditures
or projects by the City and the Board of Police Commissioners as may be approved
by Council and the Board of Police Commissioners, and

(c) Transfers to and from the reserve as approved by Council in accordance with section
8.1 based on the following target minimum and maximum amounts:

(i) a minimum amount equal to or more than $100,000
(ii) a maximum amount equal to or less than 36,000,000
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The reserve fund currently has a balance of $154,925. After the purchase of the service vehicle,
the balance will be approximately $124,925. The option of funding the vehicle purchase from
the reserve is most desirable because it ensures that all users (Police, City, and tenants) are
responsible for the costs of the service vehicle, while ensuring that operating budgets for users do
not fluctuate on a one-time basis to cover the expenditures.

RECOMMENDATION IMPLICATIONS

Financial Implications

If the purchase of the service vehicle is approved, an expense of approximately $30,000 will be
transferred from the Regina Police Service Radio Equipment Reserve to fund the purchase of the
vehicle. The reserve currently has a balance of $154,925 and would be reduced to approximately
$124,925.

Environmental Implications

The environment implications related to this report are minimal. The new vehicle will have
better emission controls than the 1999 vehicle that it is replacing.

Strategic Implications

None with respect to this report.

Other Implications

None with respect to this report.

COMMUNICATIONS

None with respect to this report.

DELEGATED AUTHORITY

Any funding from the Equipment Radio Reserve requires the approval of both the Board of
Police Commissioners and City Council. If approved at Board of Police Commissioners, this
report will be submitted to Executive Committee for consideration. If approved at that time, it
will be forwarded to City Council for final approval.

Respectfully submitted,

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Jim Nicol, Secretary

/mrt



CR14-64
May 26, 2014

To:  His Worship the Mayor
and Members of City Council

Re:  Organizational Appointments for 2014 — School Board/City Council Liaison Committee

RECOMMENDATION OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
- May 14, 2014

1. That the following nominees of the organizational representatives for the School Board/City
Council Liaison Committee be appointed for terms of office effective upon Council approval
and expiring December 31, 2014:

Ms. Julie MacRae
Ms. Debra Burnett
Ms. Katherine Gagne
Mr. Dale West

2. That the members appointed continue to hold office for the term indicated or until their
successors are appointed.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE — MAY 14, 2014

The Committee adopted a resolution to concur in the recommendation contained in the report.
Recommendation #3 does not require City Council approval.

Mayor Michael Fougere, Councillors: Sharron Bryce, Bryon Burnett, John Findura, Jerry Flegel,
Bob Hawkins, Wade Murray, Mike O’Donnell and Barbara Young were present during
consideration of this report by the Executive Committee.

The Executive Committee, at the PRIVATE session of its meeting held on May 14, 2014,
considered the following report from the Administration:

RECOMMENDATION

1. That the following nominees of the organizational representatives for the School
Board/City Council Liaison Committee be appointed for terms of office effective upon
Council approval and expiring December 31, 2014:

Ms. Julie MacRae
Ms. Debra Burnett
Ms. Katherine Gagne
Mr. Dale West

2. That the members appointed continue to hold office for the term indicated or until their
successors are appointed.
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3. That this report be submitted to the May 26, 2014 City Council meeting for
consideration.

CONCLUSION

The Regina Public School Board’s (RPSB) organizational appointments to the Committee
expired on December 31, 2013. The RPSB has put forward the names of the individuals that they
would like as their representatives on the Committee. The appointments would be effective upon
Council approval.

BACKGROUND

Pursuant to Section 4 of City Council’s Procedure Bylaw 9004, the process for filling vacancies
on City boards, commissions and committees has been initiated. The purpose of this report is to
facilitate the appointment of organization representatives to committees for 2014 that are not
affected by the committee structure review and to address any outstanding matters related to the
appointments.

DISCUSSION

The following information is provided on activities that have been carried out in preparation for
the consideration of 2014 appointments and on any related matters.

Organizational Appointments:
Letters were sent to all organizations that have representatives whose terms of office will expire
as of December 2013. These organizations were requested to advise by November 8, 2013 of

their nominations for the upcoming term.

RECOMMENDATION IMPLICATIONS

Financial Implications

There are no financial implications associated with the recommendations of this report.

Environmental Implications

There are no other implications associated with the recommendations of this report.

Strategic Implications

Serving on a committee of Council is both a privilege and means for the public to communicate
with Council on behalf of the community. The time, effort and expertise members dedicate to
committees of Council is invaluable and contributes significantly to Council’s vision.

Other Implications

There are no other implications associated with the recommendations of this report.



Accessibility Implications

There are no other implications associated with the recommendations of this report.

COMMUNICATIONS

After City Council has finalized the appointments, the following communications will take place
the RPSB will be notified in writing

DELEGATED AUTHORITY

Appointments to Boards, Commissions and Committees requires City Council approval.
Respectfully submitted,

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

D)

Mk% Qﬂ/

Jim Nicol, Secretary

\mrt



CR14-61
May 26, 2014

To:  His Worship the Mayor
and Members of City Council

Re: 2013 Annual Report

RECOMMENDATION OF THE FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE
- MAY 26, 2014

1. That the 2013 Annual Report be approved by City Council.

2. That the Director of Finance be authorized to finalize the Annual Report, including the
Financial Statements, with the auditor.

FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE — MAY 6, 2014

The Committee adopted a resolution to concur in the recommendation contained in the report.

Recommendation # 2 of the Finance and Administration Committee report does not require City

Council approval.

Councillors: Bryon Burnett, Bob Hawkins, Terry Hincks and Wade Murray were present during
consideration of this report by the Finance and Administration Committee.

The Finance and Administration Committee, at its meeting held on May 6, 2014, considered the
following report from the Administration:

RECOMMENDATION

1. That the 2013 Annual Report be approved by City Council.
2. That the 2013 Annual Report be forwarded to the May 26, 2014 meeting of City Council.

3. That the Director of Finance be authorized to finalize the Annual Report, including the
Financial Statements, with the auditor.

CONCLUSION

The attached draft Annual Report is submitted for review by the Finance and Administration
Committee and approval by City Council. The 2013 audit process highlights important issues
and provides additional information about those issues to the Finance and Administration
Committee. It also provides the opportunity to discuss those issues with the City’s external
auditors. The publication of the 2013 City of Regina Annual Report including the financial
statements and auditor’s report and the completion of the actions outlined in the Communication
Plan fulfill the requirements of The Cities Act.



BACKGROUND

Attached is a copy of the draft Annual Report of the City of Regina for the year ended December
31, 2013. The Annual Report is submitted pursuant to Section 155 of The Cities Act. Generally
accepted auditing standards require that the governing body of an organization approve the
financial statements prior to finalization of the audit process.

DISCUSSION

The draft consolidated financial statements included in the Annual Report reflect the status of the
City of Regina’s consolidated financial position as at December 31, 2013, as well as providing
an overview of the City’s consolidated financial operations during the year. The consolidated
financial statements include all entities that are accountable to and controlled or owned by the
City. This includes:

Regina Downtown Business Improvement District
Regina's Warehouse Business Improvement District
Regina Regional Opportunities Commission
Regina Public Library

Buffalo Pound Water Administration Board

As required by The Cities Act, the City of Regina follows the standards of the Public Sector
Accounting Board (PSAB). These standards represent generally accepted accounting standards
for local governments.

The financial statements for the General Trust Fund are also included in the Annual Report.
Additional financial information and economic indicators that assist in understanding the City’s
financial operations are contained in the Financial Statement Discussion and Analysis Section of
the report.

The 2013 financial statements show an increase in the City’s accumulated surplus of about
$153.1 million from 2012 to 2013. This figure differs significantly from the 2013 General
Operating Results, which reflect a surplus of $2.4 million, because the consolidated statements
include the City’s utilities and capital funds, as well as the financial results for related entities
noted above. Significant differences also arise because the General Operating Results are based
on the General Operating Budget, which is prepared based on requirements outlined in The
Cities Act, which are different from generally accepted accounting principles. The Budget
requirements are primarily around raising sufficient cash to fund annual operating and capital
requirements and debt repayments, as opposed to the accrual accounting methods which form the
basis of generally accepted accounting principles and main purpose is to show the City’s overall
financial position and results of its operations.
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A reconciliation of the 2013 General Operating Fund surplus with the increase in Accumulated
Surplus is as follows:

2013 General Operating Surplus 2.4
Operating Results of Other Organizations 0.5)
Repayment of Debt Principal:

Repayment of City of Regina Debt 43
Increase in Tangible Capital Assets 116.5
Change in Capital Carry Forward Balances:

Increase in Utility Capital Carry Forward (20.8)

Increase in General Capital Carry Forward 12.6

Change in Appropriated Service Agreement Fees:

Decrease in Water, Wastewater and Drainage 4.2
Increase in Landfill Liability 3.2)
Decrease in Capital Lease Obligations 0.1
Increase in Employee Benefit Obligations 0.7)
Increase in Reserves 40.6
Amounts included in Operating Results and Transferred to Reserves (2.4)
Increase in Accumulated Surplus 153.1

While the accumulated surplus is an important indicator, the most significant portion of the
surplus results from investment in non-financial assets, such as tangible capital assets, which
cannot be used to fund programs or services. For 2013, investment in tangible capital assets and
capital carry forward total $108.3 million. This component of the surplus is funds invested in
infrastructure. An indicator that shows whether the City has resources on hand to finance future
operations is its net financial assets. The City has a positive, but not substantial, net financial
asset position of about $115.8 million, an increase of about $35.4 million from 2012. This
increase in net financial assets is positive, in that it will assist in internally funding significant
future projects such as the expansion of the wastewater treatment plant.

RECOMMENDATION IMPLICATIONS

Financial Implications

The cost of producing the Annual Report along with the cost of the external audit is provided for
in the approved General Operating Budget.

The Annual Report provides information about a number of significant financial issues for the
City, including tangible capital assets, pension costs, landfill closure costs, and debt.

Environmental Implications

The City’s website is the primary method of distributing the Annual Report, which results in a
reduction in paper usage.



Policy and/or Strategic Implications

The 2013 Annual Report provides information on the City’s financial position as at December
31, 2013 and its financial results for the year. These measures are an important part of the
annual assessment of the City’s progress towards providing transparency and assurance to
citizens on the financial management of the City and its assets, an objective that includes both
financial and infrastructure assets. The 2013 financial results reflect actions by the City to build
financial reserves to meet the significant demands for infrastructure over the next few years.

Other Implications

None related to this report.

Accessibility Implications

None related to this report.

COMMUNICATIONS

As required by Section 157 (1) of The Cities Act, a copy of the Annual Report will be sent to the
Minister of Government Relations along with a copy of the Public Accounts.

Section 155(3) of the Act requires that the City publicize its financial statements, or a summary
of them, and the auditor's report in a manner that Council considers appropriate. The Annual
Report will be published on the City's website before September 1, 2014. Printed copies of this
Annual Report will also be available, as required.

DELEGATED AUTHORITY

This report must be forwarded to City Council.
Respectfully submitted,

FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE

£

Ashley Thompson, Secretary
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Government Finance Officers Association

(Canadian Award
for
Financial Reporting

Presented o
City of Regina
Saskatchewan

For its Annual
Financial Report
for the Year Ended

December 31, 2012

B

Executive Director!CEQ

The  Government . Finance  Officers
Association of the United States and
Canada (GFOA) awarded a Canadian
Award for Financial Reporting to the
Corporation of the City of Regina for its
annual financial report for the fiscal year
ending December 31, 2012. The Canadian
Award for Financial Reporting program was
established to.. encourage municipal
governments throughout Canada to publish
high quality financial reports and provide
peer recoghition and technical guidance for
officials preparing these reports.

In order to receive the Canadian Award for
Financial Reporting, a municipal
government must publish an easily readable
and efficiently organized annual financial
report. The contents of the report must
conform to program standards. Such
reports should go beyond the minimum
requirements of generally accepted
accounting principles and demonstrate an
effort to clearly communicate the municipal
government’s financial picture, enhance an
understanding of financial reporting by

municipal governments, and address user

needs.

A Canadian Award for Financial Reporting is
valid for a period of one year only. We
believe our current report continues to
conform to the Canadian Award for
Financial Reporting program requirements,
and we are submitting it to GFOA.

This is the 21* time the City of Regina has
received an award for its Annual Financial
Report.

The 2012 Annual Financial Report for the City of Regina was prepared by the Finance
Department, with contributions from all City Departments and related organizations.

City of Regina, Saskatchewan, Canada

Regina.ca
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Message from the City Manager

May 26, 2014

His Warship, the Mayor
and Members of City Council

| am pleased to submit the City of Regina’'s 2013 Annual
Report. The Annual Report is submitted pursuant to Section
155 of The Cities Act. The Annual Report includes
consolidated financial statements for the City of Regina as
required by the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board
(PSAB). The Annual Report includes financial, statistical and
other information about the City of Regina and related
entities to provide an understanding of the City and the
resources available to the City.

The Annual Report consists of the following sections:

Introduction

The introduction familiarizes readers with the strategic focus"
of Council and its Administration, the political and organizational structure of the City, and the
nature and scope of the services provided by the City. Highlights include key facts and successes
which demonstrate responsible growth, safe communities, and quality of life that the City of Regina
strives to achieve. _ ] .

Financial Statement Discussion and Analysis
This section provides explanations and trend analyses to provide a broader understanding of the
financial statements. ‘

Financial Statements ‘
Detailed financial statements of this section include the Consolidated Financial Statements and the
General Trust Fund financial statements.

The preparation and presentation of the financial statements and related information contained in
this annual report is the responsibility of the City's Administration. The statements have been
prepared on a basis consistent with the recommendations of PSAB. Included in the consolidated
financial statements are those entities that are accountable to and owned or controlled by the City
of Regina. These entities include: Regina Public Library, Regina Regional Opportunities
Commission, Buffalo Pound Water Administration Board, Regina Downtown Business
Improvement District and Regina’s Warehouse Business Improvement District.

City Council appointed the accounting firm of Deloitte, LLP to perform an independent audit of the
City's 2013 financial statements. Their report is included in this document. The City's system of
internal controls ensures the accuracy and reliability of the financial information. The Finance and
Administration Committee reviews the external auditor's audit plan, and ensures corrective action
is taken for weaknesses identified in the City’s internal control system.

1



As noted, the consolidated financial statements include information on the City’s financial position
and operating results, along with those of several related entities. The City’s operations are
typically segmented (General Operating, General Capital, Utility Operating and Utility Capital) for
budgeting and reporting purposes. In the financial statements, segment disclosure is also provided
by divisional areas.

Based on the consolidated information, the following points are noted for 2013:

The City (consolidated entity) had net financial assets of $115.8 million at the end of 2013, an
increase of $35.4 million from net financial assets of $80.4 million at the end of 2012.

Total revenues in 2013 were $586.6 million, an increase of $58 million from 2012. Total expenses
in 2013 were $433.5 million, an increase of $11.9 million from 2012.

The planning, development and monitoring of the annual operating and capital budgets is a
fundamental component of the City’s financial administration. ‘For 2013, the City’s General
Operating Fund ended the year with an operating surplus of approximately $2.4 million. The
surplus is determined on a basis consistent with the presentation of the 2013 General Operating
Budget before PSAS standards are consolidated and applied.

The City’s achievements in providing accurate and articulate financial statements were recognized
by the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) for the
21% consecutive year. GFOA awarded a Canadian Award for Financial Reporting to the City of
Regina for its Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012. The Canadian
Award for Financial Reporting program was established to encourage municipal governments
throughout Canada to publish quality financial reports and to provide peer recognition and technical
guidance for officials preparing these reports. To be awarded a Canadian Award for Financial
Reporting, a government unit must publish an easily-readable and efficiently-organized annual
financial report with content that conforms to program standards. Such reports should go beyond
the minimum requirements of generally accepted accounting principles and demonstrate an effort
to clearly communicate the municipal government’s financial picture, enhance an understanding of
financial reporting by municipal governments and address user needs.

Respectfully submitted,

Glen B. Davies
City Manager & Chief Administrative Officer



Message from the Mayor

Dear Regina citizens:

On behalf of my colleagues on City Council, | am very pleased to
present the 2013 City of Regina Annual Report.

Regina is a growing and prosperous city and leads Canada for a
number of economic performance measures, such as
unemployment rate and GDP growth.

Regina is changing, and is a very different community in so many
ways. We are now a much more confident, prosperous and
vibrant city, and one which is tapping into its significant potential.

There are many exciting opportunities that lie before us: We are
seizing and investing in those opportunities and planning for
growth. }
This report provides a snapshot of the numerous achievements of
2013. They include approval of our new Official Community Plan,

creation of a new Comprehensive Housing Strategy, another year of tremendous building activity, a vote
by residents to proceed with a public private partnership for a new sewage treatment plant, and
progress on the Regina Revitalization Initiative, including the building of a new stadium. We also
showed the country our prowess in hosting both the Juno Awards and the Grey Cup. Our city is, in so
many ways, the envy of Canada.

Our vision is to create a vibrant, inclusive, attractive, sustainable community where people live in
harmony and thrive in oppomihigy. All of our work is geared fo achieving that vision. | want to say a .
special thank you to our many Cfty__ofﬁegina employees who work tirelessly to help us move towards
our vision, and make Regina the great place it is to live, work and raise a family. | also want to applaud
my Council colleagues for their dedication fo this City. They are a dedicated team who work hard every
day on behalf of residents. | can't think of a better group of colleagues with whom to work.

I look forward to another great year in 2014, as our City continues to evolve into an exciting, prosperous
and caring community. At my State of the City Address this year, we paid tribute and recognized a few
individuals and organizations that exemplify our caring nature. Also, a number of our residents helped
their neighbours this winter as “Snowbusters”. Neighbours helping neighbours is a city trait of which we
can be so proud.

| invite you to become involved in our city. You can join a committee, volunteer for one of the numerous
activities, participate at a forum or open house or follow us on Facebook and Twitter. | also encourage
you to stay in touch with us by talking to your Councillor and by attending Council meetings.

This is a great time to be living in Regina. We look forward to your continued support as we work
together in building our city.

Sincerely,
Michael Fougere
Mayor of Regina



Vision, Mission & Values

City Council and the administration are committed to providing a strategic focus for the
future of our community. In 2013, Design Regina, the city’s Official Community Plan,
was approved and work commenced on updating the corporate strategic plan.

- Our Vision
Canada’s most vibrant, inclusive, attractive, sustainable community, where people live
in harmony and thrive in opportunity.

» Vibrant: Young people and creative spirits are inspiring dynamic neighbourhoods and an
exciting downtown, all of which feature first-rate facilities for health, wellness and artistic
expression.

¢ Inclusive: Our community welcomes people. We live the values of respect and trust and
celebrate the strength that comes from our diversity.

e Attractive: Residents and visitors choose Regina because it's clean green, lively, friendly,
affordable and fun.

o Sustainable: People forge a balance between the economic, social, environmental and
cultural dimensions of their decisions by serving as stewards of the resources we share and
by demonstrating leadership.

¢ Harmony: Empathy and understanding come from, and lead to, being safe in our homes
and neighbourhoods; building strong social networks throughout the community creates
synergy and sense of belonging.

» Opportunity: The entrepreneurial spirit powers Regina as a centre of success where
research, innovation and excellence abound.

Our Mission
The City of Regina contributes to'its citizens’ quality of life by providing services and
infrastructure at a level and of a quality that is sustainable

Our Values

s Performance Driven & Accountable: We all demonstrate leadership qualities. We instil a
sense of mutual responsibility, open communication and teamwork while being accountable to
each other, our_community and Council. Our efforts are performance driven and outcome
based.

¢ Responsive & Respectful: We cultivate a professional environment by being responsive and
respectful in our conduct and interactions. We focus on safety, diversity and mutual respect.

e Innovative & Creative: We continuously improve by promoting innovative approaches to
our work and how we serve our community and Council. We are creative, purposeful and
take measured risks which results in new ways of doing business and being cost effective.

» Focused on Excellence: We are results oriented, providing excellent, responsive and accessible
service.



City Council

City Council is responsible for the governance of the City of Regina, subject to
Provincial legislation. Members of City Council are now elected every four years in a
municipal election with the last election held on October 24, 2012. The Mayor is elected
at large. The City of Regina uses a ward system for electing Councillors, with the city
divided into ten wards and one Councillor elected in each ward. City Council’s primary
responsibility is to provide policy direction for the operation of the City. Council also sets
the long-range service goals, and approves operating and capital budgets.

The Mayor presides at all meetings of City Council and is the ceremonial head of the
municipal government. The Mayor and City Clerk are theé. municipality’s symbolic and
official signing officers, respectively. City Council members for the 2012-2016 term are.

Back Row I-r: Councillor Jerry Flegel, Councillor Shawn Fraser,
Councillor Bryon Burnett, Councillor Terry Hincks, Councillor Wade Murray

Front row I-r: Councillor Mike O’'Donnell, Councillor Bob Hawkins,
Councillor Barbara Young, Mayor Michael Fougere, Councillor John Findura,
Councillor Sharron Bryce



City Administration

The City Manager is the Chief Administrative Officer of the City and is appointed by City
Council. The City Manager's Bylaw 2003-70 outlines the responsibilities,
accountabilities, and authority for the position. The City Manager advises Council on all
matters related to the City’s programs and services and is responsible and accountable
for directing and organizing the administration to achieve the goals and objectives of
City Council in the most economic, effective, and efficient manner.

The City of Regina, pursuant to The Police Act, 1990, is responsible for maintaining law
and order within its boundaries. The City appoints a Board of Police Commissioners that
is responsible for the delivery of policing services within the municipality, providing
general direction, policy and priorities and developing long-term plans. The Board
appoints a Chief of Police, who is responsible for the management, administration, and
operation of the Police Service, the maintenance of daw «and order -within the
municipality, and discipline within the Police Service. The annual Police budget must be
approved by City Council.

Corporate Organizational Structure

The City of Regina has three Divisions: City Operations, Community Planning &
Development, and Corporate Services. Each Division is led by a Deputy City Manager;
two Executive Directors ‘are responsible for the offices of Legal and Governance &
Strategy. These Divisions continue to evolve with a focus on continuous improvement.
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Office of the City Manager

The management of the civic administration of the City of Regina (excluding the Regina
Police Service) is the responsibility of the City Manager. Appointed by City Council, the
City Manager’s authority is established by the City Manager's Bylaw 2003-70 and the
Regina Administration Bylaw 2003-69.

The Office of the City Manager is Council’s link to the Administration and is responsible
to City Council for the efficient and effective operation of the City in accordance with
City Council policies, decisions and bylaws. The City Manager provides executive
direction, strategic guidance and governance support on .matters of municipal
governance, strategy and protocol, and ensures the City operates according to
legislative requirements. The City Manager is also responsible for the development of a
Corporate Strategic Plan, annual business plan, and reporting to council on
performance related to those plans, including the budget.

The Office of the City Manager includes the three main Divisions reporting to the City
Manager: City Operations, Community Planning & Development, and Corporate
Services.

Also reporting to the City Manager is the Legal Department, the Regina Revitalization
Initiative Business Unit, and Governance & Strategy which is made up of the Office of
the City Clerk, Communications, Government Relations, and Strategy Management.

CITY MANAGER/
GLEN DAVIES

COMMUNITY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT LEGAL

= 3 e ™y
( DEPUTY CITY MANANGER EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
JASON CARLSTON BYRON WERRY

-
L.

“

CITY OPERATIONS GOVERNANCE& STRATEGY
NEILVANDENDORT JIM NICOL

T 5 T r
ACTING/DEPUTY CITY MANAGER & CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER} EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR - h

CITYCLERK
GOVERNANCE & STRATEGY
JONISWIDNICKI

CORPORATESERVICES
BRENT SIOBERG

DEPUTY CITY MANAGER & CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER }




2013 Highlights

The Strategy Management Branch provided analysis and project management support for
three critical projects over the course of 2013 — the Comprehensive Housing Strategy; the
annexation of lands to support the new Official Community Plan; and the construction of the
Wastewater Treatment Plant.

In 2013, the City of Regina’s use of on-line and interactive communications tools continued
to grow:

¢ The Regina.ca website received more than 1.76 million visits. Thls was an increase of
260 thousand visits, and according to the annual citizen survey; it remains the first
choice of residents when seeking information about City programs and services;

e Access by mobile devices (tablets or smartphones) mcreased 100 per cent and
represents 49 per cent of Regina.ca’s traffic;

e The City Facebook page is approaching 27 thousand'users,.and continues to be the
largest Facebook page of all Canadian municipalities;
City YouTube videos have now been viewed over 100 thousand times;
The City has about 21 thousand Twitter followers, a significant increase from 11
thousand at the end of 2012. '

Communications developed and implemented communications strategies for major
initiatives such as the Regina Revitalization Initiative (RRI), Design Regina, the City’'s new
Official Community Plan, construction of a new Sewage Treatment plant, and launched a
social marketing campaign to support Waste Plan Regina, the City's new plan for waste and
recycling services.

Communications continued to increase the profile of the City and the corporation at events
such as | Love Regina Day, the Home and Garden Show, and Grey Cup 101.

Communications staff were the recipients of a Gold Medal from the prestigious Government
Technology Awards.in the category of “Next Generation Leadership”.

The Risk Management Branch of the Legal Department has investigated 1,307 incidents,
settled 114 third party claims, and paid out a total of $116 thousand, as of December 2013.

The Prosecutions Branch of the Legal Department has had 601 charges in court with fines
assessed of $48 thousand in as of December 2013.

In 2013, the Office of the City Clerk was responsible for planning and operating a
Referendum on the Waste Water Treatment Plant. This process is almost identical to a
municipal election and was carried out in a six week time frame.

Administrative and procedural support was provided for City Council, three quasi-judicial
boards and 16 committees.

Administrative support was provided for an average of 23 meetings per month or 270
meetings, in which 287 agendas were created and delivered to elected officials and citizen
members of committees.



The City’s Open Government program increased the number of available data sets to 24
and the number of public interest topics to 35.

Access to information requests are tracked through the Office of the City Clerk as "formal”
and "informal” requests. In 2013, the Office received and processed 53 formal requests and
29 informal requests. Also in 2013, a special project with the Health Department file
concluded 32 requests processed during the year.

The City of Regina Historical Collection went “virtual” on November 15, 2013. As of
December 13, over 450 images were available for viewing online 24-7. Since the launch, the
collection, hosted by Eloquent Systems Inc., has been accessed hundreds of times by users
from all over the world.

In 2013, the Regina Revitalization Initiative (RRI) focused on the Stadium Project;
specifically, procuring the design, construction and interim financing for the replacement of
Mosaic Stadium through a Public Private Partnership (P3) procurement process. This
included working with our project partners and team of experts to define the project outcome
specifications and implement Request for Qualifications (RFQ) and a Request for Proposal
(RFP) processes. In addition, the project team maoved forward‘with demolition and utility
relocation work required to prepare the site at Evraz Place for the construction of the
replacement for Mosaic Stadium.



City Operations

City Operations provides customer-focused professional and reliable public services
that enable and enhance the quality of life for our community. It ensures that the City's
municipal infrastructure systems are effectively preserved, funded and operated. City
Operations is responsible for operating and maintaining of municipal infrastructure and
assets, involving roadways, traffic, water, drainage, waste water and solid waste to
meet regulatory requirements and community needs. The Division also contributes to
building a safe community by providing fire and protective services, and transit and
paratransit services for residents.

City Operations are the stewards of a significant portion of<the city’s infrastructure,
ensuring that infrastructure systems are adequately preserved, resourcefully funded and
effectively operated. This is accomplished through implementing best practices that
advance safety, consistency, efficiency and reliability.

City Operations is comprised of six departments: Fire & Protective Services; Open
Space & Environmental Services; Roadways & Transportation Services; Strategic &
Customer Services; Transit Services; and Water & Sewer Services. In addition, Special
Projects Secretariat and Service Regina are a part of City Operations. Service Regina
delivers excellent day-to-day customer service for the corporation on a broad range of
City programs and services through in-person service on the main floor of City Hall and
a call centre.

CITY OPERATIONS

ACTING /DEPUTY CITY MANAGER & CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER
NEIL VANDENDORT

i . ~ X
ACTING/DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
OPEN SPACE & ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES - FIRE & PROTECTIVE SERVICES
LISA LEGAULT | RICHARD MCCULLOUGH
N ———— . I e J
~ ~ =%
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
ROADWAYS & TRANSPORTATION SERVICES s STRATEGIC & CUSTOMER SERVICES
ADAM HOMES VACANT
s e e S—— —
g ] N N
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
TRANSIT SERVICES — WATER WORKS SERVICES
BRAD BELLS ) PATRICIA WILSON
.

10



2013 Highlights

In 2013, the Fire Department ensured compliance of their position as an Accredited Agency
from the Center of Public Safety Excellence. This prestigious status measures the services,
programs and governance against industry best practices.

The Fire & Protective Services Department continues to broaden its scope of services
providing increased emergency medical, technical rescue and hazardous materials
responses. It also led the emergency preparedness and response program for the 2013
Spring Run-Off.

The Fire & Protective Services Department operates seven fire stations and each serves an

average of 28,200 residents. Annually the department:

* Emergency dispatches an average of 3,500 for fire suppression, emergency medical
assistance, hazardous material mitigation and rescue incidents;

e Averages of 2,200 plus fire inspections and 160 plusfire investigations annually;
Responds to approximately 5,900 total deployments, which includes non-emergent
investigations and public education and training;

e Successfully trains and certifies 260 personnél in Hazardous Materials, Emergency
Medical Care, Incident Command System, Flashover Survival, Technical Rescue and
other related disciplines.

The department contributed to the safety and security of visitors and residents of the City for
several major events, such as the Juno Awards, the Paul McCartney Concert and the Grey
Cup Festival, through emergency preparedness and code enforcement.

The department hosted over 300 Fire Service Industry professionals at the Canadian
Association of Fire Chiefs Conference in September. Attendees were from across Canada,
the United States and.the United Kingdom

Annually, 39,000 plus citizens attend a number of public safety fire education events

provided through the Publlc“Educatlon section. These programs include:

e “Kids First” which delivers fire and life safety education to young families. This program
is internationally recognized as a model in fire prevention and education.

* In partnership with: Bylaw Enforcement, Regina Police Service, the two school boards
and the Regina Qu'Appelle Health Region - Child and Youth Services Section, Fire and
life safety education and enforcement programs were intentionally provided in the high
fire risk areas of North Central, Heritage and Al Ritchie neighbourhoods.

e A program entitled, “Remembering When: a fire and fall prevention for older adults” was
designed to engage the growing senior citizen community. This is through a partnership
with the Regina Senior Citizens Centre and the Regina Housing Authority.

The department contributed to several corporate initiatives including the Business
Transformation Project, Official Community Plan, Comprehensive Housing Strategy, Global
Transportation Hub, Regional Planning, and the RM of Sherwood Fire Services Agreement.

The Open Space & Environmental Services area protects and maintains 148,000 City-
owned trees. The Forestry program includes a pruning cycle of 1:10 years and plants
approximately 2,500 trees annually. In 2013, the City tree pruning increased 50 per cent
over the previous year with 7,300 trees were pruned.
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The department creates floral displays throughout the City using flowerbeds, 500 plus
planter pots and oak barrels. These displays are typically located in city parks, along main
roads and major intersections. Despite hot and dry conditions throughout most of the 2013
summer, horticulture staff planted and successfully maintained 40,000 bedding plants.

Mosquito control increased the water areas treated by 50 per cent to 4,600 acres, and as a
result, mosquito breeding conditions were significantly reduced.

The department maintains five public golf courses and the Leslie Lawn Bowling Greens.
Despite a harsh winter, which resulted in a five-week delay, golf course staff ensured the
golf courses were up and running in May to allow for a successful golf season.

The department operates two municipally-owned cemeteries, Riverside Memorial Park
Cemetery and Regina Cemetery, to provide the community with various interment options.
In 2013, 600 interments performed. A new Columbarium installed at Riverside Memorial
Park Cemetery adding another 104 niches for cremated remains.

The 5th Annual Tree of Memories Event was held at Riverside Memorial Park Cemetery.
The event provided family and friends the opportunity fo celebrate the life of a laved one for
the holidays.

In 2013, the City’s Solid Waste Collection branch converted approximately 6,000
households from shared alley garbage containers to individual rollout carts.

The branch provides service to 61,400 single-family households on a weekly basis by
individual roll out carts. This equates to approximately 60,000 tonnes of solid waste from
our community.

The landfill handled material delivered by approximately 170,000 vehicles, which amounts to
625,000 tonnes of material annually.

Residential recycling was rolled out on July 1 and provides collection to 61,400 single-family
homes on a bi-weekly basis by individual roll. out carts. This program achieved a set out rate
of 75 per cent, and 6,000 tonnes of recyclable material was collected since it was rolled out.

A household hazardous waste event was held in October, the first since 2010. Residents
showed their support by diverting more then 10 tonnes of hazardous product, 2,450 pounds
of electronics, 9,900 pounds of paint and 159 tires.

Leaf and yard depots were set up for the fall season providing residents an alternative to
dispose of their leaf and yard waste. The material was diverted to a local composting farm
for soil remediation purposes. Over a six-week period, 184 tonnes of material was collected.

Regina’s Roadway Network Inventory consists of:

e 926 kilometres paved roads and 33 kilometres of gravel roads;

1,289 kilometres of sidewalks;

170 kilometres of paved alleys and 134 kilometres of gravel alleys;
Approximately 49 kilometres of easements;

54 bridges, of which eight are rail overpasses, and 31 pedestrian bridges.
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The Roadways Preservation Branch'’s thin-lifted five bridges, performed testing of asphalt
thickness on seven bridges, washed 31 traffic bridges and six underpasses, sealed 21
bridges, repaired three expansion joint glands, painted three pedestrian bridges and
repaired two, and painted numerous guardrails and stub posts.

The Sweeping & Alleys Branch swept approximately 3,100 kilometres of streets and 1,300
kilometres of sidewalks and boulevards. The Crews reconstructed approximately 3 km of
paved alleys, refreshed approximately 130 gravel alleys, maintained 135 kilometres of
gravel alleys, maintained 30 kilometres of high-grade roads, repaired various easement and
guardrail locations, and washed and maintained 54 bridge locations. In addition, they
constructed four crossovers on the Ring Road to assist with traffic flows during the paving of
the Ring Road and reconstructed two LIP locations.

The City has 185 signalized intersections, nine pedestrian half signals, 74 pedestrian
corridors, and approximately 950 expressway lights.

In 2013, the Traffic Signals & Lighting Branch installed 10 new traffic signals in 2013 and
“retimed” traffic signals five arterial corridors, and numerous signal improvement projects,
including the installation of left turn arrows, pedestrian countdown signals, audible
pedestrians signals, were completed.

In addition, the branch completed yearly planned maintenance for 185 traffic signals, nine
pedestrian half-signals, 950 expressway lights and 74 pedestrian corridors, and provided
underground utility location services for both internal and external customers to protect
traffic signal related assets. '

The City’s Street Sign Inventory includes over 60,000 street signs, all of which are
maintained by City crews.

Traffic Control & Parking Branch provided the following services in 2013:

e Design and installation of 134 traffic accommodations and detours;

Coordinated event traffic for the Grey.Cup, and 47 special events and 11 block parties;
Facilitated and coordinated 237 over-dimensional moves through the city;

Issued918 temporary street use by contractors and the film industry; and

Installed 36 new accessible parking zones at private residences.

In 2013, Traffic Control and Parking painted over 500 kilometres of lane lines and completed
over 70,000 metres of crosswalk/stop bar pavement markings.

In 2013, the Winter Maintenance team received a Customer Service Excellence Award for

their excellent work during a record setting winter. During the 2012/2013 season, to deliver

the expected level of service outlined in the Winter Maintenance Policy the branch provided:

¢ Completed nine systematic plows of over 4,630 lane km;

e Completed four residential plows consisting an additional 2,076 lane km;

e Removed over 525,000 m3 of snow and hauled to the snow storage site;

o Stockpiled an additional 975,000 m3 of snow hauled by the private industry to the snow

storage site;

Applied over 24,500 tonnes of ice control material to the road network;

e Contributed to a 24/7 operation with a combined total of over 115,000 manpower hours
worked throughout the season; and

e Inspected and responded to over 11,000 Service Requests through Service Regina.
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In 2013, the City’s asphalt plant produced 83,000 tonnes of hot mix asphalt and 800 tonnes
of cold mix asphalt. In addition, the asphalt plant produced 78,000 tonnes of granular
materials.

By producing asphalt mixes internally instead of through an external supplier, the City saved
$1.6 million overall. This revenue, less the cost of production, is transferred to the asphalt
plant reserve for future plant upgrades.

The bulk materials operation provided 160,000 tonnes of granular and landscape materials
to various City branches and public agencies. Recycled materials constituted 60 per cent of
bulk materials sold.

For the first time, Concrete services initiated a contracted trip hazard removal program to
address approximately 2,500 trip hazards of between 25 and 40mm in height in the
pedestrian traffic areas of the downtown and hospital corridors, as well as locations that
have accessibility challenges that met the maintenance program priorities

Service Regina provides first line customer service, responding to customer inquiries,

requests for service and concerns relation to all City of Reginaservices. In 2013 this work

area:

e Answered 170,635 calls;

e Handled 113,952 at the initial point of contact and did not require to create service
requests;

e Created 1,100 service requests through Facebook and 225 through Twitter;

e Processed 113,857 services transactions in-person.

Regina Transit continues to provide safe, convenient and affordable transportation for
residents and visitors to special events such as concerts, Saskatchewan Roughrider football
games and New Year's Eve celebrations. In 2013, Football Express ridership was at its
highest level. :

In 2013, city buses provided approximately 6.2 million rides to the community, and the 107
buses travelled approximately 5.6 million kilometres. Door-to-door Paratransit service
provided approximately 180 thousand trips and travelled an average of 1 million kilometres
plus last year. ‘ :

Over the past four years, over 68 buses were replaced in the fleet, reducing the average
age to 6.7 years. Since 2006, the number of accessible, low floor buses in service has risen
from 26 to 100. These accessible low floor buses provide improved accessibility for all
customers, especially seniors.

In 2013, Transit installed security cameras on another 12 buses bringing the total number of
buses with security cameras to 75. This feature provides a more secure environment for
both our customers and employees.

Regina Transit implemented a new routing system which introduced Transit service in areas
that did not previously have service, and two new express routes to allow residents to get
across the city quickly, all without increase to the budget. These changes increased
Transit's ridership by 5 per cent by year end.
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During the launch of the new routes, Transit ran a promotion in September called “Free
Transit Fridays” which saw an average increase of 42 per cent. This promotion introduced
customers to the new routes and allowed them to try the routes risk free by not having to
pay. The ridership increase carried over to October with a 12 per cent increase in ridership.

The Transit Information Centre provides information 65 hours per week regarding
conventional transit. The Paratransit booking lines are available 104 hours per week.

In response to a changing customer dynamic, Transit continues to use Twitter and
Facebook pages to provide timely information to customers about detours/delays in service.

In addition, each day there are, on average, over 2,500 visits to the Transitlive web page,
over 800 text messages, and 200 calls to the Transitlive phone system.
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Community Planning & Development Division

Community Planning & Development manages growth, development and provision of
infrastructure, while being responsive to the needs and aspirations of the community.
The Division contributes to building a healthy and caring community by providing
community recreation and cultural programs and services.

The Division is responsible for the development of the Design Regina Official
Community Plan (OCP) which articulates the long-term policies that support the creation
of a city that reflects Council's Vision and achieves the community's priorities. In
addition to leading long-term, comprehensive planning, engineering and development
processes, the Division manages tax collection functions and ensures regulatory
compliance so that development occurs in a manner that ensures public safety.

The Community Planning & Development Division includes the following departments:
Assessment, Tax & Real Estate; Community Development, Recreation & Parks;
Construction & Compliance; and Planning.

DEPUTY CITY MANAGER, COMMUNITY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
JASON CARLSTON

MANAGER, DIVISIONAL STRATEGIC SERVICES
VANDA CONWAY
- = g
DIRECTOR, ASSESSMENT, TAX & REAL ESTATE DIRECTOR, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, RECREATION & PARKS
DON BARR £ CHRISTOPHER HOLDEN
AR " .
DIRECTOR, consmumerq & COMPLIANCE DIRECTOR, PLANNING
KELLY y'ﬁ'ﬂ' DIANA HAWRYLUK
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2013 Highlights

In 2013 Regina City Council approved a new Official Community Plan (OCP) for the city.
This plan will guide the growth of Regina over the next 25 years in accordance with the
priorities of Regina citizens such as economic prosperity and long-term financial viability.

Staff within the Infrastructure Planning Branch had a key role in developing the growth plan
and necessary policies that accompany the City's Official Community Plan.

A Comprehensive Housing Strategy was completed in 2013 with implementation continuing
into 2014. The Strategy includes a complete revision of housing incentives to better aim City
resources at housing needs.

The department implemented most of the recommendations of the Regina Downtown
Neighbourhood Plans (RDNP) and the Heritage Neighbourhood Sustainability Action Plan.

The City and RM of Sherwood signed a Memorandum ‘of Understanding and established
three Committees to collaborate on land use planning and servicing in a joint planning area.
Other regional work included joint resolutions of the City and RM Council’s to alter the City
boundary, hosting a Regional Planning Summit, and participation on committees with
regional partners

There were 25 Servicing Agreements executed with land developers in 2013 through the
Infrastructure Planning Branch. These agreements pertain to the provision of services and
collection of Servicing Agreement Fees in new growth areas of the City.

$1.8 million of funding created 166 affordable housing units and seven city-owned lots went
to local non-profit housing providers.

The Building Standards Branch completed a study of the Building Permit fee for service
model which balances resources to the present record activity levels in the building industry.

Parking enforcement moved to City Hall and negotiated a new enforcement contract with the
Corps of Commissionaires.

A new procedure manual was developed and implemented to ensure consistency in the
enforcement of the Regina Property Maintenance Bylaw #2008-48.

The Engineering Services Branch assisted in the preparation of the site within Evraz Place
for the new stadium.

The International Association of Assessing Officers awarded the "Excellence in Assessment
Administration Certification” to the Assessment, Property Tax and Real Estate Department.
Regina is the first jurisdiction in Canada to receive this certification.

In 2013, there were 2,548 new property accounts added to the assessment and tax rolls.
The Assessment Branch completed 7,829 inspections in 2013, an increase of 8 per cent
since 2012.

For the 2013 tax year 35,400 or 46.9 per cent of eligible properties are on the Tax
Instalment Payment Plan (TIPPS).
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The 2013 Reassessment completion was successful, with fewer customer inquiries and
appeals than previous reassessments.

The Assessment Branch responded to 223 appeals at the Board of Revision. Of these
appeals, 156 were denied, five were granted, 11 were resolved by agreements, and 51 were
withdrawn.

The Real Estate Branch created, serviced, and sold, 47 acres of industrial zoned lots in
Ross Industrial Park.

The department began facilitating the development of the City's first cultural plan. This plan
is a 10-year guiding plan that outlines the City’s goals and objectives in cultural development
—which includes cultural heritage, art, multiculturalism, inter-culturalism, cultural landscapes,
and cultural industries

The City hosted a wide array of special events in 2013 including the Juno Awards, a Paul
McCartney concert and the Grey Cup.

The department maintains a large and diverse municipal park ‘and open space system
comprised of a total of 1,592 hectares or approximately eight hectares of open space per
1,000 people. Included in the 1,592 hectares of open space are 324 parks.

The City continued to implement components of the Recreation Facility Plan by upgrading
three playgrounds in 2013. They also added to.its already extensive multi-use pathway that
extends 48kms across Regina. The construction of the North West multi-use pathway, set
for completion in 2013-2014, will increase the pathway to extend more than 51kms across
the city. An additional 10 hectares of new open space was added in 2013.

Through community investment funding of $3.3M in 2013, the City provided financial support
to approximately 110 community and partner organizations.

Each year approximately 70,000 peo_ple'visil the Neil Balkwill Civic Arts Centre (NBCAC) for
a variety of exhibitions, arts and culture programs as well as hosting their own cultural
events from the site.

There are more than one million individual visits to participate in sport or leisure activities at
one of the City's fitness and'aquatic facilities every year.
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Corporate Services Division

The Corporate Services Division provides services and support to both internal and
external customers, enabling the City to maximize its effectiveness and potential. While
promoting a culture of safety within the organization, Corporate Services supports
organizational capacities to assist operating divisions achieve their business objectives.

Through the division’s five areas, responsibilities include the day-to-day operation of all
City-owned facilities including security services; financial reporting and budget
preparation; investment and debt management services; and billing and collection for
the water, wastewater, and drainage utility. In addition, this Division provides fleet
management and maintenance services; technology support.including corporate data
security.

Corporate Services includes: Facilities Management Services, Financial Services, Fleet
Services, Human Resources, and Information Technology Services. in addition, the
Director of Pension and Disability reports to the Pension Administration Board and
connects to the City administratively through Corporate Services.

DEPUTY CITY MANAGER & CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER, CORPORATE SERVICES
BRENT SIOBERG

MANAGER, STRATEGY & ,uimuons (RRI} . MANAGER, STRATEGY & OPERATIONS (CS)
LOUISE FOLK PAMELA DECK

DIRECTOR, FACILITIES MANAGEMENT SERVICES
KAREN GASMO

DIRECTOR, FLEET SERVICES ]_ | DIRECTOR, HUMAN RESOURCES
KARI KOIVISTO PAT GARTNER

DIRECTOR, FINANCE
CHUCK MCDONALD

DIRECTOR, INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES
CHRIS FISHER

DIRECTOR, PENSIONS & DISARILITY ADMINISTRATION
COLYN LOWENBERGER
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2013 Highlights

The Business Transformation Program (BT) began in 2012 with the goal to replace the
organizations varied business systems with one integrated system, Enterprise Resource
Planning (ERP). By creating an integrated system, business and customer service
throughout the City are made more effective and efficient. In 2013, the following projects
were completed:

e Supply Chain Self Serve

* Requestor Self-Serve

e Tangible Capital Assets (TCA) Register Conversion

Other BT projects which started in 2013 and will continue into 2014 and 2015 include:
e HR & Payroll System, Time & Labour and Scheduling
e Corporate Payment Collection

Facilities Management Services supports more than 220 buildings and almost 400 additional
structures that range from recreational, administrative, and operatlonal buildings to spray
pools, bus shelters, and park structures.

With the rapid growth occurring in the Harbour Landing area in south west Regina, a Parks
Maintenance sub-depot is required to store equipment used to maintain City owned
parkland in the area. The sub-depot in this location will eliminate inefficiencies created by
the current location. In addition, a new outdoor rink was built near the sub-depot building
and therefore it was determined that rather than build a typical stand-alone rink shelter, the
rink shelter space could be accommodated within the parks maintenance sub-depot
building. This will result in cost savings associated with the design and construction of the
joint-use facility.

Facilities Management Services assumed the lead of the Landfill Scale Facilities and
Infrastructure Project. The project is comprised of a new entrance road to serve the landfill
along with new support mfrgstruclure including scales, scale facilities and other upgrades.
The project deliverables will provide the City of Reglna Landfill with support amenities that
will serve users of the landfill for the next 25 years and will support the landfill expansion.

In 2013, Facilities Management Services identified a number of public parking lots in critical
need of repair, including the Sandra Schmirler Leisure Centre, the Hamilton Arena, and the
North West Leisure Centre. These repairs were scheduled during shutdowns of the facilities,
thus limiting the disruption to the public.

Mosaic Stadium was extremely busy in 2013. In addition to the stadium’s regular activity,
there were four major events held at the facility. The stadium hosted a successful Paul
McCartney concert in August, which had 45,000 spectators. In November, the venue very
successfully hosted the Canadian Junior Football championship, a Canadian Football
League Western final play-off game and the biggest party in Canada — the 101st Grey Cup
championship, which attracted 45,000 fans.

Financial Services is the lead to implement the capture and reporting of the Public Sector
Accounting Board (PSAB) requirements for tangible capital assets. Over $1.5 billion in City
assets have been classified and reported since the City's 2009 Financial Statements. The
City will continue to report on the complete stock of tangible capital assets and amortization
in the financial statements to demonstrate stewardship and the cost of using those assets to
deliver programs and provide services.
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Finance successfully implemented the Assets module of Oracle Financials in order to
improve the data security and integrity, enhance internal controls and automate some of the
previously manual functions. The module is also a foundational piece that integrates with
other Oracle Financials modules being planned for in the future as part of the ongoing
Business Transformation Program.

Fleet Services manages and maintains about 1,200 vehicles within the Civic, Transit and
Fire fleets, and annually delivers over 300 operator training sessions attended by more than
1,600 employees.

The Fleet Services Department continues to implement the recommendations of the
GreenFleet Report to minimize the negative environmental impacts of the City's vehicle and
equipment fleet.

Human Resources work unit supports approximately 290 client Managers and Supervisors,
plus coordinators, team-leads, crew-leads, with managing and optimizing their human
resources, encompassing more than 2,500 permanent, casual and seasonal employees.

An objective on the 2013 corporate scorecard was to.reduce personal and financial risk to
employees and the organization through a strong culture of saﬁ‘ety was achieved! Human
Resources developed and delivered the foundational components of the safety program,
which has enabled/assisted the City in changing its culture towards safety. One measure of
this objective included achieving a lost time incident frequency ‘of six. Another required that
at least 80 per cent of managers and supervisors conduct regular safety meetings and
workplace inspections.

The City of Regina undertakes a comprehensive survey of employee perceptions once
every two years. Employees participated in this survey in June of 2013 and shared survey
results with employees in the all. HR will focus on supporting departments to build actions
into their 2014 business plans to respond to the issues and ideas raised by the employees.
In addition, HR is facilitating a consultant led process to further analyze the corporate results
and determine corporate action plans moving forward.

ITS supports 1,600 City staff, who utilize over 70 different business applications through a
stable, state-of-the-art network connecting over 60 City facilities, and enabling a mobile
workforce. Throughout 2013, the ITS staff assisted or lead the following:

e Enabled a mobile workforce through implementation of tablets and other mobile devices.
This included Commercial Assessment, Fire and City Operations, resulting in improved
business efficiencies and quicker response.

e Upgraded the Work Asset Management system to provide better integration with other
City applications.

e Upgraded the Records Management System to prepare for electronic records
management.

» Established working committees to provide corporate strategic direction and priority
setting on technology and data used across the organization.

¢ Provided development and support for the creation and maintenance of recycling,
garbage services, and inventory within the Water Utility Billing system. Working with third
parties, processes for route maintenance and mapping services for online services was
developed.

e Completed the on-line access to property assessment information through the tax and
assessment system for key 3rd party customers.
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Continued expansion of the City’s fixed broadband wireless network that connects
Traffic Signals and buildings to the corporate network, including improved connection to
the Landfill site, arenas, and leisure facilities.

The City’s data backup & recovery system was optimized to improve efficiency and
reduce business disruptions.

Identified strategic direction for office productivity and collaboration applications, with a
decision to move to a hosted cloud solution. Microsoft’'s Office365 offering was selected
as the most suitable for the City’s environment.

Completed the conversion of the City’s email solution from GroupWise to Outlook. Over
1,700 corporate mailboxes were migrated and employees trained in six weeks.

The City’s 20 year old data network was redesigned to align with current technology
standards, providing additional stability, security, and flexibility. The enyironment is now
better positioned to keep up with technology advancements.

Implemented a new network storage solution to provide additional performance capacity
and flexibility to corporate business areas, while minimizing future costs.

Continued using LEAN methodology to perform value-based mapping of key internal
processes. Implemented revised processes and new technology within.the Print Shop,
and the rest of ITS, with processes involving IT Service Management. The initiative
included workforce analysis, staff reorganization, creation of a service catalogue;and
implementation of a new ITSM tool. ]
Upgraded Fleet Management system to most current release, maintaining currency.
Expanded Print Services capabilities, enabling in-house support for additional print
requirements.
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Regina Police Service

The Regina Police Service takes a lead role in providing public safety in the City of
Regina. Recognition of this role is embodied in the Service’s mission statement, and is
the central principle underlying all our activities. At the May 22, 2013 Board of Police

Commissioner’'s meeting the following Mission, Vision and Values were adopted:

Mission: Public service first
Vision: Working together to keep Regina safe

Values: Respectful, Professional, Service

The Strategic Plan is based on four integrated areas of focus: service delivery;
partnerships and community engagement; recruitment and employee development; and

business processes and infrastructure.
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2013 Highlights

Service Delivery

The Regina Police Service's Core Functions are emergency response, quality investigations
and response to non-emergency calls, traffic safety, and crime prevention/community building.
The anticipated outcomes of these efforts are crime reductions, increased public feelings of
safety and security and decreased public fear of crime.

Across the community there have been reductions in most crime categories.

Thru September 2013, School Resource Officers conducted 3,862 park checks and 2,331
school grounds checks.

Continued focus to drinking establishments to enhance public safety. A taxi queue was
established on Dewdney Avenue to increase safety for patrons.

Continued focus on impaired drivers to enhance traffic safety. Impaired driving charges
increased 30 per cent over 2012.

The Graffiti Investigator has been in place for over a year and clearance rates have been
reduced from below 10 per cent to more than 25 per cent.

Partnerships and Community Engagement

The Regina Police Service has a crucial role in reducing crime and increasing safety in Regina,
but we do not work alone in this endeavour. We Trequire assistance from the community,
including public reporting of occurrences and providing input, so we can best meet the
community’s priorities. We also require assistance from our local, provincial, and national
partners who share stake in improving community weli-being.

The Citizens Police Academy (CPA) has provided'its program for over 20 years resulting in
over 1,700 citizens graduating. There are 95 active CPA alumni.

Provided policing to a number of high profile community events including First Nations
University Pow Wow, Regina Folk Festival, Agribition, Queen City Exhibition, Canada Day,
North American Indigenous Games (NAIG), and Sisters In Spirit — Missing Aboriginal
Women Vigil.

Continued with the multi-agency assessment and response team for children ages 11 and
under (11Ul) identified as at-risk for involvement in the criminal justice system.

Participated in the development of the Campus Regina Public Program in partnership with
the Regina Public School Division to provide advice in the development of curriculums for
Law, Public Safety and Security courses and participate in the delivery of the courses to
Grade 11 and 12 students.

Hosted the 18th Annual Regina Police Service Showcase (Open House) with over 3,000
people in attendance.

Hosted the annual Regina Police Service Veteran’s appreciation lunch.
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The Regina Police Service parade float will participate in the following parades: Queen City
Exhibition, Treaty 4, Grey Cup and Santa Claus.

Continued participation in a wide variety of cultural events including Regina Traditional
Healing Gathering, Camp fYrefly for LBGTTQ & A youth, Mosaic, and Regina Ukrainian Fall
Festival.

Developed a comprehensive policing plan for Grey Cup with various public safety partners
and event hosts. The Service provided a visible presence at all events to ensure smooth
traffic flow and provide effective crowd control. :

Recruitment and Employee Development

A qualified, well-trained and motivated staff properly deployed, is crucial to delivering optimal
service to the people of Regina.

Continued Diversity Mentorship Program along with participation in Saskatchewan Police
Aboriginal Recruiting Committee (SPARC), and Treaty 4 Citizen's Police Academy in an
effort to attract and prepare First Nations applicants.

A '‘Block Training’ model for the delivery of mandatory training for sworn members, such as
Firearms Training and Qualification, Defensive Tactics Training and Recertification, and
Emergency First Aid, CPR and AED Training was successfully implemented and achieved
94 per cent participation.

Provided support for a member to participate in an international policing mission in
Afghanistan for one year.

Worked to develop a training portal through a national policing training center, Canadian
Police Knowledge Network (CPKN). The portal will enable all employees to access on-line
learning for self-development and for directed training:

Business Processes & Infrastructure

The Service is committed to evaluating and adapting its facilities, equipment, and business
processes o ensure they meet service objectives and the organization's needs are consistent
with sound budgeting principles and reflect forward planning.

Continued to enhance the new technology for scanning, storing, transmitting and searching
fingerprints.

Expansion of in-car video capability to all new patro! vehicles.

Continued policy review and rewrite initiative, and to date, more than 70 per cent have been
completed or are in the review stage.

Following a high profile event the use of Facebook was suspended pending implementation
of social media management software to help moderate the site. In September 2013 the
Service republished its Facebook account.

Formalized a pension agreement with the stakeholder groups which will see the
implementation of a ‘Target Benefit' plan which will provide for the ongoing sustainability of
the pension plan for the Regina Police Service members.
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The Radio Upgrade Project Working Committee continued its work to update the City's
trunked radio system with implementation scheduled for 2014.

Worked collaboratively with the City of Regina Facility Management Services Department to
develop a facilities renewal plan for the Regina Police Service. The joint Facilities Renewal
Project Steering Committee is finalizing the space needs assessment and will provide a
closing report including next steps.

Undertook planning for the reintroduction of CEWs (Conducted Energy Weapons),
commonly called “Tasers” as a ‘less than lethal’ weapon for police members including
development of policy, training delivery plan and equipment acquisition and logistics plan.
CEWs are planned to be introduced in early 2014.
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The Environment we Work in

A Period of Economic Growth

Regina’s economic growth remained strong at an estimated 5.0 per cent in 2013, on the
heels of two years with growth averaging above 5 per cent, according to forecasting
agency the Conference Board of Canada and its Metropolitan Qutlook, Winter 2014
report.

Saskatchewan’s retail sales hit a record $18 billion in 2013, an increase of 3 per cent
over 2012, and the third-highest percentage increase in Canada, according to data
released by Statistics Canada. Gross Domestic Product (GDP) growth is forecast to
ease, by recent Regina standards, to 3.5 per cent in 2014 and remain above 3 per cent
in 2015.

The pace of growth over the past two years has been well above the average annual
increases over the past 20 years. Building permits issued in Regina in 2013 were the
second highest on record at $735 million, up 182 per cent from 2006 and down only 5
per cent from the record year in 2012.

More and more Canadians are choosing to call Regina home, with the City's population
growing in excess of 3 per cent annually in both 2012 and 2013 on top of several years
of 2 per cent annual growth. While in-migration is expected to ease somewhat in 2014,
population growth is forecast to stay near 2 per cent. Such a healthy pace of population
growth has boosted housing starts for four straight years, including a 15 per cent growth
in residential units in 2013, to 3,100 new units, on top of a 70 per cent surge in 2012.

Such strong economic growth has led to employment increases for eight consecutive
years, including a 5.5 per cent rise in 2013. Nearly 24,000 jobs have been created over
those eight years. Employment gains are forecast to moderate in 2014, but the
unemployment rate is expected to remain below 4 per cent. This low level of
unemployment, combined with a labour force participation rate approaching a record
high, suggests nearly full employment. -

Economic growth has also created some significant challenges at the municipal level.
Regina’s apartment vacancy rate was 1.8 per cent in October 2013, an increase from 1
per cent the previous year; but still a difficult scenario for residents who rely on
affordable rental housing. Regina’s unemployment rate was 3.9 per cent in November of
2013, compared to a 6.9 per cent Canadian average and the lowest of any major city in
Canada. The unemployment rate has increased the need to recruit new workers to the
city, who are then unable to find affordable places to live. There is a risk that Regina’s
economic growth could be slowed by its limited capacity to house the workers required
to support that growth.

The City’s Workforce

The unemployment rate and competitiveness of the current labour market impacts the
City as an employer of professions and skilled trades who are also in demand by new
and expanding businesses and industries across the region and province. Without a
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stable base of employees engaged in delivering municipal services, those services will
not deliver on the expectations and needs of residents. This risk is exacerbated by the
City’s employee demographics, which indicate that a large proportion of long-term
employees are due to retire in the next five years.

Revenues and the Infrastructure Deficit

The City of Regina’s costs are rising faster than its revenues. This is due to several
factors including:

Rapid inflation for costs such as construction materials

The inelasticity of property tax (revenues do not grow with the economy as they would
with sales or income tax)

Decreased investment in capital infrastructure from other levels of government.

On the issue of the property tax, which is the primary revenue tool for municipalities,
there is wide recognition of the structural problems./Research conducted by the Canada
West Foundation in 2007 showed that, in real'dollar terms, per capita reventes for
municipalities increased by only 1 per cent in the 17 years between 1990 .and 2007.
During the same period, provincial and federal per capita revenues (also in real dollar
terms) increased by 43 per cent and 56 per cent respectively.

Real per capita revenue growth 1990-2007

1%

st

43%

56%

B Municipal

= Provincial
u Federal

The real per capita revenue growth of municipal, provincial and federal
government in Canada between 1990 and 2007"

In Regina, this issue is compounded by recent growth. The city has grown up until this
point by using excess capacity from infrastructure developed in the 1970s. We have
now reached the limits of that excess capacity and significant new investment will be
required to allow Regina to grow to the next level.

Particularly in this period of growth, demand for services is outpacing the City’s capacity
to deliver those services. In an effort to keep fees and taxes affordable for residents, the
City’s historic response to this imbalance has been to defer the renewal of assets and
infrastructure. Two decades of deferral has created a backlog of necessary
infrastructure renewal that the City estimates will take an additional investment of $93
million per year for 20 years to address. This includes such things as the renewal of

' Vander Ploeg, C.G., Problematic Property Tax: Why the Property Tax Fails to Measure Up and What to Do About It (Canada

West Foundation, November, 2008).
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residential roads, recreation facilities, and the various facilities in which the City
conducts its business. It does not include the maintenance and renewal of new assets
such as those in new neighbourhoods. In due course, if left unresolved, this backlog will
severely impact the City’s ability to safely and effectively deliver service.

Investment Required to Replace and/or Rehabilitate Assets

Doliars in Millions

Land Euildings and

P P

Vehickesand  Officeand IT

The City of Regina is currently undertakin g two I frastructure renewal projects,
each of which requires in excess of $200 m\ifllon cap investment, the Wastewater
Treatment Plant (which alse%a‘ends to regtﬂﬁory change and will better serving the
City's growing population), and a new multi-purpose stadium to replace the aging
Mosaic Stadium. Thls wo ect wil _enable the redevelopment of downtown lands for
e, with th e PO tentlal tﬁztahze a central neighbourhood.
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Our Future

While growth presents challenges, there is also significant opportunity for the City at this
time.

The new Official Community Plan, Design Regina, which was approved in 2013, will
direct growth and change in the city for a population of up to 300,000 people, projected
to occur over a 25-year period. The development process included extensive public and
stakeholder engagement in creating a plan that would address their priorities. The
resulting plan presents a bold vision for what a Regina of 300,000 citizens will offer
residents and visitors. Achieving Design Regina will take leadership on the part of City
Council and Administration, but will also require action from other stakeholders in the
city’'s economy and community. Most of all, the momentum built through the broad
engagement practices in the Design Regina process ‘raised expectations among
residents for continued dialogue and involvement in City policy decisions:

The journey towards achieving the Vision and Cemrhunity Priorities will be paced over
25 years, and approached as a marathon, not a‘sprint.

Given the implications of the current external and internal environment described above,
the City is positioned to make measured progress towards key foundational
components of the OCP within this first strategic planning cycle.

Guided by the City’s Vision, but also respecting the need to minimize the burden on tax
payers, the 2014 — 2017 strategic plan, Building:the Foundation, is intended to lay the
groundwork for achieving the Design Regina Plan by focusing on four strategic
directions in the near term:

Manage Growth

Improve Financial Viabifity

Engage and Develop Staff

Engageé Citizens

The City of Regina continues to grow and diversify, and the City of Regina is committed
to working toward supporting its changing needs. Guided by the City's Vision, but also
respecting the need to minimize the burden on tax payers, priorities will continue to be:
e Maintaining our commitment to service to the community
¢ Managing and servicing the unprecedented growth the Clty has seen in the last
five years
e Tackling the challenges of an aging infrastructure
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(in thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2013

INTRODUCTION

The City of Regina 2013 Annual Financial Report contains the audited Consolidated Financial Statements
prepared in accordance with principles and standards established by the public sector accounting
standards (PSAS) of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada, as required by The Cities Act.

The following financial statement discussion and analysis was prepared by City of Regina Administration.
It should be read in conjunction with the audited Consolidated Financial Statements and schedules.

HIGHLIGHTS

The 2013 Consolidated Financial Statements report net financial assets of $115.8 million, an increase
of $35.4 million from $80.4 million at the end of 2012. Net financial asset position indicates financial
resources are on hand to finance future operations.

The 2013 Consolidated Financial Statements also show an excess of revenues over expenses of
$153.2 million compared to $107.0 million 2012.

The City's accumulated surplus increased from $1.294 billion at the end of 2012 to $1.447 billion at
December 31, 2013. Virtually all of the accumulated surplus is tied up in non-financial assets, such as
tangible capital assets. Non-financial assets were $1.331 billion at the end of 2013. Net financial
assets are a better indicator of the financial resources on hand to finance future operations.

Revenues increased by $58.0 million and expenses increased $11.9 million from 2012. The reason
for the increase in revenue is primarily due to the rate increase in water utility and other fees and
charges due to increase use of services by citizens and planned increases in fees.

The City's reserves increased by $40.6 million to $203.8 million. The General Utility reserve increased
by $22.2 million due primarily to the utility operating surplus. The Land development reserve increased
by $11.2 million due to the significant land sales in 2013.

Demographic and Economic Information

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Population (Census Metropolitan area) 232,090 226,000 217,000 215,000 210,000
Building permits

Number 3,300 3,342 2,790 2,539 2,307

Values ($000) 734,737 773,273 547,700 426,800 458,400
Urban dwelling starts 3,122 3,093 1,694 1,347 867
Inflation rate for Regina (%) 1.7% 1.8% 2.9% 1.5% 1.7%
GDP Growth for Regina (%) 3.5% 4.2% 6.1% 2.3% 0.1%
Unemployment rate (%)

Regina 3.7% 3.6% 5.3% 4.8% 4.4%

Saskatchewan 4.0% 4.7% 5.0% 5.2% 5.8%

Canada 7.1% 7.2% 7.4% 8.0% 8.2%
Average selling prices of homes ($) 311,047 301,332 268,000 258,000 244,000
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(in thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2013

ANALYSIS

Revenues - Budget to Actual and Prior Year Comparison

Budget Variance Year over Year

2013 2013 Favourable 2012 Increase

Budget Actual (Unfavourable) Actual (Decrease)

Taxation 188.449 188,057 (392) 174,843 13,214
Fees and charges 160,255 158,478 (1,777) 148,209 10,269
Government transfers 73,773 74,335 562 72,452 1,883
Electrical distribution 29,636 32,843 3,207 30,075 2,768
Licenses, fines and levies 12,495 11,814 (681) 11,421 393
Gas distribution 6,700 6,739 39 5,620 1,119
Interest and penalties 1,625 1,406 (119) 1,261 145
Interest on portfolio investments 7713 9,665 1,952 8,580 1,085
Realized gains on portfolio investments - (1) (1) 3,006 (3,007)
Service agreement fees 19,718 25,374 5,656 14,696 10,678
Land sales 3,103 18,128 15,025 2,667 15,461
Other 5,943 12,812 6,869 4,062 8,750
Contribution of tangible capital assets - 46,980 46,980 54.753 (4,773)
509,310 586,630 77,320 528,645 57,985

The schedule above includes both operating and capital revenues.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(in thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2013

ANALYSIS (cont'd)

2013 Revenue

7.8% Contribution of tangible capital assets

21% Other

3.0% Land sales

4.2% Service agreement fees

Taxation 314%—_ ¢ et 4.0% Interest and penalties & other
2.0% Licenses, fines and levies

6.6% Electrical and gas distributior

12.4% Govemment transfers

Fees and charges 26.4%

* Zero Data, Realized gains on portfolio investments
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(in thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2013

ANALYSIS (cont'd)

Revenues - Budget to Actual and Prior Year
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Taxation revenue for 2013 was $13.2 million higher compared-to 2012 primarily due to an increase in the
number of properties coming onto the assessment roll during the year and a 4.45% increase in the mill
rate.

Fees and charges for 2013 were (1.1)% below budget. They were $10.3 million higher than 2012 actual
due to the 9% utility rate increase, increased fees related to development (such as building permit fees
and servicing agreement fees) as well as increases in usage of user fee services such as Transit.

Government transfers were $0.6 million or 0.8% above budget primarily due to government transfers
being budgeted on a cash basis while actuals are recorded when related expenses are incurred. The
variability with budget is due mainly to capital grants, which vary from year to year. Government transfers
in 2013 were $1.9 million more than 2012. Capital government transfer increased due to an increase use of

SAF, a $5.0 million grant from provincial for the stadium; this was offset partially by reduced Provincial Territoral
Funding as that agreement winds down.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(in thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2013

ANALYSIS (cont'd)

Service agreement fees for 2013 were $ 10.7 million more than 2012. When a servicing agreement is
entered into between the City and a developer, the fees collected are inflows of cash or accounts
receivable to the City. However, under revenue recognition principles, the revenue is not
recorded/recognized until it is allocated to eligible projects. Servicing agreement fees collected in a given
year per agreements entered into are recorded as revenue or deferred revenue based on these principles.
For 2013, there was a significant increase in roads and parks service agreement fees revenues as more
SAF funds were allocated and spent in projects.

Contribution of tangible capital assets for 2013 were $47.0 million above budget since this item is not
budgeted for. This revenue includes tangible capital assets, such as land, roads, and underground
networks that the City receives at no cost or below fair market value. However, the City will be expected to
maintain and rehabilitate these assets from this point forward.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(in thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2013

ANALYSIS (cont'd)

Expenses - Budget to Actual and Prior Year Comparison

Variance

2013 2013 Favourable 2012 Increase

Budget Actual {Unfavourable) Actual (Decrease)

Parks, recreation and community services 67,246 65,937 1,309 61,422 4,515
Police 70,400 73,308 (2,908) 69,156 4,152
Legislative and administrative services 66,114 61,171 4,943 57,510 3,661
Water, wastewater and drainage 66,973 61,435 5538 63,392 (1,957)
Roads and traffic _ 58,080 53,828 4,252 45,783 8,045
Fire 45,939 42,795 3,144 43,575 (780)
Transit : 32,457 34,317 (1,860) 31,049 3,268
Waste collection and disposal 18,098 19,712 (1,614) 30,977 (11,265)
Grants 8,151 4,459 3,692 4,575 (1186)
Planning and development 16,005 16,517 (512) 14,167 2,350
449 463 433,479 15,984 421,606 11,873

The schedule above includes both operating and capital expenses.

2013 Expenses

3.8% Planning and development
1.0% Grants -
4.5% Waste collection and disposal

7.9% Transit
# '.w"'- /

Parks, recreation and community services 16.2%

P

g

9.9% Fire
Police 16.9%

12.4% Roads and traffic

' Legislative and administrative services 14.1%
14.2% Water, wastewater and drainage

* Zero Data, City of Regina Consolidated, City of Regina Consolidated
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(in thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2013

ANALYSIS (cont'd)

Expenses - Budget to Actual and Prior Year )
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Water, wastewater and drainage expenses were $5.5 million lower than budget due to a debenture that was
paid off in 2012, resulting in lower debt expenses and due to a $1.7 million budgeted expense for odour control
which was not required due to odour control projects completed in early 2013. Expenses for 2013 were $1.9
million lower than 2012 due to debt paid off in 2012.

Waste collection and disposal expenses were $11.26 million lower than 2012 primarily due to the adjustment
of landfill liability which is only $3.1 million in 2013.

Roads and traffic expenses were under spent by approximately $4.0 million compared to budget due to $1.5
million reduction of sweeping and alley maintenance and a reduction of cost allocation.

Legislative and administrative services expenses were lower than budget due to a $1.7 million decrease in
employee benefit obligations in 2013. There was a reduction of entitilement banks, such as sick and vacation. The
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(in thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2013

ANALYSIS (cont'd)

rest of the underspend was due to the debt that was not issued until early 2014 for the stadium.

For purposes of establishing and monitoring budgets, operating, capital and utility expenses are considered
separately. Overall, the General Operating Fund expenses were over budget by $11.8 million. The largest
variances were:

e $14.8 million increase in Reserve Transfers;
e $7.7 million to the Asset Revitalization Reserve

e $2.5 million to the Planning & Sustainability Reserve (arising from increased revenues associated with
Building Permit Fees)

e $2.0 million to the Social Development Reserve (related to the payment received from Saskatchewan
Housing Corporation from sale of North West Lands)

e $0.7 million to the RRI Stadium Reserve
¢ $0.5 million to the Police Reserve
e $0.2 million to the Golf Course reserve

e $1.2 million other transfers to cemeteries, pest management, parking , facilities and other smaller
reserves

e $2.2 million in External Expenses the majority arising from equipment rental and the Evraz arenas operating
payment

e $1.3 million related to internal expenses arising from increase fleet costs and corporate overhead recovery

« $1.5 million in office and administrative expenses associated with data processing. Searches (land titles), bad
debts and office costs

e $0.7 million for professional and external services
e $0.2 million in community investments
e $(6.3) million decrease in salaries, benefits and related payments

e $(3.5) million decrease in debt servicing costs as the City did not issue debt as originally planned
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(in thousands of doflars)

December 31, 2013

ANALYSIS (cont'd)

General Capital Fund - Budget to Actual Comparison

Budget Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual
2013 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Revenues
Government transfers
Federal 11,080 11,864 15,908 14,244 31,581 26,696
Provincial 18,475 7,051 282 5,627 8,527 23,976
Service agreement fees 10,827 11,126 1,343 9419 6,790 10,583
Other revenues 2,350 850 590 20,594 17,606 8,213
42,732 30,891 18,121 49,784 64,504 69,468
Expenses 99,026 63,258 53,239 54,414 53,841 83,282
(Expenses over revenues)
revenues over expenses (56,294) (32,367) (35,118) (4,630) 10,663 (13,814)

Actual revenues only reflect the funding that is spent in the year referred to. Additional funding may be
available for future years.

There is generally more variability in actuals to budget for capital projects. City Council approves budgets for
each capital project based on the maximum forecast expenditure for the year to accommodate the planning and
scheduling requirements associated with capital projects. There is typically a portion of the year's budget carried
forward to future years for projects not completed within the fiscal year. At the end of 2013, the carry-forward
amount available in the General Capital and Utility Capital funds was $126.9 million (2012 - $135.1 million).
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(in thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT TRENDS
Revenue Summary
‘ 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Taxation 188,057 174,843 165,224 154,746 148,529
Fees and charges 158,478 148,209 132,470 117,503 118,735
Government transfers 74,335 72,452 70,733 93,723 119,601
Electrical distribution 32,843 30,075 30,081 28,633 27,10
Licenses, fines and levies 11,814 11,421 11,097 10,166 9,863
Gas distribution 6,739 5,620 6,645 6,875 8,532
Interest and penalties 1,406 1,261 1,366 2,018 8,990
Interest on portfolio investments 9,665 8,580 9,484 nfa n/a
Realized gains on portfolio investments ) 3,008 3,963 n/a n/a
Service agreement fees 25,374 14,696 18,875 12,637 20,187
Land sales 18,128 2,667 9,871 3,636 2474
Other 12,812 4,062 3,483 2,221 693
Contribution of tangible capital assets 46,980 51,753 29,711 27,386 19,828
586,630 528,645 492,983 459,444 484,542

*The City did not start separately tracking interest on portfolio investments, and realized gains on portfolio
investments, until 2010. The 2009 and 2010 balances included within interest and penalties.
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(in thousands of doliars) :

December 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT TRENDS (cont'd)

Top 5 Revenue Sources

[ A |
Taxation Fees and charges
[ = |
Govermnment transfers Contribution of tangible capital assets
E=

Electrical distribution
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(in thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT TRENDS (cont'd)

Taxation revenue generally increases with growth and tax rate increases.
Taxation revenues result from municipal and library taxes levied on all properties in the City and business
improvement levies assessed by the Business Improvement Districts on properties in the districts.

Property taxes are calculated by applying a mill rate and mill rate factor to each property assessment. The
mill rate and mill rate factor together are known as the tax rate.

Taxable x Mill X Mill rate = Property
assessment rate factor tax

Taxable Property Assessment
(in thousands of dollars)

Year Total
2013 18,611,010
2012 9,636,508
2011 9,470,294
2010 9,263,912
2009 9,082,727
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(in thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT TRENDS (cont'd)

Mill Rates Business Improvement Levies
Regina's Warehouse
Regina Business

Year Municipal Schools Library Total Downtown Improvement District
2013 8.4404 0.8947 9.3351 0.7388 . 0.7588
2012 15.1059 nfa _ 1.6221 16.7280 0.8874 0.9785
2011 14.5389 nfa  1.5919 16.1308 0.8533 0.9785
2010* 13.9797 1.5401 15.5198 0.8205 0.9785
2009 13.4420 - 1.4967 14.9387 0.6912 0.8809

* The revenue neutral rates for 2009 were as follows:
Municipal mill rate - 13.4420
Library mill rate - 1.4967
Regina Downtown levy - 0.6912
Regina's Warehouse Business Improvement District levy- 0.8808

For 2010-2012 the rates are inclusive of any approved mill rate or levy increase.

- The Provincial Government announced changes to the way education costs are funded by the province and
to the way that education property taxes are calculated beginning in 2009:
+ The province now sets province wide mill rates to calculate the education tax for properties.
e The education tax credit program has been discontinued and education tax credits no longer apply.
+ The province has changed the level of direct funding for school boards.
+ The Province wide mill rates for 2010 are: Agricultural at 7.08, Residential (including Condominiums and
Mutti-family) at 10.08, Commercial & Industrial (tiered rates) — Assessment up to $499,999 at 12.25,
Assessment of $500,000 to $5,999,999 at 15.75 and Assessment of over $6,000,000 at 18.55.
** 2013 was a reassessment year and the mill rates and business improvement levies were restated to revenue neutral rates.

Municipal Mill Rate Factors

Property Class/Subclass 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Residential 0.87880 0.90059 0.90059 0.90059 0.89783
Condominiums 0.87880 0.90059 0.90059 0.90059 0.89783
Multi family residential 0.87880 0.90059 0.80059 0.90059 0.93380
Commercial and Industrial 1.32901 1.22945 1.22945 1.22945 1.22945
Golf courses 0.86359 0.92187 0.92187 0.92187 0.92187
Agriculture 1.32901 1.22945 1.22845 1.22945 1.22945
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(in thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT TRENDS (cont'd)

Tax Levies and Collection

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Municipal tax levy 170,239 158,121 149,201 139,614 133,919
School boards tax levy 115,717 115,480 112,162 114,690 113,548
Library tax levy 17,818 16,722 16,023 15,132 14,610
Total tax levy 303,774 290,323 277,386 269,436 262,077
Tax levy per capita - Municipal® 734 699 689 648 638
Tax levy per capita - School boards* 499 511 517 533 541
Tax levy per capita - Library* : 77 74 74 70 70
Total tax levy per capita* (§) 1,310 1,284 1,280 1,251 1,249
Tax levy per household - Municipal** 1,986 1,859 1,755 1,642 1,676
Tax levy per household - School boards** 1,350 1,359 ‘1,320 1,349 1,336
Tax levy per household - Library** 208 197 189 178 172
Total tax levy per household™™ ($) 3,544 3,415 3,264 3,169 3,084
Tax arrears, end of year )
(prior to allowance for doubtful accounts) 4,740 4 740 5,004 5,258 5,471
Arrears as a % of total tax levy 1.56% 1.63% 1.80% 1.95% . 2.09%

* Population figure is for the Regina Census Metropolitan Area as obtained from Statistics Canada, Annual Demographic Estimates, Sub-provincial
Areas, February 2013.

** Household figure from Stats Canada 2011 census (85,730) is for the Census Metropolitan Area. The 2009 to 2011 figures were based off the
2006 census (84,998).
*** Next census will be in 2016.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(in thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT TRENDS (cont'd)

Major Property Taxpayers in Regina in 2013

Total Taxable Assessment

% of Total Taxable

Registered Owner Assessment
1. Consumers' Co-operative Refineries Limited 240,251 1.29%
2 Her Majesty The Queen (Canada) 177,201 0.95%
3. Saskatchewan Property Management Corporation 156,064 0.84%
4. Cornwall Centre Inc. 118,839 0.64%
5. HDL Investments Inc. 111,369 0.60%
6. Saskatchewan Telecommunications 107,814 0.58%
it Harvard Developments Inc. 116,431 0.63%
8. Gordon Road Property Holdings Inc. 94,341 0.51%
9. Boardwalk REIT Properties Holdings Ltd. 164,864 0.89%
10. Her Majesty The Queen (Saskatchewan) 90,453 0.49%
11. Saskatchewan Housing Corporation 141,287 0.76%
12. Saskatchewan Government Insurance - 60,584 0.33%
13. Westdale Construction Co.Ltd. 55,636 0.30%:
14. First Willow Developments Ltd. 55,327 0.30%
15. Regina Airport Authority 58,709 0.32%
Total 1,749,170 9.43%
Total 2013 taxable assessment 18,611,010 -

The list of major taxpayers does not include properties where grant or payments in lieu of property tax are

paid.

Fees and charges revenue has generally increased due to rate increases, with some increase over the
past few years due to higher building activity. The largest portion of the increase is afttributable to
increased water and sewer utility rates required to fund infrastructure improvement to meet water and

sewer treatment quality standards.

Government transfers includes both operating and capital transfers and reflects the variability in various
Federal and Provincial capital grant programs. The Provincial municipal operating grant (previously
known as revenue sharing grant) is the largest single grant program available to the City of Regina. The

following graph shows the Provincial municipal operating grants received by Regina since 1989.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(in thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT TRENDS (cont'd)

Regina's Municipal Operating Grant

40,000,000

Electrical and gas distribution revenues refiect a trend of increasing rates for electricity and volatile
rates for natural gas. Electrical consumption has been relative steady over the past ten years. Natural gas
consumption increased by 4.7% in 2008, increased by 10.8% in 2009, decreased by 10.1% in 2010,
increased by 1.1% in 2011,decreased by 6.5% in 2012 and increased by 9.2% in 2013.

Contribution of tangible capital assets reflect a trend of increased development in the City.

Taxation revenue increased by $13.2 million in 2013 mainly due to an increased mill rate of 4.45% in
2013.

Service agreement fees for 2013 were $ 10.7 million more than 2012. When a servicing agreement is
entered into between the City and a developer, the fees collected are inflows of cash or accounts
receivable to the City. However, under revenue recognition principles, the revenue is not
recorded/recognized until it is allocated to eligible projects. Servicing agreement fees collected in a given
year per agreements entered into are recorded as revenue or deferred revenue based on these principles.
For 2013, there was a significant increase in roads and parks service agreement fees because more SAF
funds were allocated and spent in eligible projects.

Land sales revenue for 2013 increased by $15.0 million compared to budgetas a result of the 43 parcels
of land that the City developed and placed on the market. This was the first time in several years that the
City of Regina had industrial land available for sale.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(in thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT TRENDS (cont'd)

Other revenue for 2013 were $6.9 million higher than budget. The City of Regina received $2.8 million in
2013 due to the new recycling program and $4.8 million in environmental claims revenue due to a new
revenue program implemented in May 2013,
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(in thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT TRENDS (cont'd)

Expense Summary

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Parks, recreation and community services 65,937 61,422 61,593 57,843 94,582
Police 73,308 69,156 65,229 64,856 61,261
Legislative and administrative services 61,171 57,510 54,055 46,244 50,193
Water, wastewater and drainage 61,435 63,392 56,153 56,409 50,510
Roads and traffic 53,828 45,783 52,397 50,550 43,814
Fire 42,795 43,575 40,950 38,283 31,736
Transit 34,317 31,049 30,494 28,085 26,400
Waste collection and disposal 19,712 30,977 8,490 13,467 12,695
Grants 4,459 4 575 3,968 14,932 45,168
Planning and development ) 16,517 14,167 13,166 11,378 12,039
Total 433,479 421,606 386,495 382,047 428,398

Expenses by Department
2013-2008

450,000

Datlars (000's)
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Parks, recreation and community services Police
' 3
Waler, wastewater and drainage Roads and traffic
&
Transil Waste collection and disposal

Planning and development
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(in thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT TRENDS (cont'd)

Expense by Object

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Wages and benefits 226,631 218,347 210,247 200,941 223,904
Materials, supplies, contracted services and
other goods 122,932 125,930 101,619 99,973 97,075
Transfer payments/grants 5,485 5,942 4,969 15,839 45,873
Utilities 16,110 12,657 14,255 13,163 12,685
Interest and bank charges 3,567 3,547 4,010 4,330 3,662
Amortization of tangible assets 58,754 55,283 51,395 47,801 45,199
Total 433,479 421,606 386,495 382,047 428,398
The  following graph displays  the  proportion of total expenses by  object:
Expenses by Object
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(in thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT TRENDS (cont'd)

Total Expenses by Object
2013-2009
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Amortization of tangible assets

Wages and benefits have generally increased over the past five years due to wage increases and an
increase in employees. The number of people employed by the City in the last five years including casual
staff is as follows:

2013 - 3,604
2012 - 3,579
2011 - 3,500
2010 - 3,390
2009 - 3,358

The provincial government and its Crown Corporations are the City's largest employer. Crown
Corporations include:

e SGI| - Saskatchewan Government Insurance
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(in thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT TRENDS (cont'd)

e SaskTel

s SaskPower

e SaskEnergy

e STC - transportation (bus) services
e [SC - formerly land titles

o SaskGaming - Casino Regina

There are over 4,700 private-sector businesses in Regina, providing financial services, manufacturing and
processing, telecommunications, retail and wholesale services, and agricultural support, to a trading area
with over 500,000 people. Regina's major private-sector employers are:

e Evraz (western Canada's largest steel manufacturer)

e Co-0p heavy Oil Upgraders

e Kalium Chemicals (potash mining)

e AgrEvo Inc. (agricultural chemicals)

e Degelman Industries (agricultural implement manufacturing)
e Brandt Industries (industrial equipment manufacturing)

e Sweeprite Manufacturing (street sweepers)

e Viterra (world's largest grain-handling cooperative)

e Canada Life Insurance (relocated from Toronto in 1993)

o Sears Canada (Western Canada Call Centre)
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(in thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT TRENDS (cont'd)

Statement of Financial Position

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Financial assets
Cash 30,455 30,234 38,066 26,385 15,456
Short-ierm investments 374 670 12,608 5,604 32,324
Accounts receivable 70,608 61,278 51,829 52,720 36,786
Taxes receivable 4,527 2,854 2,871 3,284 31
Long-term investments 274,238 249,288 192,811 195,145 216,755

380,202 344,324 298185 283138 305002

Financial liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 45,004 50,030 46,501 53,671 55,233
Taxes payable to school boards 5,442 5,919 5,053 4,894 5,026
Deferred revenue 35,452 28,928 17,853 16,424 44,313
Capital lease obligations 1,241 1.323 1,395 1,742 1,639
Long-term debt 77,200 81,550 89,900 98,250 106,600
Employee benefit obligations 52,743 52,008 51,110 48,926 43,683
Landfill closure and post-closure 47,337 44,160 27,186 31,658 29,732

264419 263919 238,998 255,465 286,226

Net financial assets (liabilities) 115,783 80,405 59,187 27,673 18,866
Non-financial assels
Tangible capital assets 1,324,081 1,207,572 1,121,240 1,044,820 962,886
Property held for resale 349 42 73 276 396
Materials and supplies 6,764 5,807 6,287 5,241 5,018
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS (DEFICIT) 1,446,977 1,293,826 1,186,787 1,078,010 987,166
ANNUAL SURPLUS 153,151 107,039 108,777 90,844 56,144
Investments

Fluctuations in short and long-term investments reflect the timing of debt issues (the last debt issued was
$84.6 million in 2009), Provincial and Federal government transfers, the timing of expenditures of the
funding allocated to various capital projects, and management of investments to maximize interest
revenue.

Accounts Receivable

Increase in accounts receivable is due to a significant increase of the prepaid- expenses due to the
agreement with the RM of Sherwood regarding land annexation. Per the agreement, the City of Regina
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(in thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT TRENDS (cont'd)

paid over $6.0 million dollars in 2013 which was due on January 1, 2014,
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities decreased by $5.0 million in 2013 due to cheque runs being done
on the last working day of 2013 to clear as many payables as possible, prior to the first two weeks of
January when electronic cheque runs were temporarily suspended to facilitate year-end processing and
reconciliations.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred Revenues increased by $6.5 million which is primarily due to the significant increase of Transit
Advertising Expense (2013-2017), Business Licenses and Dedicated Land deferred revenue in 2013.

City of Regina Long-Term Debt (Non-Consolidated)

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Total debt outstanding, beginning of year 81,550 89900 106,600 28,000 28,000
Debt issued during year - - - - 84,600
Debt repayments during year (4,350) (8,350) (8,350) (8,350) (6,000)
Total debt oulstanding, December 31 77,200 81,550 89,900 98,250 106,600
General municipal debt outstanding, end of year 21124 23968 26812 29656 32,500
Water & Sewer Utilitx debt outstanding. end of year 56076 57582 63,088 68,594 74,100
Total debt outstanding 77,200 81,550 89,900 98,250 106,600
Authorized debt limit, December 31 450,000 350,000 200,000 200,000 200,000
Debt per capita ($)* 333 361 414 457 508
Debt per household ($)** 901 951 1,058 1,156 1,254
Debt per community assessed value 0.41% 0.85% 0.95% 1.06% 1.17%
Debt as a multiple of revenue 13.2% 15.4% 18.2% 21.4% 22.0%

* Population figure is for the Regina Census Metropolitan Area as obtained from Statistics Canada, Annual Demographic Estimates, Sub-provincial
Areas, February 2013,

** Household figure from Stats Canada 2011 census (85,730} is for the Census Metropolitan Area. The 2009 to 2011 figures were based off the
2006 census (84,998). g
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(in thousands of dollars)
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SIGNIFICANT TRENDS (cont'd)

City of Regina Long-Term Debt
Cutstanding at End of Year

Dollars (000's)

General Municipal Waler & Sewer Utility
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(in thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT TRENDS (cont'd)

In 2013, Standard & Poor's affirmed its 'AA+' credit rating for the City based on the City's ongoing
commitment to sound fiscal management, healthy operating and after-capital expenditure surpluses, low
debt and net creditor position, and good economic performance. The City has received an AA+ rating
since its first credit rating in 1989. Strengths are sustained healthy economic performance, strong
operations and after-capital expenditure budgetary surpluses, very moderate debt levels, and excellent
liquidity. Weaknesses are significant unfunded multi employer pension plan liabilities and, like many
Canadian Cities, considerable capital asset replacement, rehabilitation and maintenance needs.

The City's tax-supported debt was $21.1 million at the end of 2013, while debt incurred to fund the Water
and Sewer Utility was $56.1 million. The City did not issue new debt in 2013 but it is expected that
borrowing in the range of over $300.0 million will be required over the period 2013-2016 due to the Regina
Revitalization Initiative and the Waste Water Treatment Plant.

The City's authorized debt limit is $450.0 million (2012 - $350.0 million). The debt limit is approved by the
Saskatchewan Municipal Board pursuant to the provisions of The Cities Act. When service agreement fee
credits are included, the City is $372.6 million below its debt limit.

City of Regina Debt Service Costs

2013 2012 2011 2010 2008
General municipal debt
Principal 2,844 2,844 2,844 2,844 1,400
interest ' 11427 1,164 1,260 1,334 881
3,971 4,008 4104 4,178 2,281
Water and Sewer Utility
Principal 1,506 5,506 5,506 5,506 4,600
Interest 2,256 2,383 2,649 2,868 2,043
3,762 7,889 8,155 8,374 6,643
Total 7,733 11,897 12,259 12,552 8,924
Debt service costs as a % of total expenses 1.8% 2.8% 3.2% 3.4% 2.1%
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(in thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT TRENDS (cont'd)

Employee Benefit Obligations

Employee benefit obligations include liabilities for pensions, sick and severance, vacation, and overtime.
The increase in employee benefit obligations from 2009 to 2013 primarily reflects the impact of general
wage increases and employees reaching the age of retirement. As a larger proportion of the City's work
force reaches retirement age over the next five to ten years, the cash outlays relating to this obligation will
continue to be significant.

Employee benefit obligations also include the liability for the Regina Police Pension. The Regina Civic
Superannuation and Benefits Plan includes a larger group of employees, but since it is a multi-employer
plan, it is not possible to determine the City's portion of the deficit and thus no amount is included in the
statement of financial position for this plan. As disclosed in note 8 d) of the consolidated financial
statements, an actuarial extrapolation completed of the plan for accounting purposes indicates a deficit of
plan assets over the benefit obligation of $117.9 million at December 31, 2013 (2012 - $251.5 million
deficit). In October 2010 an actuarial valuation was conducted as at December 31, 2009 showing a going-
concern deficit of plan assets over the benefit obligation of $237.8 million.

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
City of Regina employer contributions 13,285 13,279 13,003 12,245 11,954

Tangible Capital Assets

The City implemented an accounting change in 2008 resulting in tangible capital assets being shown on
the Statement of Financial Position. This change was required to comply with public sector accounting
standards. Tangible capital assets are capitalized on the Statement of Financial Position at cost and
amortized over their estimated useful lives on the Statement of Operations. In 2007 and prior years,
tangible capital asset additions were expensed in the year of acquisition or construction. The City's
tangible capital assets include land, buildings, vehicles and equipment, roads and bridges, and
underground and other networks.

2013 2012 2011 2010 2008
Tangible Capital Assets - Net Book Value 1,324,081 1,207,572 1,124,240 1,044,820 962,886
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(in thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT TRENDS (cont'd)

Reserves and Accumulated Surplus

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Reserves

City of Regina Reserves 185,150 146,321 126,623 128,749 88,123
Group Benefits Reserves 8,041 7,801 7,621 7,559 7,342
Other Entities Reserves 10,617 9,127 8,033 8,166 8,636
203,808 163,249 142,277 144,474 104,101

Reserves

End of Year

Dollars (000's)

2013 2012

City of Regina Reserves

2011

Group Benelit Reserves

Reserve balances totaled $203.8 million at the end of 2013 (2012 - $163.2 million).

2000

Other Entities Reserves

The City allocates funds to reserves to meet specific future operating and capital expense requirements.
The largest reserves are the General Utility Reserve and General Fund Reserve, which are intended to
provide funding in the event of an operating deficit, as well as for one-time initiatives. The General Fund
Reserve decreased by $5.4 million from 2009 to 2013 due to the approved transfers to fund the eligible

capital projects and other expenses.

The General Utility Reserve increased $64.7 million from 2009 to 2013 primarily due to Water and Sewer
Utility Fund surpluses and return of funds from projects.

The financial statements include a number of liabilities which will be funded from future revenues. These
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(in thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT TRENDS (cont'd)

amounts are reflected in Note 13 to the financial statements as Obligations to be Funded from Future
Revenues, and include amounts related to employee benefit obligations, long-term debt and landfill
closure and post-closure costs.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(in thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2013

ASSESSMENT OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
Sustainability

Sustainability is the degree to which a government can maintain its existing financial obligations without
increasing its debt or tax burden.

One measure of sustainability is financial assets to liabilities. This indicator reports the ratio of a
government's financial assets fo its liabilities. A result lower than one indicates liabilities exceed financial
assets and future revenues will be required to pay for past transactions and events, A result higher than
one indicates financial assets exceed liabilities and financial resources are on hand that can finance future
operations. A trend showing decreases in this indicator may not be sustainable. An example of an event
that could decrease this ratio is continued reliance on debt to finance operations.

The City's financial assets to liabilities ratio has increased from 1.07 to 1.44 from 2009 to 2013. The City's

financial assets remain higher than its liabilities at December 31, 2013 and its sustainability has shown
improvement in the past five years.

Financial Assets to Liabilities Ratio
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(in thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2013

Flexibility

Flexibility is the degree to which a government can change its debt or tax burden and still meet its existing
financial obligations.

One measure of flexibility is debt charges to total revenue. This ratio, often referred to as the interest bite,
indicates the proportion of total revenue that is required to pay interest charges on debt and therefore, is
not available to pay for program costs. It illustrates the extent to which past borrowing decisions present a
constraint on a government's ability to meet its financial and service commitments in the current period.
Specifically, the more government uses revenues to meet the interest costs on past borrowing, the less
will be available for program spending. This indicator is important because, when this indicator increases
for an extended period of time and assuming relatively stable interest rates, it means that the government
has consistently chosen borrowing over increases in taxation or user fees to meet its financial and service
commitments. This will eventually have an effect on its flexibility because once a government borrows, its
first commitment must be to service its debt. Failing to do so would impair its future ability to borrow or to
roll over its existing debt.

For the City this ratio decreased from 0.67% in 2012 to 0.61% in 2013 and therefore has shown increased
flexibility since 2010.

Debt Charges to Total Revenue Ratio
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(in thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2013

Vulnerability

Vulnerability is the degree to which a government is dependent on sources of funding outside of its control
or is exposed to risks that could impair its ability to meet its existing financial obligations.

One measure of vulnerability is Federal and Provincial government transfers to total revenues. This
indicator offers a perspective on the degree of vulnerability the City faces as a result of its dependence on
other levels of government for revenues. An increasing dependence on other levels of government for
revenues means that the City is increasingly vulnerable to the fiscal decisions of another. Reduced
dependence on government transfers may reduce vulnerability but it could also impair sustainability if a
government's own tax base has to replace the revenues lost from a reduction in transfer payments. A
government that reduces its dependence on government transfers and correspondingly reduces its
spending may avoid impairing its sustainability, but it could produce dissatisfaction among constituents.

The City has decreased its reliance on government transfers from 24.68% of total revenues in 2009 to

12.68% in 2013. This indicates decreasing vulnerability and that the City is more able to fund essential
programs and services from own-source revenues.

Government Transfers to Total Revenue Ratio
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(in thousands of dollars)}

December 31, 2013

LOOKING FORWARD

Regina is in an exciting phase of growth. Building permits for 2013 were the highest on record except for
the record year of 2012, population growth hit 3% for the second year in a row and employment has
increased for eight consecutive years. Regina is receiving wide recognition as an attractive, vibrant,
inclusive and thriving city — a great place to work, raise a family or start a business.

The City itself faces challenges with funding the infrastructure needed to support this growth as well as the
infrastructure gap. Revenue growth is expected to be higher in the future; however this revenue growth
alone is not sufficient to keep pace with the increased operating expenses or capital requirements of a
growing city.

The City's 2014 budget demonstrates a continued commitment to the health and prosperity of families with
strategic investments in safety, infrastructure, and responsible growth, while maintaining a high level of
service. It was built on the principles of the 2014 — 2017 strategic plan, Building the Foundation, and will
support the achievement of the Design Regina Plan, The City of Regina's new Official Community Plan
and aim to realize City Council's vision for Regina 2020: Canada's most vibrant, inclusive, sustainable
community, where people live in harmony and thrive in opportunity.

The City of Regina's approved budget for 2014 is focused on the long-term health of the City. Like other
municipalities across the country, Regina is facing enormous infrastructure challenges. The 2014
proposed budget is a step toward facing these challenges. The increase in the 2014 budget also reflects
an additional investment in the Regina Revitalization Initiative Stadium Project. To continue to deliver
programs and services through this growth period, while making progress on its vision, The City approved
a 4.88% increase in the mill rate plus an additional 1% dedicated to Local Road Improvements in 2013.
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT

RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

The accompanying consolidated financial statements and all other information
contained in this report are the responsibility of management. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards (PSAS). The preparation of the
statements necessarily includes some amounts, which are based on the best
estimates and judgments of management. Financial data elsewhere in this
report is consistent with that of the financial statements.

To assist in its responsibility, management maintains accounting, budget and
other controls to provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
appropriately authorized and accurately recorded, that assets are properly
accounted for and safeguarded and that the financial records are reliable for the
preparation of financial statements.

The Finance and Administration Committee, established by City Council,
comprises five elected officials, along with the Mayor as an ex-officio member.
The Committee, in addition to considering a variety of financial and administrative
issues, reviews the content of the annual financial report for presentation to City
Council, and reviews external audit reports.

Deloitte LLP Chartered Accountants, the City's appointed external auditors, have
audited the consolidated financial statements. Their report to the Mayor and City
Council, stating the scope of their examination and opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, follows. '

G [t

Glen Davies Pat Gartner
City Manager A/Deputy City Manager & CFO
May 26, 2014
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Deloitte LLP

2103 - 11th Avenue
Mezzanine Level

Bank of Montreal Building
Regina SK S4P 3Z8
Canada

Tel: 306-565-5200
Fax: 306-757-4753
www.deloitte.ca

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To His Worship the Mayor and Members of City Council

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the City of Regina and its subsidiaries,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2013, and the consolidated
statements of operations, change in net financial assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Muanagement's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the City of Regina and its subsidiaries as at December 31, 2013, and the results of its operations, change in its net
financial assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards.

Chartered Accountants

May 26, 2014
Regina, Saskatchewan
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
December 31, 2013 ‘

(in thousands of dollars)

2013 2012
FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash 30,455 30,234
Short-term investments (Note 4) 374 670
Accounts receivable 70,608 61,278
Taxes receivable 4,527 2,854
Long-term investments (Note 5) 274,238 249,288

380,202 344,324

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 3) 45,004 50,030

Taxes payable to school boards 5,442 5,919
Deferred revenue (Note 18) 35,452 28,928
Capital lease obligations (Note 6) \ . 1,241 1,323
Long-term debt (Note 7) ) 77,200 81,550
Employee benefit obligations (Note 8) \ ?m 52,743 52,009
Landfill closure and post-closure (Note 10) 47,337 44,160
_1"’" 264,419 263,919

NET FINANCIAL ASSETS \ 115,783 80,405

NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Tangible capital assets (Note 9)
Materials and supplies 6,764 5,807
Property held for resale (Note 12) 348 42

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS (Note 13! X 1'4463977 1,293,826

See accompanying notes to consalidated financial statements.

1,324,081 1,207,572
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

(in thousands of dollars)

Budget Actual Actqa!
2013 2013 2012
REVENUE
Taxation (Note 15) 188,449 188,057 174,843
Fees and charges 160,255 158,478 148,209
Government transfers (Note 16) 73,773 74,335 72,452
Electrical distribution 29,636 32,843 30,075
Licenses, fines and levies 12,495 11,814 11,421
Gas distribution 6,700 6,739 5,620
Interest and penalties 1,525 1,406 1,261
Interest on portfolio investments ) 7,713 9,665 8,580
Realized gains on portfolio investm n}ﬁ/ y - (1) 3,008
Service agreement fees \ ) 19,718 25,374 14,696
Land sales s y \ 3,103 18,128 2,667
Other v W 5,943 12,812 4,062
Contribution of tangible capital assets X §F - 46,980 51,753
Qﬁ\_“,_. A 509,310 586,630 528,645
L e —
EXPENSES N
Parks, recreation and community services \ & < ) 67.246 65,937 61,422
Police o & 70,400 73,308 69,156
Legislative and administrative services X /} . 66,114 61,171 57,510
Water, wastewater and drainage X,/ \ﬁ, 66,973 61,435 63,392
T 5 sl i
1T y 3 s
Transit 32,457 34,317 31,049
Waste collection and disposal 18,098 19,712 30,977
Grants 8,151 4,459 4,575
Planning and development 16,005 16,517 14,167
449,463 433,479 421,606
Annual surplus 59,847 163,151 107,039
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,293,826 1,293,826 1,186,787
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS, END OF YEAR 1,353,673 1,446,977 1,293,826

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

(in thousands of dollars)

Budget Actual Actual
- 2013 2013 2012.
Annual surplus 59,847 153,151 107,039
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (138,056) (178,499) (145,537)
Amortization of tangible capital assets 58,793 58,754 55,283
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets - 622 631
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets - 2,614 3,291
Deficit of capital expenses over expenditures (79,263) (116,509) (86,332)
Net change in materials and supplies « <" - (957) 480
Change in property held for sale \ - (307) 31
Deficit of other non-financial expenses over expﬁ’ u‘t_u_rg, - {1,264) 511
\-.
Increase (decrease) in net financial assets \ / (19,416) 35,378 21,218
NET FINANCIAL ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR\ ..... ;g_/ " 80,405 80,405 59,187
< M’ \
NET FINANCIAL ASSETS, END OF YEAR 60,989 115,783 80,405
_' ‘\

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statementa
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

(in thousands of dollars)

2013 2012
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Annual surplus 153,151 107,039
Non-cash items
Amortization of tangible capital assets 58,754 55,283
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets 2,614 3,291
Contribution of tangible capital assets {46,980) (51,753)
Net change in non-cash working capital balances
Increase in accounts receivable (9,330) (9,449)
(Increase) decrease in taxes receivable (1,673) 17
(Decrease) increase in accounts pay:yb_rj arid accrued liabilities (5,026) 3,529
(Decrease) increase in taxes paya, Dl .0 schol | boards (477) 866
Increase in deferred revenue \, - / 6,524 11,075
(Decrease) in capital lease obligations” ""/\ (82) (72)
Increase in employee benefit obligations ,4:,';.-’ ':l if 734 899
Increase in landfill closure and post-closure lial ity 3,177 16,974
(Increase) decrease in property held for resalé, il (307) 31
(Increase) decrease in materials and supplies \”\\ 4: (957) 480
\ 7 ,L 160,122 138,210
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL ACTIVITIES: \ Bf P
Acquisition of tangible capital assets /g\ (131,519) (93,784)
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets v 622 631
Y’ (130,897)  (93,153)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Sales of short-term investments 296 11,938
Purchases of long-term investments (24,950) (56,477)
(24,654) (44,539)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Long-term debt retired (4,350) (8,350)
(4,350) (8,350)
(INCREASE) DECREASE IN CASH POSITION 221 (7,832)
CASH POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR 30,234 38,066
CASH POSITION, END OF YEAR 30,455 30,234
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

(in thousands of dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements of the City of Regina (the City) are prepared by management in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards (PSAS) as recommended by the Chartered Professional Accountants of
Canada (CPA Canada). Significant aspects of the accounting policies adopted by the City are as follows:

a. Reporting entity

The consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses, changes in accumulated surplus,
changes in net financial assets and cash flows of the reporting entity. The reporting entity is comprised of all organizations
and enterprises which are controlled by the City, namely:

° General operating ang' capital funds
N
e Water and séx .-'Ulility/cv' erating and capital funds
A& )
o Regina Public Library (R/Fy/ k.
N ,‘l’ P :, s
° Regina Regional Oppc‘i'rtu’f ‘ties Commission (RROC)
. Regina Downtown Business‘g‘“rﬁif%yément District (RDBID)
- 4 3
: R Y .S,
° Regina’s Warehouse Business |i'\3'pr?/\¢ef _.én)t\;)]stnct (RWBID)

2

. g : : 4 “X
Inter departmental and inter organizational transactions and balances have

The City has a 73.95% (2012 - 73.85%) interest in the Buffalo Poul*.#',n'i"éier Administration Board {(BPWAB), a government
partnership, that is proportionately consolidated. N

The Regina Public Library has a 21.86% (2012 - 21.95%) interest in the Saskatchewan Information and Library Services
Consortium Inc. (SILS), which has been proportionately consolidated.

b. Revenue recognition

Revenues are recorded using the accrual basis of accounting whereby revenues are recognized as they are earned and
measurable. Funds from external parties and earnings thereon restricted by agreement or legislation are accounted for as
deferred revenue until used for the purpose specified. Expenses are accounted for in the period the goods and services
are acquired and a liability is incurred or transfers are due.

Property tax revenue is based on assessments determined in accordance with provincial legislation and the formulas,
principles and rules in the Saskatchewan Assessment Manual. Tax mill rates are established annually. Taxation revenues
are recorded net of a provision for potential losses on outstanding assessment appeals and uncollected taxes. By their
nature, these provisions are subject to measurement uncertainty and the impact on the financial statements of future
periods could be material (Note 15). Penalties on overdue taxes are recorded in the period levied.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

(in thousands of dollars)

1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
b. Revenue recognition (continued)

Electrical distribution revenues consist of the municipal surcharge and payments in lieu of taxes received from SaskPower.
The municipal surcharge revenue and payments in lieu of taxes are equal to 10% and 5%, respectively of the value of the
supply of electrical energy provided by SaskPower to customers within the City limits.

Gas distribution revenues mainly consist of the payments in lieu of taxes received from SaskEnergy and TransGas. The
payment in lieu of taxes received from SaskEnergy is equal to 5% of the fees levied by SaskEnergy to customers within the
City limits. The payment in lieu of taxes received from TransGas is equal to 5% of the transportation fees and the deemed
value of the gas transmitted by TransGas to consumers within the City limits. Pursuant to an agreement with the City for
two major consumers who are served by TransGas, the 5% payments to the City in lieu of taxes are based on the
transportation costs and the deemed value offf fuel stock consumed.

Government transfers are recognized \?\Ehe finap ial statements as revenues in the period in which events giving rise to
the transfer occur, providing the transfers wie.ar ;o;;zf 3, eligibility criteria have been met, and reasonable estimates of the

amounts can be made.

& bl
c. Use of estimates N |

[!

The preparation of financial statements in confoifnity\wi1 Canadian public sector accounting standards requires
management to make estimates and use assumptions thaf' .ffect th‘h reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and reported amounts of rew. Jues ar{. eoenses during the year. Actual results could differ
from those estimates. Significant estimates include emplovef eﬂeﬁﬁ bllgahons landfill liability, provision on tax losses,
and the amortization of tangible capital assets. \\

d. Investments

All investments are recorded at cost less write downs to reflect other than temporary declines in value. Investment
transactions are accounted for at the trade date. Interest income is recorded on the accrual basis.

e. Materials and supplies
Inventories of materials and supplies are valued at the lower of net realizable value and average cost.
f. Taxes collected for others

The City collects taxes for the Regina Separate School Board and the Regina Public School Board. These taxes, which
are not included in the City's financial results, are remitted to the respective Boards less an amount to offset cancellations
relating to school taxes and the City's cost in carrying the receivables.
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NQTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

(in thousands of dollars)

1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
g. Deferred revenue

The City receives service agreement fees, payments in lieu of parking and payments in lieu of dedication of land for public
reserve under the authority of provincial legislation and City bylaws. The City also receives special taxes levied pursuant to
Section 275 of The Cities Act which are to be expended on alley maintenance. As well, the City receives various
government grants for special programs offered by either the Provincial or Federal governments. These funds are
restricted as to their use and are not recognized as revenue until the fiscal period in which they are used to make qualifying
expenses.

Deferred revenue also includes monies received in advance for taxes, transit passes, servicing and sub-division revenue,
prepaid cemetery revenue and pre-season salsjs from the various recreational facilities.

4
h. Employee benefit plans \i

The City participates in contributory definegeas™ fit ) defined contribution pension plans for virtually all of its employees.
Under the defined contribution plan, the City's oblis".uong are limited to its contributions. These contributions are expensed

s >

in the period in which they are due and payable( ol

For defined benefit pension plans considered to\ge _singlesinployer plans, the cost of pension benefits is actuarially
determined using the projected benefit method prorai{éd"% £ 2rvice and the pension plan administrator's best estimate of
expected salary and benefit escalation and retirement ages Jf empli:vees. Market rates are used to measure the accrued
benefit obligation as well as the assets of the pension }a\_ms. _Afuarial gains and losses on pension obligations and/or
pension fund assets are amortized over the average remainigpf -ivice [l'e of the related employee groups.
3 X

For defined benefit plans considered to be multi-employer plans, i@ﬁ?&%@ns are expensed when they are due and
payable. i

The City has various post-employment benefits and termination benefit obligations earned by employees and expected to
be provided to them when they are no longer providing active service.

The obligations for vested sick leave, service or retirement allowances and other post employment benefits have been
determined on an actuarial basis. The obligations for vacation pay and banked time in lieu of overtime have been
accounted for at an undiscounted value at the current rate of pay.

i. Tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes all amounts that are directly attributable to acquisition,
construction, development or betterment of the asset. The cost, less residual value, of the tangible capital assets are
amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

General
Land improvements 10 to 100 years
Buildings and building improvements 15 to 75 years

Vehicles and equipment
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

(in thousands of dollars)

1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

i. Tangible capital assets (continued)

Fire trucks and buses 15 to 30 years
Police vehicles 4 to 10 years
Other vehicles ‘ 2 to 25 years
Equipment 4 to 50 years
Office and information technology
Hardware 2 to 15 years
Software 2 to 10 years
Other / 10 years
Infrastructure / 2
Plants and facilities \ / 5to 75 years
Roads Y < ) 110 40 years
Underground networks A 4 ?\ : 5 to 100 years
Bridges and other structures / 15t0 70 years

g /
Assets under construction are not amortized until théssé}téavaﬂable for productive use.

7

Tangible capital assets received as contributions, which are primarily r /92 +.and underground networks, are recorded at
their fair value at the date of receipt and also are recorded as revenue ra|r yalue is determined based on an estimate of
the cost to construct the contributed asset.

Interest on debt used to purchase tangible capital assets is ‘i\g'{;tahz\f d.

Leases are classified as capital or operating leases. Leases which transfer substantially all of the benefits and risks
incidental to ownership of property are accounted for as capital leases and recorded as tangible capital assets. All other
leases are accounted for as operating leases and the related lease payments are charged to expenses as incurred.

Works of art and historical treasures are not recognized in these financial statements.

j. Budget information

Budget information is presented on a basis consistent with that used for actual results, the budget was approved by
Council on February 19, 2013.

2. NEW STANDARDS AND AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

(in thousands of doliars)

2. New standards and amendments to standards (continued)

The following new standards and amendments to standards, effective for annual periods on or after April 1, 2012, have
been analyzed in preparing these financial statements:

PS 3410, Government Transfers

PS 3510, Tax Revenue

The prospective adoption of these standards had no material impact on the financial statements. The Statement of
Remeasurement Gains and Losses has been omitted as there were no relevant transactions to report.

) :
A number of new standards and amendmen s’_.e\?tandards which may impact the City are not yet effective for the year
ended December 31, 2013, and have not b<en ap} lied in preparing these consolidated financial statements. In particular,

the following new standards and amendﬂ,.inis m/r:= andards are effective for financial statements on or after April 1, 2016:

PS 1201, Financial statem'_/.’(‘ :;[g.D atation

PS 2601, Financial Currencyf\‘@é‘ranslation _

el
- 4

PS 3041, Portfolio Investments '%/
.,/ 4
PS 3450, Financial Instruments ¥ 47 N\

% LN
4 y

The extent of the impact on adoption of these standards is notknown at fhis time.
3. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES \/// ﬂﬁ

Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities is $186 (2012 - $186) related to amounts owed to developers for
infrastructure expenditures made on behalf of the City in 2013. The City issued service agreement fee (SAF) credits to the
developers in 2013 for these expenditures. The developers can redeem the SAF credits to offset payment for future
service agreement fees. If there are SAF credits owing to developers after 10 years the City will repay the value of the
remaining SAF credits to the developers. The City can also choose to repay prior to 10 years. Under the SAF credit
~agreements the total amount of credits that can be issued to developers is $39,900 (2012 - $39,900).

4. SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

Short term investments are recorded at cost and have a fair value approximating cost. The investments are in a money
market fund, holdings of which may include a combination of treasury bills, commercial paper, bankers' acceptances or
promissory notes. The average yield earned from investments was 1.09% (2012 - 1.64%).
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(in thousands of dollars)

5. LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

Long-term investments include investments in a pooled bond fund.

Carrying Value Fair Value

2013 2012 2013 2012

Pooled bond fund 274,238 249,288 266,969 254,554
_ e e e e e e e T e e ey e )

A pooled bond fund is a group of individual bonds managed by an investment manager. The fair value of the pooled bond
fund units is based on the market price per unit which is determined by the overall market values of each of the bonds in

the fund.
> )

The following is a schedule of future minins: w@agftise o {ments under capital leases for computer equipment, software and
building contracts along with the balance of the car dl I:aj se obligation:

6. CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS

4 g
X y
2014 A - 658
2015 X A4 343
2016 & 216
2017 N A ) 69
Total minimum lease payments \ ' S ‘&\ 1,286
Less amount representing interest (2.0% - 9.25%) M ‘ (45)

7. LONG-TERM DEBT

Debenture debt

The City's long-term debt consists of $34,100 (2012 - $38,450) of unsecured debentures issued in the form of fully
registered certificates held by The Canadian Depository for Securities Ltd. (CDS), on behalf of beneficial owners as direct
and indirect participants of CDS. The debentures were issued for 10 year terms with principal payable either annually or
semi-annually and interest payable semi-annually.

The City also has $43,100 (2012 - $43,100) of long term debt in the form of an unsecured debenture issued in the form of
a fully registered certificate held by The Municipal Financing Corporation of Saskatchewan. Interest is payable semi-
annually and the entire principal is due in 2014.
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(in thousands of dollars)

7. Long-term debt (continued)

Bank indebtedness

Pursuant to The Regina Administration Bylaw 2003-69, the City can incur bank indebtedness. Interest on this
indebtedness is calculated at the prime rate of interest less 0.5%, payable monthly and the City has pledged certain
revenues as security for the debt obligation. At December 31, 2013, the City had no bank indebtedness (2012 - $nil).

2013 2012
City of Regina unsecured debentures
Operating fund 21,124 23,968
Utility fund % 56,076 57,5682
Total debt & \ 77,200 81,550
Authorized debt limit /) ) 450,000 350,000
Interest rates \” } — 3.0-5.20% 3.0-5.20%
Interest costs for year /-.;'; 3,143 3,547
The long-term debt is repayable as follows: T \ A{
) 4 y
&\
\‘/ A
2014 Y AYJS 47,450
2015 XAy 2,350
2016 Y 4 Y 2,350
2017 \// ' 2,350
2018 22,700
77,200
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8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The City's employee benefit obligations to be funded in the future are as follows:

Total Total
2013 2012
Defined benefit pension plans
Regina Police Superannuation and Benefits Plan 6,905 5,800
Regina Police Civilian Employees' Early Retirement 662 594
7,567 6,394
Other benefit plans /)
Termination payments y \‘\ 17,596 17,213
Continuation of group life, medical arig’ _,fséntal be' efits 9,819 11,340
Nyl )3 27,415 28,653
A" )
Other plans and arrangements ¥ ot
Vacation ~ g 13,646 13,385
Overtime G 3,383 2,978
Other termination payments and pensions w N\ gr 388 381
Group life, medical and dental plans 2 i \ 344 318
LN 17,761 17,062
b 52,743 52,009
 amr—lt ST

a. Defined benefit pension plans \ >

The Regina Police Superannuation and Benefits Plan is a defined benefit pension plan. As required by provincial
legislation, an actuarial funding valuation is completed at least triennially.

The Regina Police Civilian Employees' Early Retirement Benefits Arrangement is a defined benefit arrangement
augmenting the Regina Police Pension Plan. If a member of the Regina Police Pension Plan retires prior to eligibility for
Canada Pension Plan (CPP) benefits, the City pays benefits equivalent to the CPP benefits the member would receive at
the CPP retirement age until the member starts to receive actual CPP benefits. Contributions are not required from
members.

An actuarial valuation of the defined benefit pension plans is performed using the projected benefit method prorated on
service to determine the accrued benefit obligation and the expense to be recognized in the financial statements.

The results of the most recent actuarial valuations and significant assumptions utilized in these valuations are as follows:
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8. Employee benefit obligations (continued)

Police
Civilian
Employees'
Police Early Total Total
Pension Plan Retirement 2013 2012
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year 127,009 - 127,009 118,268
Employer contributions 6,573 - 6,573 6,160
Actual return on plan assets 13,091 - 13,091 11,007
Less benefits paid (8,781) - (8,781) (8,426)
Fair value of plan assets, end of year \ 137,892 - 137,892 127,009
Accrued benefit obligation, beginning o féa.r > ‘ 146,987 943 147,930 141,060
Current period benefit cost \\,,/_, 4\ 4,292 29 4,321 4,087
Interest on accrued benefit obligation h /’ ) 9,987 64 10,051 9,512
Actuarial loss ¢ Dt 535 74 609 1,756
Less benefits paid ! (8,781) (66) (8,847) (8,485)
Accrued benefit obligation, end of year \'\- ,-:-'"f""f"z 153,020 1,044 154,064 147,930
A Y 7
Funded status, plan deficit 3 (15:128) (1,044) (16,172) (20,921)
- %
Unamortized net actuarial loss \ ,{:'8,223 - 8,223 14,627
X Yoosa 1,044 7,949 6,394

Accrued benefit Iiabilitx 1,908

Current period benefit cost . 29 4,321 4,087
Amortization of actuarial loss 2,086 41 2,127 1,882
Interest expense 1,300 64 1,364 1,020
Benefit expense 7,678 134 7I81 2 6,989
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(in thousands of dollars)

8. Employee benefit obligations (continued)

The actuarial valuations were performed by Aon Consulting Inc.

Police
Civilian
Employees’
Police Pension Early
Plan Retirement
Date of most recent valuation Dec 31,2012 Dec 31, 2012
Discount rate (%) 6.90 6.90
Inflation rate (%) 2.5 2.5
Long term return rate on plan assets (% 6.90 0
Rate of compensation increase (%) \ 3.0 3.0
Expected average remaining service yealt, 13.5 12.7
Contribution rate as a percentage of sarary - .\ /
Members \\ /7 11.33 - 12.83% -
City i 11.83 - 13.33% variable
b. Other benefit plans ‘ \‘\\4 \J.
‘ \

|n‘ IOI"\ payments based upon their unused sick leave

4

Pursuant to union agreements eligible employees are enttilag e
or years of service.

Group life, medical and dental benefits represents the obligation for#e 'bo};i.inuation of group life insurance, dental and
medical benefits for employees on long-term disability and the City'sxgﬁare of group life insurance for early retirees.

Retirees may continue group life insurance coverage to age 65 on a 50% cost shared basis with the City. Employee and
employer premiums for continuation of group life insurance for employees on long term disability are fully funded through
contributions maintained in a reserve. Medical and dental coverage for employees on long-term disability is provided on a
50% cost shared basis between the employee and employer.

A group life insurance plan is administered by Saskatchewan Blué Cross on a self insured basis, with a stop loss provision
limiting losses to claims in excess of 150% of premiums for any calendar year. The primary components of the plan are
funded equally by employer and employees. Dental and medical plans are also provided for most employees on a cost
shared or employer funded basis.

For group life insurance, the balance of the employer and employee premiums collected in excess of claims are held in
group insurance reserves, which are intended for future benefits and stabilization of premiums. The employer's portion of
the obligations under the group insurance plan that will be funded from the reserves is reflected in Other Benefit Plans,
Amounts held in the reserves that reflect obligations to be funded from employee contributions have been included in
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities. The balance of the group life insurance reserves, after reflecting the liabilities

CITY OF REGINA
SASKATCHEWAN, CANADA 80 2013 ANNUAL REPORT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

{in thousands of dollars)

8. Employee benefit obligations (continued)
b. Other benefit plans (continued)

for the employee and employer share of future obligations, is $5,059 (2012 - $5,008). This amount has been included in
Group Benefits Reserves (Note 14).

Actuarial valuations are performed to determine the accrued benefit obligation and the expense to be recognized in the
financial statements. The results of and significant assumptions utilized in these valuations are as follows:

~ Group life,
City Library medical and Total Total

employees employees dental plans 2013 2012
Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of year / % 16,182 1,031 11,340 28,553 28,850
Current period benefit cost i 1,256 77 1,658 2,991 1,960
Interest on accrued benefit obligation \ 507 40 352 899 893
Actuarial (gain) loss il O\ - 35 (2,614) (2,579) (765)
Less benefits paid ‘ /’/ g > 1,107) (53) (918) (2,078) (2,375)
Change in assumptions h 4 Z\lw (329) - - (329) -
Unamortized net actuarial gain C A - {43) - (43) (10)
Accrued benefit liability - unfunded \ flff 1,087 9,818 27,414 28,553
Current period benefit cost Qs fF \ 77 . 1,333 1,960
Amortization of actuarial (gain) loss ‘K‘{f 5 , ! . (8) - (54) (819)
Interest expense 507 X‘n - 547 893

7S
Benefit expense 1,717 ,/_":‘109 2 1,826 2,034
,fgy;
Aon Consulting Inc. Mercer

Date of most recent valuation . Dec 31, 2011  Dec 31,2011 Dec 31, 2011
Discount rate (%) 3.25 3 2640
Rate of compensation increase (%) 45486 36-55 3637
Expected average remaining service years 10-14 L n/a

c. Other plans and arrangements

Employees are entitled to vacation pay and overtime as outlined in administrative policies and/or contractual agreements.
The liability for these benefits is determined using current rates of pay and is not discounted.

Out of scope employees are contractually entitled to certain pensions and termination payments. BPWAB employees are
entitled to termination payments based upon years of service or unused sick leave. Benefits start to vest after 10 or 15
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8. Employee benefit obligations (continued)
c. Other'plans and arrangements (continued)
years of service and are recognized as expenses when they are vested.

Group life, medical and dental plans represents the liability for claims in progress and claim fluctuations under those plans
at the end of the year.

d. Multi-employer defined benefit plans

Two multi-employer defined benefit plans provide benefits to employees of the City of Regina, the Qu'Appelle Health
Region (the Regina General Hospital Divisior}’g\d Community Health Division), Buffalo Pound Water Administration Board,
Regina Public Library, and the non-teachis §"staff of the Board of Education of the Regina School Division No. 4 of
Saskatchewan. The following represer&*-e amol nts for these plans:

“ug® /Q‘lﬂ‘erannualion Long-Term Total Total
Y 4 &:l“_eneﬁt Plan  Disability Plan 2013 2012
Benefit expense X 7 - 13,285 526 13,811 13,796
(Deficit) surplus of plan assets over & -
benefit obligation per plan financial N —1’/
statements - unaudited Ll W,gmr 21,727 (96,184) (237,456)
Contribution rate as a percentage of salary: \/\ y ’,' \
Members BA2NL96Y /., 0.92%
Employers 8.42 - 13.96% /}7 0.92%
City employee contributions 13,162 / > % 526 13,678 13,660

Date of most recent actuarial valuation Dec 31, 20@' =:y5'/ Dec 31 2012
e e G e e

The contributions by the participating employers are not segregated in separate accounts or restricted to provide benefits
to the employees of a particular employer. The portion of the annual benefit costs and of the asset surpluses (deficits) that
are attributable to the City cannot be easily determined.

Accordingly, the multi-employer plans are accounted for on the defined contribution basis. No portion of the asset (deficit)
surplus of the plans are recognized in these financial statements. The benefit expense reflected in the financial statements
is equal to the City's contributions for the year.

e. Defined contribution pension plan

The Casual Employees' Superannuation and Elected Officials' Money Purchase Pension Plan is a defined contribution
plan. Pension fund assets are invested in marketable investments of organizations external to the City. Benefit expense is
limited to the City's contributions to the plan.

2013 2012

Casual employee members' contribution rate 3.00 % 3.00 %
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8. Employee benefit obligations (continued)

e. Defined contribution pension plan (continued)

2013 2012
Elected official members' contribution rate 6.95 % 6.95 %
Members' contributions 302 277
Benefit expense 302 277

9. TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

/

Net Book Value

& \ 2013 2012
General \ //. /}
Land iy /\, 92,948 77,909
Land improvements \ 2 51,326 47,251
Buildings and building improvements / 56,835 57,054
Vehicles and equipment \ G 121,897 115,653
Office and information technology A ¢ N\ /f . 8,480 8,956
A
Infrastructure 4
Plants and facilities 167,530 151,645
Roads 319,886 289,282
Underground and other networks 408,221 390,453
Bridges and other structures 15,551 15,809
1,242,674 1,154,012
Assets under construction 81,407 53,560

324,081 1,207,572
e e e —— e e e

For additional information, see the Consolidated Schedule of Tangible Capital Assets (Schedule 3).

During the year write downs of assets were $nil (2012 - $nil). In addition, tangible capital assets contributed to the City
totalled $46,980 (2012 - $51,753), which were capitalized and recorded as revenue at their fair value at the time of receipt.
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10. LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POST-CLOSURE

Legislation requires closure and post closure care of solid waste landfill sites. Closure care includes final covering and
landscaping of the landfill and implementation of drainage and gas management plans. Post closure care requirements
include cap maintenance, groundwater monitoring, gas management system operations, inspections and annual reports.

2013 2012
Estimated closure and post-closure costs over 40 years after capacity is reached 84,618 80,310
Discount rate 4.469 % 3772 %
Discounted cost 54,265 52,794
Expected year capacity will be reached )\ _z_ogra 2028

Capacity (m3): ‘el & \
Used to date S 4 9,871,000 9,465,000
Remaining A4 / - 1,444,700 1,850,700
Total | 11,315,700 11,315,700
g [
X \/, .
Percent utilized o P A 87.23 % 83.64 %
\\\<,)/ . \} ) A
Liability based on the percentage used ' ) ' 47,337 44,160

The liability recognized in the financial statements is subject to mé&asurement uncertainty. The recognized amounts are
based on the City's best information and judgment. Amounts could change by more than a material amount in the long
term. :

The unfunded liability for the landfill will be paid for per the annual approved budget where capital expenditures will be
funded from the Solid Waste Reserve and operational expenses will be funded through the operating budget, resulting in a
reduction in the transfer to the Solid Waste Reserve.

Financial assurance on projects related to construction liability, including landfill are handled as follows:

Requirement of a Performance Bond and a Labour & Material Payment Bond, both in the amount of 50% of the total
contract price for each contract. The Performance Bond is typically in place through the 2-year warranty period and
provides assurance that the contractor will perform and complete the contracted work. If they do not the bonding company
will either take over the project to completion or compensate the owner up to the value of the bond for completion of the
work. The labour & material payment bond protects the owner from a general contractor not paying their subcontractors or
material suppliers. The bonding company would pay any unpaid subcontractors or material suppliers up to the value of the
bond.
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10. Landfill closure and post-closure (continued)

Builder's Lien Holdback - A provincial act requires that the City withhold payment each progress certificate for 45 days.
Similar to the labour & material payment bond the intent is to protect subcontractors and material suppliers who do not get
paid by the general contractor.

Deficiency Holdback - The City contract provides the right for the owner to withhold payment for deficient work. Typically
the holdback is not released until the deficiency is corrected and in some case it will not be released if the contractor
decides to not complete the work.

Insurance - The City contract requires the general contractor to have insurance jointly in the name of the City for each
project. The City has fairly significant general requirements for all contracts and include special insurance requirements for
unique projects. ie. environmental i |nsurance far environment selective projects.

11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTING% .:S \

As at December 31, 2013, the expected commitg-' iy toé liver services under the Waste Water Treatment Plant Upgrade
(WWTP) projects is expected to be $224,300." (e } i P is being pursued as a P3 project and has qualified for P3
funding from the government of Canada. The fu dit g is for 26% of the capital cost of the WWTP up to $58.7 million. At
this time, the preferred proponent has not been selc cted thgrp" re; the exact amount of this upgrade won't be known until
the preferred proponent is selected and the contract ¥ n\.m ‘IIZf under the competitive bid process.

The City has also committed to the following three pijEC'.-\ '/,/, \

1) Mosaic Stadium Replacement — constmcﬂon of a pew stadium at Evraz Place. Construction is
expected to start in Summer of 2014 and to be complet oy Sprmg of 2017. The City had expenditures of
$3,297 in 2012 and $9,031 in 2013 for assets un;! cong.ruct:on The expected cost of the Stadium
Replacement project is $278,200.

2) Taylor Field Neighbourhood — this project relates to the development of the area where the current
Mosaic Stadium is located. Significant work is not expected to start until the stadium is decommissioned
in 2017.The City spent $769 in 2013 for the purchase of land.

3) Railyard Renewal — this project relates to the development of the old CP Railyard. The City put a
deposit of $750 for the purchase of CP Rail Land in 2012 and paid the remaining $6,780 in 2013.

12. PROPERTY HELD FOR RESALE

Property acquired through the tax enforcement process and held for sale is recorded at the lesser of cost and net
realizable value. Cost is equal to the outstanding taxes including any applrcab!e penalttes as well as the costs incurred in
acquiring the land. The valuation allowance reflects a potential reduction in the carryrng value that may be realized upon
sale. Land acquired other than through the tax enforcement process and held for sale is recorded at lower of cost or net
realizable value.
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12. Property held for resale (continued)

2013 2012
Property held for resale 661 661
Valuation allowance (651) (651)
Property held for resale, net of allowance 10 10
Acquired property held for resale, net of allowance 339 32

349 42

gl o
Ny .',,_'Q'.:_
b I |
? i
<7

CITY OF REGINA

7,392

Progertz held for resalei estimated fair value - unaudited 6i717
\ _ ) ) |
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13. ACCUMULATED SURPLUS

Accumulated surplus represents the equity of an organization. In determining accumulated surplus, revenues and
expenses are recognized as they are earned and incurred, according to PSAS.

Council through its annual budget process and other policies and bylaws may fund certain amounts on a basis that differs
from the expense recognition basis prescribed by PSAS.

Unappropriated surpluses represent equity relating to certain entities consolidated within the City's financial statements that
have not been designated for a specific use by that entity.

Appropriations for capital projects and reserves represent amounts that have been internally restricted for specific

purposes. /

Obligations to be funded from future reye JES rep) 2sent amounts recogmzed as expenses according to PSAS, that will be
funded from future revenues. )

\L - P

-

Infrastructure to be funded from future service 2« ‘enle t fees represent infrastructure that has been constructed by the
City, the costs of which are expected to be funa. d fr Ti-ature service agreement fees.

I'\“ e 2013 2012

UNF

Unappropriated surpluses: y P
Regina Downtown Business Improvement District \ . \) (270) 50
Regina Regional Opportunities Commission Y \) 7 243 585
Regina Public Library /) 1,281 1,098
Regina's Warehouse Business Improvement District o 3 (40) (32)
Tangible capital assets \ 1,324,081 1,207,572

Appropriated surpluses: ;
General capital projects 67,805 55,211
Utility capital projects 59,095 79,870
Reserves 203,808 163,249

Infrastructure to be funded from future service agreement fees:
Water, wastewater and drainage (30,505) (34,735)

Obligations to be funded from future revenues:

Long-term debt (77,200) {81,550)
Employee benefit obligations (52,743) (52,009)
Landfill closure and post-closure (47,337) (44,160)
Capital lease obligations (1,241) (1,323)

Accumulated surelus 1i446i977 1,293,826
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14. RESERVES

2013 2012
City of Regina reserves:

General utility reserve 85,179 63,026
Facility reserve 600 400
General fund reserve 27,574 27,051
Landfill reserve 21,402 18,318
RRI-stadium reserve 710 -

Land development reserve ‘ 17,710 6,496
Asset revitalization reserve 5,611 7,644

Equipment replacement reserve 4,534 4,354

Social development reserve \ Y g > 5,654 4,145
\\'/ - =/)

Operational commitments reserve 161 -

Planning & sustainability reserve % 6,726 3,990
Winter road maintenance reserve \//\ ) ‘ 3,523 3,523
Regina Police Service general reserve h ¢ Z B 7 1,440 2,354
Asphalt reserve & . 819 1,248
Grants reserve N 512 936
Golf course reserve ' X \}'é \ 554 730
Technology reserve \i'f_ N\ 757 644
Employer provided parking reserve il 5 \§ & 685 537
Cemetery reserve \ “f'\ 507 520
Pest management reserve 337 296
Regina Police Service radio equipment reserve ; 165 111
A 185,150 146,321

Group Benefits reserves:
Group life insurance reserve 5,059 5,008
Dental benefits reserve 1,739 1,631
Medical - City of Regina reserve 735 732
Police services premium reduction reserve 378 379
Police long-term disability reserve 130 51
8,041 7,801

Other Entities'reserves:

Regina Public Library reserves 8,236 7,288
Buffalo Pound Water Administration Board capital replacement reserve 1,913 1,416
Regina Downtown Business Improvement District reserve ' 329 321
Regina's Warehouse Business Improvement District infrastructure reserve 139 102
10,617 9,127
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14. Reserves (continued)

2013 2012
203,808 163,249
15. TAXATION REVENUE
Budget Acttial Actual
2013 2013 2012
Total taxation revenue levied - 303,774 290,323

Taxies levied on behalf of others:

Regina School Division No. 4 \ ' . \ - (79,505) (79,023)

_Regina Roman Catholic Separate Schou! bivisiop o, 8 - (36,212) (36,457)
R Y
Taxation revenue S /.:;_7‘:_\ 188,449 188,057 174,843
P
City of Regina \\ \:J
Municipal levies - 154,996 154,450 142,512
Grants in lieu \_7 y 11,079 11,350 11,050
Supplementary taxes _ AV 4 N 2,000 1,660 2,059
Other Y A .\ 2,135 1,761 1,737
S\ Y 170210 169,221 157,358
X Z -1
Regina Public Library "4
Taxation levies j K) 16,036 16,594 15,528
Grants in lieu 1,154 1,224 1,194
17,190 17,818 16,722
Regina Downtown Business Improvement District levies ‘ 829 776 604
Regina's Warehouse Business Improvement District levies 220 242 159
188,449 188,057 174,843

“

Taxation revenues are recorded net of an allowance for uncollectible outstanding taxes and a provision for potential losses
on assessment appeals outstanding. As at December 31, 2013, the following amounts are reflected in the Statement of
Financial Position for these provisions:

Allowance for doubtful outstanding taxes netted against taxes receivable - 2,252 1,904
Provision for assessment appeals included in accounts payable - 2,825 3,140
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16. GOVERNMENT TRANSFERS

Budget
2013 2013 2012
Operating transfers
Federal 480 665 970
Provincial 44,221 54,755 53,657
44,701 55,420 54,627
Capital transfers
Federal / 11,080 11,864 16,078
Provincial > AN 18,475 7,051 1,747
L A 29 555 18,915 17,825
Seat® 74,256 74,335 72,452

\:r!. 2" /‘}

Government transfers do not include grants in lieu / & taxes received from the Federal and Provincial governments. These
amounts are included with taxation revenue (Note ,p) -

17. GOVERNMENT PARTNERSHIP A \}é’ |

BPWAB operates under an agreement between the Cmes f. Jc »e Je v and Regina. Its purpose is to operate the water
treatment plant at Buffalo Pound Lake and to supply water tc. the }wo c“u\s at cost. Any (recovery) distribution of annual
operating (deficit) surplus is shared between the cities according to their res ﬁctwe usage.

The following is a schedule of relevant financial information as st& E’-ﬂ“wnthm the financial statements of BPWAB for the
year ended December 31, 2013 in thousands of dollars. Please note there are no known contractual obligations or
contingencies as at December 31, 2013. These amounts represent 100% of the Board's financial position and activities:

2013 2012
Financial assets 4,306 4238
Tangible capital assets 23,094 24,521
Other non-financial assets 98 70
Total assets 27,498 28,829
Financial liabilities 2,260 2,849
Capital replacement reserve 2,587 1,918
Obligations to be funded from future revenues (443) (459)
Investment in tangible capital assets 23,094 24 521

Total liabilities and eguitz 27I498 28,829
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

{(in thousands of dollars)

17. Government Partnership (continued)

2013 2012
Revenue 10,717 10,186
Expenses 11,439 10,982
Net loss 722 796

The above amounts are proportionately consolidated within the consolidated financial statements at 73.95% (2012 -
73.85%), the City's interest in the government partnership. After eliminating transactions between the City and the
partnership, the following amounts have been included in the consolidated statements:

A \ 2013 2012
Financial assets \ / y 2,190 1,670
Financial liabilities A .\ (689) (711)
Non-financial assets a2 17,150 18,160
Net assets J—v 18,651 19,118
L | i
Revenue . \‘*‘é \ 1,151 1,090
V &
Expenses \ A 7,272 6,800
18. DEFERRED REVENUE
Externally
December restricted Revenue  December
31,2012 inflows earned 31, 2013
Provincial/Territorial Base Fund 1,001 1,000 (487) 1,514
Service agreement fees 21,942 3,487 (3,328) 22,101
Other 5,985 5,852 - 11,837
28,928 10,339 3,815 35,452
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

(in thousands of dollars)

19. FUNDS HELD IN TRUST

The City of Regina administers the following trusts. As related assets are not owned by the City, the trusts have been
excluded from the consolidated financial statements. Following is a summary of the net assets of the trusts:

2013 2012

Perpetual Care Trust 2,614 2,607
Williamson Driver Award 5 5
2,619 2,612

20. SEGMENTED INFORMATION

p

The City is a diversified municipal governp: ot ?ﬁstitution that provides a wide range of services to its citizens, including
police, fire, public transit, and water. \»" new or anizational structure was introduced in 2011 and formally took effect
November 1, 2011, the key changes inCiuded: ' ving to three divisions from four; each division is led by a Deputy City
Manager rather than a General Manager;\c".;':...‘aﬁ }f{ Y Executive Director positions in charge of Legal, and Governance
and Strategy. The three new divisions are 9":";pp¢s‘ations, Community Planning and Development, and Corporate
Services. The segmented information in thesC sta’ #7"ts has been adjusted to reflect the new organizational structure
described. For management reporting purposes tr 2 City's operations and activities are organized and reported by Fund.
Funds were created for the purpose of recording toecific_actiriies to attain certain objectives in accordance with special
regulations, restrictions or limitations. The financial agii’ﬁﬁ{%% 1 the City reported by Fund are included in Schedule 1. City
services are provided by divisions and their activities an’ reportbd in these funds. Certain divisions that have been
separately disclosed in the segmented information in Scm"—\’ e ,2/,,-*f_ﬁ;ng_ with the services they provide, are as follows:
)./-

& N
a. City Operations \ ’ /)

City Operations is responsible for ensuring the City's infrastructur’" systeins are effectively preserved, funded, and
operated. This division preserves and operates municipal infrastruciJre involving roadways, traffic, water, drainage, waste
water and solid waste to meet regulatory requirements and community needs. City Operations also includes fire services,
parks and open space services and public transportation services.

b. Community Planning and Development

Community Planning and Development provides a long term comprehensive approach to planning, engineering and
development processes to ensure the efficient use of land and community infrastructure. The division encompasses land
use, neighbourhood, transportation and infrastructure planning, long range capital planning, development review, building
permits and inspection, real estate services, community, recreation and cultural programs and services.

c. Corporate Services

Corporate Services provides services and support to both internal and external customers, enabling City Operations to
maximize effectiveness and potential. Corporate Services includes Financial Services, Information Technology Services,
Human Resources, Fleet Services, and Facilities Management Services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

(in thousands of dollars)

20. Segmented information (continued)

d. Regina Police Services

Regina Police Services is responsible for the delivery of policing services within the municipality and is dedicated to a safe
and caring community.

For each reported segment, revenues and expenses represent both amounts that are directly attributable to the segment
and amounts that are allocated on a reasonable basis. Therefore, certain allocation methodologies are employed in the
preparation of segmented financial information. The accounting policies used in these segments are consistent with those
followed in the preparation of the consolidated)financial statements as disclosed in Note 1. For additional information see
the Consolidated Schedule of Operations/gy -gigent (Schedule 2).

21. COMPARATIVE FIGURES \ ) /

Certain comparative figures have been reclas%'_ ; i cﬁf\:;'orm with the current year's presentation.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS BY FUND AND ORGANIZATION Schedule 1
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013
(in thousands of dollars)
General Utility General Total City of
Operating Operating Capital Utility Capital Regina
REVENUES
Taxation 169,683 - - - 169,683
Fees and charges 52,667 103,781 151 - 156,599
Government transfers 52,929 1,465 18,916 g 73,310
Electrical distribution 32,843 - - - 32,843
Licenses, fines and levies 11,136 - 678 - 11,814
Gas distribution 6,739 - - - 6,739
Interest and penalties 1,210 168 - - 1,378
Interest on portfolio investments 7,317 1,600 587 161 9,665
Realized gains on portfolio investments/-:r' 3 4] - - - (1)
Service agreement fees i > 1,284 - 11,126 12,964 25,374
Land sales | \ - A4 18,128 : . . 18,128
Other st / 49,054 195 850 4,789 24,888
Contribution of tangible capital assets vl /. - . 34,400 12,580 46,980
\ f‘ 372 989 107,209 66,708 30,494 577,400
EXPENSES \\” ;:Z '
Parks, recreation and community services 38,773 ) 3,663 - 41,736
Police h 423 \ 4 - 71,227
Legislative and administrative services 42 5"’ S /2 9,327 - 51,889
Water, wastewater and drainage 2.r 5 6 F.i - 5,068 58,733
Roads and traffic 26,316 /’d 6,676 - 32,992
Fire 41,461 ‘i - 154 - 41,615
Transit 30,355 - 502 - 30,857
Waste collection and disposal 17,803 - 808 - 18,611
Grants 5,357 - 26 - 5,383
Planning and development 16,517 - - - 16,517
Amortization - - 42,098 13,107 55,205
289,694 53,638 63,258 18,175 424765
Annual surplus (deficit) 83,295 53,571 3,450 12,319 152,635
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS BY FUND AND ORGANIZATION

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

(in thousands of dollars)

RDBID RROC BPWAB

RPL

Schedule 1

Consolidation Consolidated
adjustments 2013

= - 28

- - a &

3 2 5 //
A d
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32 = o

= 2 = v

—

/)‘

(463) 188,057
(6,737) 158,478
(923) 74,335

. 32,843

: 11,814

. 6,739

- 1,406

. 9,665

- (1)

. 25,374

- 18,128
(12,113) 12,812
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866 1,780 6,746
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(20,2386) 586,630

746 2,083 -
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i 71,227
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S (17,694) 47,058
k. 32,992
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= 30,857
5 18,611
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. 58,754
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CITY OF REGINA
SASKATCHEWAN, CANADA

1,289

95

- 163,151

2013 ANNUAL REPORT



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS BY SEGMENT Schedule 2
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

(in thousands of dollars)

Community
City Planning and Regina Police Corporate  Total City of
Operations Development  Services Services Regina
REVENUES
Taxation - 169,683 - B 169,683
Fees and charges 34,784 16,060 800 104,955 156,599
Government transfers 12,648 2,478 6,812 51,372 23,310
Electrical distribution - - - 32,843 32,843
Licenses, fines and levies 694 6,815 . 4,305 11,814
Gas distribution - - - 6,739 6,739
Interest and penalties - 1.211 - 167 1,378
Interest on portfolio investments / A 96 - - 9,569 9,665
Realized gains on portfolio mvestments - - - (1 (1
Service agreement fees ) ) 3,225 8,736 - 13,413 25,374
Land sales J P 2N 18,128 - - 18,128
Other S, 48216 516 1,531 14,625 24,888
Contribution of tangible capital assets X ;ff—"““"“ﬁ 638 s - 5,342 46,980
(i;' 101,304e7 223,627 9,143 243,329 577,400
A
EXPENSES A \3*4“ )
Wages and benefits 9‘{;&53 /,,f;s__‘? 22,340 59,086 35,496 212,875
Materials, supplies, contracted services and Y A '

other goods 47,503 ¢ z@,uso 7,332 42,896 127,271
Utilities 14,870 432 4,201 19,508
Transfer payments/grants 256 \ 4 053) 44 2,055 6.408
Interest - - 3,498 3,498
Amortization 43,760 - 2,081 9,364 55,205
202,342 55,938 68,975 97,510 424,765

Annual surplus (deficit) s‘l 01,041 E 167,689 559,832) 145,819 152,635
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS BY SEGMENT

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

(in thousands of dollars)

Schedule 2

Consolidation Consolidated

RDBID RROC BPWAB RPL RWBID  adjustments 2013
776 2 - 17,818 243 (463) 188,057
58 757 6,713 1,076 12 (6,737) 158,478
- 1,023 - 925 (923) 74,335
- - 5 - - 32,843
- E : - . 5 11,814
- - . = 2 6,739
. = 28 - - 1,406
- - - ) - - 9,665
- : « ) : - ("
- - X § - - 25,374
- = - gl /) A & 18,128

32 . 5 \{‘ (12,113) 12,812
- : - X }f-‘“’ - 46,980
866 1,780 6,746 (9.a1gﬁ; 255 (20,236) 586,630
374 1,211 2,190 10.948-\:‘ /S.S (972) 226,631
372 872 2,465 5,367 \ ETe  (13,426) 122,932
- - 1,364 . 9 (4,915) 16,110
. . L . \/ o (923) 5,485
- - - 69 - . 3,567
42 80 1,270 2,146 11 - 58,754
788 2,163 7,289 18,530 180 (20,236) 433,479
78 383 543 1,289 75 - 153,151
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS BY SEGMENT Schedule 2
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

{in thousands of dollars)

City Planning and Regina Police Corporate  Total City of

Operations Development  Services Services Regina
REVENUES
Taxation - 157,807 - - 167,807
Fees and charges 32,747 17,465 . 667 95,011 145,890
Government transfers 16,824 10,570 6,373 37,392 71,159
Electrical distribution - - - 30,075 30,075
Licenses, fines and levies 195 11,226 - - : 11,421
Gas distribution - - - 5,620 5,620
Interest and penalties - 1,098 - 260 1,358
Interest on portfolio investments 139 - - 8,441 8,580
Realized gains on portfolio investments - - - 3,006 3,008

Service agreement fees v 4 1,647 - 13,031 14,696
Land sales \ 2,667 - - 2,667
Other : 532 1,309 12,403 15,261
Contribution of tangible capital assets - - 8,554 51.753
203,012 8,349 213,793 519,293
EXPENSES s y .

Wages and benefits 92, ;3 ,‘, 20 961 60,115 31,026 204,765

Material, supplies, contracted services and Yy 4
other goods 61, 3n=’ 3 , 3 . 418 6,599 29,473 128,793
Utilities 12, 3 365 3,923 16,705
Transfer payments/grants 298 ’f %l) 51 2,214 6,820
Interest . . # . 3,547 3,547
Amortization 40,487 2,024 8,969 51,480
207,072 56,732 69,154 79,152 412,110

Annual surplus (deficit) !112,9332 146i280 !60,805! 134,641 107,183
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS BY SEGMENT
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

(in thousands of dollars)

Schedule 2

Consolidation Consolidated

RDBID RROC BPWAB RPL RWBID  adjustments 2012

604 & . 16,722 159 (449) - 174,843

18 514 6,393 1,595 13 (6,331) 148,092
5 1,108 . 1,108 . (923) 72,452
. % « . : . 30,075
. . . " . . 11,421
- 5 * . . . 5,620
i « 21 - - . 1,379
. . . . 8,580
- - : - - 3,006
- 4 = S 14,696
i . a 5 2,667
53 & ’ o " (11,253) 4,061
- - % - - 51,753
675 1,622 172 (18,956) 528,645

W‘;:M‘; % &

295 1,001 1,992 11,262 ¥ 39 (977) 218,347
353 568 2,679 5,155 \/ 497 (11,815) 125,930
- 160 933 . 4 ‘/}‘ (5,241) 12,557
45 - - 5 > ‘3\' (923) 5,942
- = = . \A/ 2 | 3,547

36 82 1,303 2,375 7 . 55,283
729 1,811 6,907 18,792 213 ' (18,956) 421,606
54 189 493 633 41 - 107,039
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CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS Schedule 3
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

(in thousands of dollars)

General
Buildings and Office and
Land building  Vehicles and information
Land improvements improvements equipment technology
Cost
Balance, beginning of year 77,909 112,799 114,380 220,657 20,771
Add:

Additions during the year 15,439 5,748 799 22,263 3,141

Transfers from assets under construction 750 1,525 1,255 1,461 278
Less: ‘

Disposals during the year 517 126 11,353 2,532
Balance, end of year 119,555 116,308 233,028 21,658
Accumulated amortization
Balance, beginning of year 65,548 57,326 105,004 11,816
Add:

Amortization 2,857 2,274 16,833 3,893
Less: <\ y ) Ry |

Accumulated amortization on disposals Y 4% 3 !_76 126 10,708 2,528
Balance, end of year - X 6835\. 59,474 111,129 13,180
Net Book Value 92,948 5# 2% ) 56,834 121,899 8,478
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CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS Schedule 3
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

(in thousands of dollars)

Infrastructure

Underground Bridges and Assets

Plants and and other other under

facilities Roads networks structures construction 2013 2012
249,460 606,435 551,279 26,190 53,560 2,033,440 1,909,725
21,159 46,840 24,270 173 38,667 178,499 145,537
613 3,958 980 = . 10,820 41,824
233 6,583 _ / \ - 10,819 33,313 63,646
270,999 650,650 576,329 / | 26,363 81,408 2,189,446 2,033,440
97,815 317,153 160826 (et . 825868 788485
5,775 19,208 7,482 \‘a:fé\' y - 58,754 55,283

19,257 17,900
865,365 825,868
11,324,081 1,207,572

e it

123 5,596 - ™ \‘ Y
.

103,467 330,765 168,308 10,813
167,532 319,885 408,221 15,550
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Deloitte LLP

2103 - 11th Avenue
Mezzanine Level

Bank of Montreal Building
Regina, SK $4P 3Z8
Canada

Tel: 306-565-5200
Fax: 306-757-4753
www.deloitte.ca

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To His Worship the Mayor and Members of City Council

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the General Trust, which comprise the statement of
financial position as at December 31, 2013, and the statement of revenue, expenditures and change in fund
balance for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion. .

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of General
Trust Fund of the City of Regina as at December 31, 2013, and the results of its operations for the year then
ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Chartered Accountants

May 26, 2014
Regina, Saskatchewan
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General Trust Fund-

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(in thousands of dollars)

As at December 31

Perpetual  Williamson

Care Driver Total Total
Trust Award 2013 2012
ASSETS
Cash 83 - 83 213
Long—term investments (Note 4) 2,627 5 2,632 2,538
Total Assets 2,710 5 2,715 2,751
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES )
Due to the City of Regina / \\ 96 - 96 139
Fund balance R o 2,614 5 2,619 2,612
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance‘;“\ /) 2,710 5 2,715 2,751

See accompanying notes. &
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General Trust Fund

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
(in thousands of dollars)

For the year ended December 31

Perpetual  Williamson

Care Driver Total Total

Trust Award 2013 2012
REVENUE
Contributions 7 - 7 8
Investment income 95 - 95 139
Total Revenue 102 - 102 147
EXPENDITURES
Cemetery maintenance 95 - 95 138
Total Expenditures ;)« g5 - ) 95 138
Excess of revenue over expendi@éé E 7 - 7 9
Fund balance, beginning of year \\/ )Y 2,607 5 2,612 2,603
Fund balance, end of year ' £ 7 5 2,619 2,612
See accompanyi <7

panying notes. T \V 4
W 3
- ./ 4 L
X 4
N\ B, L
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General Trust Fund

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(in thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2013

1. PURPOSE OF FUND

The General Trust Fund comprises the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of the following two
trusts administered by the City of Regina (the City):

(a) Perpetual Care Trust - In accordance with The Cemeteries Act, 1999, a portion of the monies
received by the City from the sale of cemetery plot rights is put into a trust and invested. The income
from the trust is used to pay for care and maintenance of the plots. Special approval is needed from
the Registrar of Cemeteries before trust capital can be used to fund care and maintenance.

(b) Williamson Driver Award - When a bond was bequeathed to the City of Regina with trust conditions
attached, a trust was established under The Trust Act. Each year the income from the bond is used
to provide a safe-driving award E?” ‘a Regina Transit employee.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICAQ( ACCQJ'NTING POLICIES

)
These financial statements have\:een prepéred in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards, as recommended by the CE ed I?rofessmnal Accountants of Canada (CPA Canada). The
following policies are considered to be Signi

(a) The preparation of the financial statégznts _in-accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards requires management to make es@uéates and use assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the fi nahmal statements and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the period. Ae@\al resylts cq\uld differ from those estimates.

(b) Investments are recorded at cost less wntedo;?qs to}eﬂeef her than temporary declines in values.
Any gains or losses are recognized on disposition of the inve tments.

45
(c) Investment revenue is recorded on the accrual basis. \\/

(d) NEW STANDARDS AND AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS
The following new standards and amendments to étandards, effective for annual periods on or after
April 1, 2012, have been analyzed in preparing these financial statements:
PS 1201, Financial Statement Presentation
PS 2601, Financial Currency Translation
PS 3410, Government Transfers
PS 3450, Financial Instruments
PS 3510, Tax Revenue

The prospective adoption of these standards had no material impact on the financial statements.
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General Trust Fund

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(in thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2013

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying value of the amount due to the City of Regina approximates fair value due to its short-term
nature.

Long-term investments are primarily exposed to foreign currency, interest rate, and market risk.

Interest rate risk refers to the adverse consequences of interest rate changes on the General Trust Fund's
cash flows, financial position and excess of revenues over expenditures. This risk arises from differences
in the timing and amount of cash flows related to the General Trust Fund's assets and liabilities.

Foreign currency risk arises from hol %ﬁ’ﬁ'_'nvestments denominated in currencies other than the Canadian
dollar. Fluctuations in the relative’value of the Canadian dollar against these foreign currencies can result
in a positive or negative effect oﬁ;‘t\he fair e "'Iue}of investments held in the pooled bond fund.

\‘__‘._lz. /f‘l &
Market risk is the risk that the value of ag{fﬁ“&résf%\:nt will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices,
whether those changes are caused bv;faét;a‘rs; specific to the individual investment, or factors affecting all
securities traded in the market. A |

4. LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS N NS "
: & P

The long-term investments consist of a pooled b’gnd f/t_mﬂ. _pooled bond fund is a group of individual

bonds managed by an investment manager. The market value of the pooled bond fund units is based on

the market price per unit which is determined by the overall market values of each of the bonds in the

fund. 2 o 3
v 2013 2012
X
Investment cost 2,632 2,538
Market value 2,614 2,647

5. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS AND CHANGE IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS

The statement of cash flows and the statement of change in net financial assets have not been prepared
for the year ended December 31, 2013, as they would not provide additional information.
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Related Boards and Authorities

Regina Regional Opportunities Commission
(RROC)

255, 1919 Rose Street

Regina, Saskatchewan S4P 3P1

Fax: (306) 352-1630

Phone: (306) 522-0227

Contact: Mr. John Lee

Buffalo Pound Water Administration Board
c/o City of Regina

Queen Elizabeth Il Court

P.O. Box 1790

Regina, Saskatchewan S4P 3C8

Fax: (306) 694-6050

Phone: (306) 694-1377

Contact: Mr. Ryan Johnson

Regina Public Library

2311 - 12" Avenue

P.O. Box 2311

Regina, Saskatchewan S4P 3Z5
Fax: (306) 352-5550
Phone: (306) 777-6060

Contact: Ms. Gail Krugeron

THE CITY OF REGINA
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Regina Downtown

140 — 2401 Saskatchewan Drive
Regina, Saskatchewan S4P 4H8
Fax: (306) 359-8060

Phone: (306) 359-7541

Contact: Ms. Judith Veresuk

Regina’s Warehouse Business
Improvement District

202 — 1275 Broad Street

Regina, Saskatchewan S4R 1Y2
Fax: (306) 585-1765

Phone: (306) 585-3948

Contact: Ms. Lovella Jones
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2013 Annual Report Highlights

The Annual Report provides a summary of the numerous
achievements throughout the year. In 2013, those included
the approval of our new Official Community Plan, the creation
of a Comprehensive Housing Strategy and another year of
tremendous building activity. This year also featured a vote
by residents to proceed with a public private partnership
for a new sewage treatment plant, and progress on the
Regina Revitalization Initiative, including the building of a
new community stadium. We also showed the country our
prowess in hosting a number of events. A snapshot of these
achievements are highlighted below:

Regina Revitalization Initiative (RRI)

The RRI is the largest redevelopment project in our city’s history and will bring
neighbourhoods, facilities and people together in ways never before possible.
It will create new opportunities for business and investment, and it will bring
new life to our city’s core with walkable connections between the sites and
convenient links to major thoroughfares from Evraz Place.

In 2013, the Regina Revitalization Initiative (RRI) focused on the Stadium
Project; specifically, procuring the design, construction and interim financing
for the replacement of Mosaic Stadium through a Public Private Partnership
(P3) procurement process. This included working with our project partners
and a team of experts to define the project outcome specifications and
implement the Request for Qualifications (RFQ) and a Request for Proposal
(RFP) processes. In addition, the project team moved forward with demolition
and utility relocation work required to prepare the site at Evraz Place for the
replacement for Mosaic Stadium.

A

City of Regina | REGINA

Infinite Horizons

Design Regina, the City’s new
Official Community Plan

Design Regina contains a comprehensive
policy framework that will guide the
physical, environmental, economic,
social and cultural development of

the city, generating the new Official
Community Plan. As such, it plays

a key role in setting the long-term
direction for Regina and is essential to
managing future growth, development
and change in the community. The new
Official Community Plan has formed

the basis of the City’s strategic and
business planning for the next four years,
building the foundation for long-term
implementation.

In 2013, Regina City Council approved a
new Official Community Plan (OCP) for
the city. This plan will guide the growth
of Regina over the next 25 years in
accordance with the priorities of Regina
citizens such as economic prosperity and
long-term financial viability.
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Regina demonstrated its prowess

at hosting a number of fantastic
events in and around our
community throughout 2013.

107st Grey Cup Festival

In November, Regina successfully
hosted the week-long Grey Cup
Festival in a variety of locations
throughout the community. These
events all led up to the finale — the

biggest party in Canada —the 101st

Grey Cup Championship game. Thi
record-breaking event attracted
45,000 fans to Mosaic Stadium

to witness the Saskatchewan
Roughriders seal their fourth Grey

S]

Cup victory. It was a game that won’t

soon be forgotten.

Juno Awards

Canada’s premier music awards show
was hosted in Regina in April. During

the week leading up to the awards,
many events were held at a variety
of venues throughout Regina and

Moose Jaw. The final event was the

Juno Awards, held at Regina’s Brandt

Centre which was transformed
into a star-studded, glamorous
Facility. All the events surrounding
the Juno Awards provided a terrific
opportunity to show off our great
community.

Paul McCartney Concert

Mosaic Stadium welcomed rock
and roll royalty, Sir Paul McCartney,
in August. Nearly 45,000
spectators witnessed a spectacular
performance.

Road Renewal

In 2013, the City of Regina invested
arecord $18.1 million to renew and
maintain our major roadways, streets and
bridges. Last year we produced 85,000
tonnes of asphalt and used 4,200 cubic
metres of concrete to repair or replace
sidewalks, curbs and gutters. In addition
to the roadwork projects, the City fixes
approximately one million potholes every
year.

Regional Planning Summit

The City held a Regional Planning
Summit to strengthen the commitment
of communities to work together
through a shared understanding of

the need and importance of regional
planning. Stakeholders engaged in
productive discussions based on best
practices, innovation, information
sharing and interaction for the purpose
of contributing to economic growth and
development in southern Saskatchewan.

Managing Growth

The City and RM of Sherwood signed

a Memorandum of Understanding

and established three committees

to collaborate managing growth in

the region: Governance Committee,
Administrative and Technical Committee,
and Regional Development Committee.
The RM and the City have a shared
interest in working cooperatively for the
benefit of both municipalities, the region
and the province. Other regional work
included joint resolutions of the City and
RM Councils to alter the City boundary,
hosting a Regional Planning Summit,
and participation on committees with
regional partners.

Housing Summit

The successful two-day housing
summit, held in May of 2013, resulted

in the creation of the Mayor’s Housing
Commission. The Mayor’s Housing
Commission is a permanent committee
that guides the City’s affordable housing
initiatives and implementation of the
Comprehensive Housing Strategy.

A Comprehensive Housing Strategy was
completed in 2013 with implementation
continuing into 2014. The Strategy
includes a complete revision of housing
incentives to better aim City resources at
housing needs

Waste Plan Regina,
Blue Cart Recycling

Residential recycling was rolled out on
July 1, 2013 and provides collection to
61,400 single-family homes on a bi-
weekly basis by individual roll out carts.
By December 31,2013, the Blue Cart
Recycling program achieved a set out
rate of 75 per cent, and 6,000 tonnes of
recyclable material was collected.

Blue Cart Recycling is a symbol of our
commitment to building a cleaner,
greener and more sustainable city. By
working together, our community can
recycle over 40 per cent of our household
waste and divert 28,000 tonnes from our
landfill each year.

Sewage Treatment Plant

The City is making a significant
investment in the sewage treatment
plant to meet new regulatory
requirements, protect public health and
our environment, address concerns of
downstream residents and businesses,
and meet the needs of our growing
population now and for the future.

Construction will occur between 2014
and spring 2017, with a bulk of the work
being done in 2015 and 2016.

Transit

Regina Transit implemented a new
routing system in 2013 which introduced
transit service to newer areas, and two
new express routes to help residents
travel across the city quickly. These new
services were completed without an
increase to the budget, and resulted in an
increase of Transit’s ridership by five per
cent by year end.

During the launch of the new routes in
September, Transit ran a promotion called
“Free Transit Fridays” which saw an average
increase of 42 per cent. This promotion
introduced customers to the new routes
and offered an opportunity for customers
to try the routes risk free by not having to
pay. The ridership increase carried over

to Octoberwith a 12 per cent increase in
ridership.
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2013 Annual Report and
Financial Statements
May 6, 2014
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Highlights

» City of Regina Annual Report & Financial
Statements

» Your Financial staff has provided 21
consecutive “Awards of Financial Statement
Excellence” as recognized by the
international GFOA

~
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2013 Financial Statements -
Overview

» Overall increase in net financial assets of $35.4
million

» An operating surplus of $153.1 million that is closed
to an accumulated surplus of $1.45 billion

» Tangible capital assets of $1.324 billion

» Total reserves of $203.8 million

» Revenue increases of $58.0 million in 2013

» Expense increases of $11.9 million in 2013

~
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Financial Assets & Liabilities

> 2013 net financial assets increased $35.4 million
from 2012 to $115.8 million

Change in Assets:
— Accounts/Taxes Receivable increased $11.0 million
— Long term investments increased $24.9 million
Change in Liabilities:
— Deferred revenue has increased $6.5 million.
— The landfill liability increased $3.2 million.
— Accounts/taxes payable decreased by $5.5 million
— Long term debt decreased by $4.3 million

~
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Operations

» The City and related entities generated a $153.1 million
increase in accumulated surplus in 2013

> $117.7 million of this increase is related to non-financial
assets, such as tangible capital assets, with a $35.4 million
increase in Net Financial Assets

» The difference between the $2.4 million General Operating
Surplus and the $153.1 million increase in accumulated

surplus is a result of:

— Consolidation of other entities, such as the City Utility and the Public Library
— Transfers to Reserves

— Repayment of Debt

— PSAB requirements (accruals)

vestment in capital & amortization against capital

~
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Reconciliation of Surplus

2013 General Operating Surplus
Operating results of other Organizations
Debt repaid

Net increase in Tangible Capital Assets
Net decrease in Capital Carry-forward
Change in appropriated SA Fees
Decrease in future obligations

Increase in Reserves

Amt Incl. in Operating Results Transferred to a
Reserve

2013 Consolidated Surplus

(millions $)

2.4
(0.5)
4.3
116.5
(8.2)
4.2
(3.8)
40.6

(2.4)

153.1

~
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Revenues

> Revenue of $586.6 million in 2013 is a $58.0
million increase (11%) from 2012

— Fees and charges revenue increased $31.3 million

— City Municipal taxes/grants in lieu/others increased $13.2
million
— Electrical/gas distribution revenues are up $3.9 million

— Government operating/capital transfers are up $1.9 million
— Land sales are up $15.5 million

— Contribution to Tangible Capital Assets are down $4.8 million
— No gains on portfolio investments were realized which is a $3.0
million reduction from 2012

~
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Expenditures

» Expenses of $433.5 million in 2013 are a $11.9
(2.8%) million increase from 2012

— Wages and benefits have increased $8.5 million an increase
of 3.9%

— Amortization expense has increased $3.5 million
— Cost of utilities have increased $3.5 million

— Materials, Supplies and Contracted services have decreased
$3.2 million, a decrease of 2.6%

~
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Reserves

» Total consolidated reserves are $203.8 million, an
increase of $40.6 million

» City of Regina Reserves are $185.2 million, a $38.8
million increase from 2012 reserves

e The General Fund Reserve increased $0.5 million to $27.5
million

» The General Utility Reserve increased $22.2 million to $85.1
million

« Land Development Reserve increased $11.2million to $17.7
million

e The Landfill Reserve increased $3.1 million to $21.4 million

 All other City of Regina Reserves increased a total of $1.9
million in 2013

~
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Sustainability

Financial Assets to Liabilities Ratio

This indicator reports the ratio of a government’s financial assets
to 1ts liabilities.

Sustainability 1s the degree to which a government can maintain
its existing financial obligations without increasing its debt or tax
burden.

A result lower than one indicates liabilities exceed financial
assets and future revenues will be required to pay for past
transactions and events.

A result higher than one indicates financial assets exceed
liabilities and financial resources are on hand that can finance
future operations.

~
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Sustainability

Financial Assets to Liabilities Ratio

1.6
1.4+
1.2

0.8
0.6
0.4
0.2

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

The City's financial assets to liabilities ratio has increased from 1.07
to 1.44 from 2009 to 2013 showing improved sustainability.

~
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Flexibility
Interest to Total Revenue Ratio

Flexibility 1s the degree to which a government can change its
debt or tax burden and still meet its existing financial
obligations.

This ratio indicates the proportion of total revenue that 1s
required to pay interest charges on debt and therefore, 1s not
available to pay for program costs.

The more a government uses revenues to meet the interest
costs on past borrowing, the less will be available for program
spending.

~
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Flexibility

Interest to Total Revenue Ratio

1.00% 1

0.75% -

0.50% -

0.25% -

0.00% -
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

The City’s ratio decreased from about .9% to .61% from 2010 to
2013. The City’s flexibility has increased since 2010.

~
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Vulnerability

Government Transfers to Total Revenue Ratio

 This indicator reports the ratio of Federal and Provincial
government transfers to total revenues.

* Vulnerability 1s the degree to which a government is dependent
on sources of funding outside of its control or 1s exposed to
risks that could impair its ability to meet its existing financial
obligations.

* An increasing dependence on other levels of government for
revenues means that the City 1s increasingly vulnerable to the
fiscal decisions of another.

~
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Vulnerability

Government Transfers to Total Revenue Ratio

25%0

20%

15% 1

10% 1

5%

0% -
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

The City has reduced its reliance on government transfers from 25%
of total revenues in 2009 to 12.7% in 2013 which indicates decreasing
vulnerability.
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CR14-62
May 26, 2014

To:  His Worship the Mayor
and Members of City Council

Re:  Emergency Flood Damage Reduction Funding Agreement

RECOMMENDATION OF THE PUBLIC WORKS AND INFRASTRUCTURE
COMMITTEE
- MAY 8, 2014

1. City Council authorize the Acting Executive Director of City Operations or his or her
designate to negotiate and approve the Emergency Flood Damage Reduction Funding
Program Agreement (the “EFDRP Agreement’) between the City of Regina and the
Government of Saskatchewan as represented by the Saskatchewan Watershed Authority;
and

2. The City Clerk be authorized to execute the EFDRP Agreement on behalf of the City.

PUBLIC WORKS AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE — MAY 8, 2014

The Committee adopted a resolution to concur in the recommendations contained in the report.
Councillors: Sharron Bryce, Bob Hawkins, and Barbara Young were present during
consideration of this report by the Public Works and Infrastructure Committee.

The Public Works and Infrastructure Committee, at its meeting held on May 8, 2014, considered

the following report from the Administration:

RECOMMENDATION

1. City Council authorize the Acting Executive Director of City Operations or his or her
designate to negotiate and approve the Emergency Flood Damage Reduction Funding
Program Agreement (the “EFDRP Agreement’) between the City of Regina and the
Government of Saskatchewan as represented by the Saskatchewan Watershed Authority;
and

2. The City Clerk be authorized to execute the EFDRP Agreement on behalf of the City.

CONCLUSION

A $368,500 funding grant from the Government of Saskatchewan is available to the City of
Regina to assist with the management of expenses that were incurred to mitigate flooding risks
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from Wascana Creek in the spring of 2013. There are no conditional requirements of the grant
that would inhibit approval and in order to receive funding the City must enter into the EFDRP
Agreement.

City Council approval is required to enter into the EFDRP Agreement in accordance with 7The
Regina Administration Bylaw as the EFDRP Agreement is a “Revenue Agreement” in an amount
over $100,000.00.

BACKGROUND

In response to the high risk for flooding in spring 2013, the provincial government is providing
available funding dollars through the Emergency Flood Damage Reduction Program (the
“EFDRP”). The EFDRP is available to communities, businesses and individuals throughout
Saskatchewan.

DISCUSSION

The City of Regina has a Wascana Creek Flood Response Plan which is implemented every
spring to appropriately respond to Wascana Creek flow and level forecasts. As a result of
extreme snow fall accumulations during the 2012/2013 winter, the City of Regina’s response to
meet spring melt and Wascana Creek flood conditions resulted in significant unbudgeted
expenditures. The incremental cost to the City for 2013 flood prevention preparation work was in

the order of $1,500,000.

In relation to the incurred 2013 expenses, the City has gone through the process under EFDRP to
determine the City of Regina’s grant eligibility. The outcome of the EFDRP process is that 50%
of certain labour and materials expenditures which were incurred to prevent flooding damages
from elevated Wascana Creek flows and levels are grant eligible. In addition, 100% of
engineering consulting services are eligible for reimbursement. The total amount that the City is
eligible to receive under the EFDRP is $368,500.00.

All amounts payable under the EFDRP are to be paid to the City upon the City and the
Government of Saskatchewan entering into the EFDRP Agreement.

City Council approval is required to enter into the EFDRP Agreement in accordance with 7The
Regina Administration Bylaw as the EFDRP Agreement is a “Revenue Agreement” in an amount
over $100,000.00

RECOMMENDATION IMPLICATIONS

Financial Implications

As all expenditures have already been made by the City in relation to 2013 spring flood
reduction activities, all amounts payable under the EFDRP are to be paid to the City upon the
City and Government of Saskatchewan entering into the EFDRP Agreement.

Upon receipt, the $368,500.00 in EFDRP funding will significantly offset unbudgeted
expenditures.



Environmental Implications

None related to this report.

Strategic Implications

EFDRP funding supports the sustainability of the Wascana Creek Flood Response program.

Other Implications

None related to this report.

Accessibility Implications

None related to this report.

COMMUNICATIONS

The EFDRP is available to communities, resort villages and rural municipalities and provides
financial assistance for the protection of homes and businesses against flood damage. Upon
entering into the agreement, the Saskatchewan Watershed Authority will make information
regarding the grant to the City of Regina publicly available.

DELEGATED AUTHORITY

The disposition of this report requires City Council approval.

Respectfully submitted,

PUBLIC WORKS AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE

Linda Leeks, Secretary



Schedule C

Final Report — Request for Final Payment

Flood Damage Reduction Program

Funding agreement dated 4 December 2013 between then City of Regina and Water Security

Agency.

Project Update:

Work - Description

Actual and Final

Interim Grant Portion
Received (if any from

Cost of Work Schedule B)
Stantec $13,500
Sandbagging, snow removal | $710,000
TOTAL $ AMOUNT $ 723,500

1. Submit all original paid receipts for the final payment unless previous arrangements are
made in writing with the Water Security Agency to submit unpaid invoices.

2. For all work done using internal resources submit a bill indicating the hourly charge out
rate and the hours of equipment operation.

Gordon Will, P. Eng gord.will@wsask.ca Phone: (306) 787-6137
Water Security Agency Fax: (306) 787-0780
2365 Albert St. — Suite 420

Regina SK S4P 4K1

I/We certity that the costs included in this claim are true and accurate to the best of my/our
knowledge this day of , 2013.

Signature Witness

Name
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())) Water Security
QEHCQ )

" December 4, 2013

City of Regina

Sterling Hall File No: 40067
2425 4" Avenue P.O Box 1790

REGINA SK S4P 3C8

Re: 2013 Emergency Flood Damage Reduction Funding Agreement

Thank you for your participation in the Saskatchewan 2013 Emergency Flood Damage Reduction
Program (the Program). We are in receipt of your request for assistance detailing flood protection
measures intended to assist in minimizing flood damage in 2013. (the Project).

The Program is intended to provide both temporary and permanent solutions to minimize damage
due to flooding by constructing flood protection works to address imminent flooding in 2013. To be
eligible for funding the Project must fall within Program parameters and be complete prior to
December 31, 2013. (See Schedule E — Program Profile - for more detail)

Based on the information submitted by your engineer, the Water Security Agency agrees to fund the
following parts of the Project and will provide a grant (based on 75% government paid permanent
works and 50% government paid temporary measures) totalling $368,500.00.00 as described below:

Engineering (100%) Total Cost of Work Grant Portion
Stantec $13,500.00 $13,500.00
Temporﬁry Work - Description Total Cost of Work Grant Portion
Sandbagging; snow removal $710,000.00 $355.000.00
TOTAL AMOUNT $723,500.00 $368,500.00

We appreciate that the Grant is based on the engineer’s cost estimate and may need to be adjusted
(up to a maximum of 20%) once the final costs for each of the flood protection works are known.
Adjustment in excess of 20% requires prior written approval of the Water Security Agency.

The engineering recommendations and estimates may be developed using limited data and analyses
not typical of normal assessments depending on the circumstances. However, as this Program is
intended to address imminent flooding, it is considered important to act in the most expeditious
manner possible to address an emergency situation. Therefore, the professional advice being
provided may have limitations and in some cases the recommended works may not be adequate to
protect from all possible situations that may result from flooding.

Park Plaza 420 - 2365 Albert Street Regina SK S4P 4K1 Canada ph: 306.787.0726 fax: 306.787.0780
wsask.ca



By entering into this agreement and accepting the Grant under the Program you acknowledge
that there may be limitations to the Project and agree to accept the risk that the design may be
inadequate to provide the optimal level of flood protection.

For some or all of the work, in particular works intended to provide flood protection in the longer
term, the Water Security Agency may recommend that you, as the proponent, retain the services
of a consulting engineer for such actions as Project design, Project management and site
supervision. In that event the Proponent will enter into a direct contract with the consulting
engineer. The Program will cover these costs to the same level as for the works themselves (75%
or 50%). The government is only paying 100% of the initial engineering investigation costs.

Construction can be undertaken through a contractor or by using community owned equipment.
If municipal equipment is employed, the cost share will be based on actuwal hours of use
multiplied by the industry standard charge out rate for the specific piece of equipment. This total
amount will then be cost shared either at 75% or 50%. The purchase of capital equipment is
notpermitted under the program, however, the rental rate can be applied back to the capital
purchase.

The Water Security Agency must be promptly notified of any portion of the Project described
above that you determine will not be constructed or undertaken as part of the Project and the
Grant estimate will be revised accordingly. You must discuss this decision with your engineer
because elimination of one part of the Project may impact the effectiveness of the others. Any
changes must be initialled by the Proponent and the Water Security Agency.

As the Project will be constructed, owned and operated by you, the Proponent, land control
requirements and any regulatory requirements are the responsibility of the Proponent. The cost
of obtaining temporary or permanent land control that may be necessary is not funded by the
Program. Where approvals are known to be necessary, Water Security Agency Regional staff
will endeavour to assist you in obtaining regulatory approvals.

The Water Security Agency will be publically announcing ali Grants provided. By accepting
this Grant you agree to being included in such an announcement.

Additional Terms and Conditions relating to the payment of the Grant and accounting and
reporting requirements are set out in detail in Schedules A, B, C and D which, along with
Schedule E, form part of this agreement.

In the event that the Grant is in excess of $100,000, this agreement is subject to the prior
approval of the Lieutenant Governor in Council,




This agreement (including the Schedules) may be returned by facsimile or scanned and emailed
to:

Gordon Will, P. Eng gord.will@wsask.ca Phone: 306-787-6137
2365 Albert St. — Suite 420 Fax: 306-787-0780
Regina SK S4P 4Kl

This agreement, executed on behalf of the Water Security Agency of Saskatchewan by its proper
signing officers in that regard this ¢ day of L /@< 2013,

e
Y/

This agreement, executed on behalf of the City of Regina by its proper signing officers in that
regard this day of , 2013.




CR14-63
May 26, 2014

To:  His Worship the Mayor
and Members of City Council

Re:  Application for Discretionary Use (14-DU-04) Proposed House-Form Commercial Office,
2113 Smith Street

RECOMMENDATION OF THE REGINA PLANNING COMMISSION - MAY 14, 2014
That the discretionary use application for a proposed House-Form Commercial Office located at
2113 Smith Street, being Lot 22, Block 406, Plan No. 98RA28309, Centre Square
neighbourhood be APPROVED, and that a Development Permit be issued subject to the
following conditions:

a) The development shall be consistent with the plans attached to this report as Appendix A-
3.1 to A-3.5 inclusive, prepared by KRN Design Ltd. and dated February 11, 2014; and

b) The development shall comply with all applicable standards and regulations in Regina
Zoning Bylaw No. 9250
REGINA PLANNING COMMISSION — MAY 14, 2014
Kelly Nadler, KRN Design representing Frank Garrett, addressed the Commission.
The Commission adopted a resolution to concur in the recommendation contained in the report.

Recommendation #2 does not require City Council approval.

Councillors: Jerry Flegel and Mike O’Donnell; Commissioners: David Edwards, Phil Evans,
Ron Okumura, Daryl Posehn and Phil Selenski were present during consideration of this report
by the Regina Planning Commission.

The Regina Planning Commission, at its meeting held on May 14, 2014, considered the
following report from the Administration:

RECOMMENDATION

1. That the discretionary use application for a proposed House-Form Commercial Office
located at 2113 Smith Street, being Lot 22, Block 406, Plan No. 98RA28309, Centre Square
neighbourhood be APPROVED, and that a Development Permit be issued subject to the
following conditions:

a) The development shall be consistent with the plans attached to this report as Appendix A-
3.1 to A-3.5 inclusive, prepared by KRN Design Ltd. and dated February 11, 2014; and
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b) The development shall comply with all applicable standards and regulations in Regina
Zoning Bylaw No. 9250

2. That this report be forwarded to the May 26, 2014 meeting of City Council.

CONCLUSION

The applicant proposes to develop an Office space in an existing two-storey House-Form
building in the Centre Square neighbourhood.

This proposal is compliant with definition of House-Form Commercial/Residential Building and
is supported by policies in the Transitional Area Neighbourhood Plan to retain existing house-
form buildings in the area.

No concerns were identified in the circulation process.

The proposal complies with the development standards and regulations contained in Regina
Zoning Bylaw No. 9250 and with the policies contained in Design Regina: Official Community
Plan Bylaw.

BACKGROUND

This application is being considered pursuant to Regina Zoning Bylaw No. 9250, Design Regina:
Official Community Plan Bylaw, and The Planning and Development Act, 2007.

Pursuant to subsection 56(3) of the Act, Council may establish conditions for discretionary uses
based on the nature of the proposal (e.g. site, size, shape and arrangement of buildings) and

aspects of site design (e.g. landscaping, site access, parking and loading), but not including the
colour, texture or type of materials and architectural details.

DISCUSSION

The land use and zoning details of this proposal are summarized in the following table:

Land Use Details Existing Proposed
Zoning TAR TAR
Land Use Detached dwelling House-Form Commercial (Office)
Number of Dwelling Units 1 0
Building Area 158 m’ 158 m’
Zoning Analysis Required Proposed
Numl?er of Parking Stalls 1 stall 4 stalls
Required
Minimum Lot Area (m°) 250 m” 387 m’
Minimum Lot Frontage (m) 7.5m 10.16 m
Maximum Building Height (m) I15m 5.6 m
Maximum Floor Area Ratio 75 579
Maximum Coverage (%) 50% 37%
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The proposed development is consistent with the purpose and intent of the Transitional Area
Residential zone. This zone recognizes the predominately residential character of the
neighbourhood, but does allow some commercial redevelopment at City Council’s discretion in
an existing detached dwelling that existed in the neighbourhood prior to March 21, 1984. This
residence was constructed in 1901. The existing porch on the front of the house will be replaced.
No other changes to the exterior are proposed. The existing landscaping will be retained.

The surrounding land uses are commercial office buildings to the north in the MX — Mixed
Residential Business and D — Downtown zoning districts, an apartment building to the south, a
parking lot to the west and a mix of residential and house-form commercial uses to the east in the
TAR - Transitional Area Residential zone.

RECOMMENDATION IMPLICATIONS

Financial Implications

The subject area currently receives a full range of municipal services including water, sewer and
storm drainage. The applicant will be responsible for the cost of any additional or changes to
existing infrastructure that may be required to directly or indirectly support the development, in
accordance with City standards and applicable legal requirements.

Environmental Implications

None with respect to this report.

Policy/Strategic Implications

The proposal is consistent with the policies contained within Design Regina: Official
Community Plan Bylaw. Policy 7.16 which reads, “7.16 Encourage local commercial within
residential areas.”

Repurposing existing residential buildings, while keeping their existing form, will ensure the
buildings are maintained and continue to contribute to the streetscape, reducing the risk of
demolition.

The proposal is also consistent with the policies contained in Part F (Transitional Area
Development Plan), of the Official Community Plan with respect to commercial land use in the
Transitional Area Residential Zone, specifically within house-form buildings, is provided for in
order to encourage to maintenance, renovation and restoration of these house-form buildings.

Commercial land uses should be accommodated in building forms and locations which are
compatible with the residential land use and character of the area.

Other Implications

None with respect to this report.



Accessibility Implications

The provincial Uniform Buildings and Accessibility Standards Act exempts buildings less than
600 sq.m. in area from compliance.

COMMUNICATIONS
Public notification signage posted on: February 26, 2014
Letter sent to immediate property owners March 5, 2014
Number of Public Comments Sheets Received 1 in support

A more detailed accounting of the respondents’ concerns with the Administration’s response to
them is provided in Appendix B.

The application was circulated to the Centre Square Community Association. A response was
not received and in follow up the Administration attempted to contact the Association for
comment prior to the deadline for submission of this report, however comments were not
received.

DELEGATED AUTHORITY

City Council’s approval is required, pursuant to Part V of The Planning and Development Act,
2007.

Respectfully submitted,

REGINA PLANNING COMMISSION

Cloime  Detillee

Elaine Gohlke, Secretary
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Appendix B

Public Consultation Summary

Response Number of | Issues Identified
Responses

Completely
0

opposed

Accept if many

features were 0

different

Accept if one or

two features were 0

different

1 support this . .
1 No concerns were identified.

proposal
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May 26, 2014

To:  His Worship the Mayor
and Members of City Council

Re: Regina Revitalization Stadium Project — Award of Request for Proposals #2076

RECOMMENDATION

That this report be received and filed.

CONCLUSION

The Administration has completed the procurement for Request for Proposals 2076 Design-
Build-Finance Regina Revitalization Initiative Stadium Project (the “Project”). On May 7, 2014,
the City of Regina (the “City”) entered into a design-build-finance agreement (the “Project
Agreement”) with PCL Regina Stadium 2014 Ltd. (“PCL”) for the Stadium Project.

PCL and the City agreed to design requirements (i.e. project specific output specifications), a
schedule and a set price which are stipulated in the Project Agreement. The Project Agreement
outlines these commitments and binds both parties to a commercial transaction that will result in
PCL designing, building and financing the stadium during construction. The Project Agreement
includes provisions for significant penalties if the stadium does not meet the design
requirements, is delivered late or over budget.

The design requirements in the Project Agreement are consistent with the concept design that
was approved by City Council on January 28, 2013 (CR 13-5) and are within the $278 million
budget set out by Council for the Stadium Project. The facility has a planned substantial
completion date of August 31, 2016, which ensures it will be complete for the start of the 2017
CFL season.

The design requirements achieve the general community benefits and meet the program needs of
the Saskatchewan Roughrider Football Club and Evraz Place. The design requirements were
developed through a collaborative process with external consultants, staff from the stadium
funding partners, as well as staff from Evraz Place. Several local stakeholders and regulatory
bodies were involved in the process at the appropriate times and various supporting studies
informed the process.

BACKGROUND

The Regina Revitalization Initiative was formally initiated by City Council on May 30, 2011. A
process was initiated to define a vision and a shared understanding of the outcomes of the
project, which would see residential, commercial and retail development in the heart of city
including a facility to replace Mosaic Stadium. Based on the need to establish a clear future
direction for the project City Council approved a Vision and Guiding Principles on August 22,
2011.

On June 17, 2011, a formal business unit was created within the City Manager’s Office. Internal
staff has been seconded to support the Regina Revitalization Initiative and an internal Steering
Committee was created to guide the various project elements.
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The Stadium Project is the first landmark project for the Regina Revitalization Initiative. It is the
catalyst for revitalizing the centre of our city by converting industrial and underused lands into a
vibrant and energetic residential, commercial and retail development. Since its inception in the
spring of 2012, several elements of the Stadium Project have been before City Council to provide
information and receive approvals. A summary of the Council reports to date is as follows:

1y

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

8)

9)

July 23,2012 — CR 12-102 — City Council provided the Administration with the direction to
develop definitive funding agreements with the Province of Saskatchewan (the “Province”)
and the Saskatchewan Roughrider Football Club Inc. (“SRFC”), based upon the
memorandum of understanding provided;

September 17, 2012 — CR 12-134 — City Council authorized the Deputy City Manager &
CFO to proceed with a design-build-finance procurement approach for the Project, consisting
of a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) and RFP process;

January 28, 2013 — CR 13-5 — City Council approved the concept design presented and
authorized the administration to proceed with the procurement phase of the Project;

January 28, 2013 — CR 13-6 — City Council approved the funding model for the Project,
including the related borrowing amounts and other funding sources, and authorized the
Deputy City Manager & CFO to negotiate and approve the funding agreements, with the
Province and the SRFC and the leasing arrangements with the SRFC;

January 28, 2013 — CR 13-8 — City Council directed the Administration to issue a RFQ for
the Project, and delegated authority to the Deputy City Manager & CFO to award an
opportunity to three successful proponents, identified by the RFQ process to participate in the
RFP process for the Project;

July 8, 2013 — CR 13-96 — City Council directed the Administration to issue the RFP for the
Project, and delegated authority to the Deputy City Manager & CFO to award a contract to
the successful proponent identified by the RFP process;

July 8, 2013 — CR 13-97 — City Council approved an offer to lease with SaskSport and
authorized the City Solicitor and Deputy City Manager & CFO to approve the final form
lease agreement with SaskSport;

January 27, 2014 — CM 14-1 — City Council passed The Regina Revitalization Initiative
Debenture Bylaw, 2014, which completed the borrowing of $100.0 million from the
Municipal Financing Corporation of Saskatchewan; and

March 24, 2014 — IR 14-5 — City Council received notification from the Administration of
the Preferred Proponent that was identified by the RFP stage of the Project.

10) April 14, 2014 — CR 14-45 — City Council reassigned delegated authority to the Deputy City

Manager & COO and authorized the position or his or her delegate to award the contract to
the successful proponent identified by the RFP process. City Council also received
information updating the financial model estimates and authorized the Deputy City Manager
& COO to negotiate the borrowing of $100.4 million to address the City’s loan requirements
for the Stadium Project.



DISCUSSION

The purpose of this report is to inform City Council that a fixed price contract for the design-
build-finance of the Stadium Project was entered into with PCL. on May 7, 2014 that includes
project specific output specifications, a schedule and a fixed price. The contract value is within
the $278 million budget set out by Council for the Stadium Project; and, the facility has a
planned substantial completion date of August 31, 2016, which ensures it will be complete for
the start of the 2017 CFL season. An overview of the key elements in the Project Agreement is
provided below.

Stadium Design

The stadium design is expected to continue to be refined over the next 12 to 18 months, as the
design details are finalized through the design development process. Design development is
planned to occur concurrently with construction and is staged to support the on time, on budget
delivery of the stadium. Design elements that impact the building gridlines and structure
including the orientation of the stadium on the site, building footprint, roof, bowl configuration
and capacity are not expected to change. Design details such as location of interior walls,
finishes and product specifications are anticipated to be finalized as design transitions to 100%
construction drawings.

The Design Statement prepared by HKS| sports & entertainment and B+H is included in
Appendix A. The Design Statement provides visual images of the stadium and is accompanied
by written descriptions of the features. Additional detail about the design is provided below:

1. Modern and innovative design: The stadium design is iconic, flexible and scaleable which
enables it to meet both current and future needs of our community. It is designed to be
sustainable and to meet the programming needs of the community, Evraz Place and the
Saskatchewan Roughrider Football Club. Once built, it is expected to be one of the most
recognizable buildings in Regina, the province of Saskatchewan, and the Canadian Football
League. The design reinforces Regina’s infinite horizons today, tomorrow and well into the
future. Key features include:

a. Flexible allowing for multi-use: The stadium is designed to have built in flexibility to
host many events at different scales and capacities throughout the year. For example,
multiple concert configurations are factored into the design as well as features that
address the needs of various amateur sport users. In addition, the field of play is designed
to address FIFA soccer requirements, as a popular and growing sport within the
community.

b. Four season use and connections to Evraz Place operations: The venue’s amenities like
lounges and concourses are designed to be used on non-game days, adding to the
inventory of space available to Evraz Place for tradeshows, conventions and event
hosting. They are located in the facility to create a natural connection and provide for
dual-use for events throughout the year at Evraz Place.

2. A central location close to downtown and within the Evraz Place sports and entertainment
complex: The stadium is a catalyst for urban renewal in Regina. The stadium design and
positioning on the site is responsive to the broader RRI vision — it leverages our community
assets at Evraz Place and allows for future development and growth in the surrounding
Taylor Field Neighbourhood.
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a. Site design: The venue is designed to have a convenient flow of spectators along its
perimeter with a strong connection to its neighbours, the street and Confederation Park
for a variety of pre and post event celebrations. On the west side, the stadium interfaces
with Confederation Park. The connection of the stadium to this outdoor space is very
strong. The park will support major events and game day crowds in the stadium with pre
and post game activity. In addition, with direct access to stadiums amenities (i.e.
washrooms, concessions, lounges) Evraz Place can significantly improve the level of
service available to existing programming in the park, and look to add future
programming in the renovated park space. Along the east side of the site, the stadium
accommodates public access, enhances the public realm of Elphinstone Street and
enables the community to gather on event days.

b. Community connection: The horseshoe form of the bowl and open south end zone
fosters a connection between the community and events in the stadium. Is also creates
an opportunity for the stadium to act as a destination along a future linear urban green
way that connects Evraz Place to surrounding neighbourhoods and downtown.

c. Evraz Place Connection: The position of the stadium on the site maximizes year round
public access to the west and north of the stadium, as well as minimizes the impact on
Evraz Place daily operations and major events such as Farm Progress Show, Queen City
EX and Agribition.

d. Site access: The stadium welcomes spectators from all sides and allows for convenient
access/egress, and circulation within the building. Evraz Place’s central location is close
to downtown, easily accessible from all areas of the city and the region. There are
opportunities for excellent public transport connections, as well as access to the City’s
road network which provides great out of town access. Motorists will have easy access
from Lewvan Drive, Dewdney Avenue and Elphinstone Street. For pedestrians, it is a
15 minute walk from Victoria Park to Evraz Place and the new stadium. In addition,
parking for cyclists will be incorporated into the urban design.

e. Fit within the neighbourhood: The stadium features a sunken bowl, which also reduces
the scale and impact of this new building and respects existing neighbourhoods and
buildings.

New plaza and outdoor spaces for events: The site design fosters and expands on existing
community spirit and builds strong connections to Evraz Place, Confederation Park, as well
as future Taylor Field Neighbourhood and creates the opportunity for the future development
of a linear urban green way to downtown. The stadium has been designed to optimize
outdoor spaces for use during major events and on non-event days. Attention has focused on
creating gathering spaces that enhance community pride, while complimenting circulation
and emergency vehicle access requirements.

The City will take the urban design to next level by working with stakeholders and PCL to
ensure the public realm spaces (i.e. plaza, Confederation Park, Elphinstone Street, green
ways, etc.) are designed and built to fully integrate with the stadium, Evraz Place and the
broader RRI vision.
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Bowl design to accommodate 33,000 fans with the ability to expand for big events: The
stadium is designed for a capacity of 33,000 fans. A regular capacity of 33,000 was
determined to be the optimal size, based on the needs of the football club, a comparison with
other CFL venues, and the related capital costs of the facility.

The bowl configuration is sunken into the ground to allow for better accessibility.
Approximately 68 percent of patrons attending events will enter the building at grade
(ground level) and walk down to their seats in the lower bowl. The design is also capable of
handling temporary seats to increase the capacity to about 40,000 for large events, like the
Grey Cup, without drastically changing the look and feel of an integrated facility. The
stadium is designed so that over time permanent seating can be added, as required and as the
market grows.

Bowl environment and spectator roof designed to ensure a comfortable fan experience: The
design of the seating bowl environment centres around a unified and connected approach, but
is highlighted with distinct “spectator neighbourhoods” and amenities. The facade and the
roof design direct the prevailing fall north west winds over the stadium, while allowing
summer winds to flow through the stadium providing spectators with an improved level of
comfort.

The ability to be “roof ready”, by adding a retractable roof system in the future: During the
procurement process the City requested that proponents incorporate plans for roof ready into
their design submissions. The order of magnitude estimates provided to the City during the
procurement process were consistent with estimates provided in feasibility studies completed
by the Province and consolidated in Saskatchewan Multi-Purpose Entertainment Facility
2010 Feasibility Report, March 1, 2010. To pursue this option, the approved Project budget
would require an increase in the range of $200 million (order of magnitude costing). The
stadium design selected incorporates the ability to add a fully enclosed roof. The City is
proceeding with the spectator roof as designed. The cost to construct and maintain the
spectator roof is within the approved Project budget. Together, with the fagade and bowl
environment, the spectator roof allows the facility to operate at full capacity during three
seasons and creates a new level of fan comfort.

A variety of lounges and suites that can be used year-round: Through a commissioned report
the Saskatchewan Roughrider Football Club determined the need for a variety of premium
seating options and lounge spaces; and, determined a target capacity for each premium
product. Evraz Place personnel participated in the process to ensure the lounge spaces could
be used on a year round basis, as well as support current and future events and activities.

Two main lounge spaces have been included: one to serve general admission; and, the second
to serve the premium seating areas.

A variety of modern fan amenities including individual seats with better views: A primary
feature of the design is the “at grade” main concourse level. The majority of this concourse
provides unobstructed and panoramic views into the seating bowl, as well as 360 degree
circulation to allow fans to connect and socialize. Concourse widths are generous to provide
ease of access throughout the venue and good proximity to amenities (i.e. washrooms and
concessions). Accessible seating will be available in all areas of the seating bowl. Access to
the upper levels will be accommodated through two sets of ramps, four stair systems and
elevators. All seats in the stadium will be individual units, with arm rests and cupholders,
with improved leg room and fewer seats per row. Washrooms and concession areas have
been designed to provide an enhanced experience over the current stadium.




Stadium Build

Stadium construction is scheduled to begin immediately and to be substantially complete by
August 31, 2016. This date assumes that no changes to the design of the facility are made that
affect schedule. The substantial completion date of August 31, 2016 ensures that the stadium is
fully operational for the start of the 2017 CFL season. Between September 1, 2016 and the start
of the 2017 CFL season, two “ramp-up” or “test events” (the first at 50% capacity, and the
second at 75% capacity) are to be hosted at the facility. These events are to be used to test the
facility and identify any building or operational defects so they can be addressed prior the start of
the 2017 CFL season.

PCL construction milestones include:

Excavation starts June 2014
Piling July 2014
Crane erection August 2014
Structural steel placing — major roof trusses July 2015
Structure complete January 2016
Substantial completion August 2016

Stadium Finance

PCL is financing the construction of the Stadium Project until milestones in the Project are
achieved and certified by a third party, independent certifier. The financing arrangements are set
out in the Project Agreement and are in line with well established market standards for P3
construction projects. The direct and indirect performance security measures included within the
Project Agreement include:

1) an initial performance letter of credit that is held by the City as security until construction has
commenced and a certain amount of direct costs have been incurred by PCL;

2) payment to PCL during construction will be made based upon four milestones, plus a
substantial completion payment. The result of this structure is that a certain percentage of the
value of the contract will remain unpaid and at risk to PCL during construction;

3) completion holdbacks will be maintained to ensure PCL completes any deficiency work or
compensates the City to complete the work if PCL does not;

4) holdbacks will be maintained to support the two ramp-up test events that are to be held,
ensuring any deficiencies identified during the testing are rectified;

5) general warranties for construction defects and latent construction defects are in place and
secured by way of a letter of credit in favour of the City; and

6) where PCL has failed to achieve substantial completion by August 31, 2016, liquidated
damages will be assessed on a daily basis.



RECOMMENDATION IMPLICATIONS

Financial Implications

With the execution of the Project Agreement, the City has a final fixed price contract with PCL
Construction Management Inc. for the design-build-finance of the Stadium Project. The contract
is within the budget set out by City Council for the Stadium Project.

The approved capital cost of the stadium is $278.2 million and it is being funding from four main
sources: the Province of Saskatchewan; the City of Regina; the Saskatchewan Roughriders and
the users of the facility. The Province is contributing $80 million, the City of Regina $73
million, the Saskatchewan Roughriders $25 million, and the users of the facility will pay for
$100 million Provincial Loan. The Provincial Loan will be primarily repaid through a $12
facility fee on games and major events. This ensures a significant portion of the stadium funding
comes from users of the facility, primarily Rider Nation.

Environmental Implications

Phase 1 environmental assessments and a geotechnical investigation have been completed on the
stadium site at Evraz Place. No significant environmental contamination issues were identified
other than the potential of an oil spill on the southeast corner of Evraz Place. A Phase 2
environmental assessment of the site has been completed and has confirmed there are no
environmental risks on the site.

Policy and/or Strategic Implications

The Stadium Project is the landmark project for the Regina Revitalization Initiative. It is the
catalyst for revitalizing the centre of our city by converting industrial and underused lands into a
vibrant and energetic residential, commercial and retail development. Once the stadium is built,
Taylor Field re-development can begin, creating a complete community. And as the stadium is
being built, Railyard Renewal at the CP rail yard site will start and the area will begin to take
shape as a dynamic bridging district between downtown and Dewdney. This initiative
contributes to achieving the goals identified in the City of Regina’s Official Community Plan —
Design Regina.

The procurement process was implemented as is required by the City’s P3 Policy and The
Regina Administration Bylaw, 2003-69 and has been certified as such by the following external
advisors:

1. P1 Consulting was contracted as the City’s Fairness Advisor to monitor and provide fairness
throughout the RRI Stadium Project procurement process. The Fairness Advisor has
certified that the procurement process was conducted in a fair manner. Refer to Appendix B
for this certification.

2. Deloitte was contracted as the City’s Financial and Business Advisor to establish and
facilitate the evaluation of the submissions to the RFP. Deloitte has certified that the RRI
Stadium Project procurement process was conducted as per the established evaluation
process. Refer to Appendix C for this certification.



Other Implications

None associated with this report.

Accessibility Implications

The final design of the stadium will meet established National Building Code accessibility
standards.

COMMUNICATIONS

A public announcement was held on May 22, 2014 to announce the contract award and reveal
the design of the stadium. The event was hosted by Stadium Project Stakeholders — the City of
Regina, Saskatchewan Roughrider Football Club, the Province of Saskatchewan and Evraz
Place.

As the Stadium Project proceeds, the City will continue to keep the public and other stakeholders
informed of progress, key milestones and decisions related to the Project. A communications
plan is place for the next phase of the Project which extends from construction to stadium
opening at the start of the 2017 CFL season. The communications plan will be implemented in
cooperation with the Stadium Project Stakeholders. A number of tactics will be used including
news releases, webcams, neighbourhood open houses, media tours, virtual videos, online photo
galleries, fan preview/tours and social media.

The RRI website, ReginaRevitalization.ca, was launched on September 19, 2012 to house and
share information relating to the Project. The website is regularly updated and is the best place

to find the most recent news and information on the project.

DELEGATED AUTHORITY

Authority was delegated to the Deputy City Manager & COO to award the contract for the RRI
Stadium Project and to enter into the Project Agreement and all related documentation in Council
Reports CR 12-134, CR 13-5, CR 13-8, CR 13-96 and CR 14-45.

Respectfully submitted, Respectfully submitted,
Y
/»-——”*-3 & .
i 7
(

Brent D. Sjoberg Glen B. Davies,
Deputy City Manager & COO City Manager & Chief Administrative Officer
Report prepared by:

Louise Folk, Manager of Strategy & Operations — Regina Revitalization Initiative
Rod Schmidt, Manager of Stadium Development
Mark Yemen, Legal Counsel
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CONSTRUCTION LEADERS

The PCL family of companies

As a diversified general contractor, PCL celebrates the past
and builds for the future.

Our story starts in 1906 with the construction of our first
known project, a farmhouse in Stoughton, Saskatchewan.
Today, the PCL family of companies is Canada’s largest
contracting organization and the sixth largest in the United
States, with billings of $7.3 billion annually. Our commercial
buildings, civil infrastructure, and heavy industrial projects
dot the North American landscape and extend into Australia.
In fact, at any one time, PCL is involved with nearly 700
projects.

Projects range in value from $20,000 to more than $1 billion,
and include sport and entertainment complexes, retail
outlets, educational and health care facilities, casinos, hotels
and resorts, office towers, bridges, airports, petrochemical/
power/oil and gas plants, and major plant maintenance
shutdowns. We also have the specialized expertise to
undertake the unique and often complex requirements
associated with smaller-scale developments, such as
renovations, alterations, and interior tenant finishes.

To successfully complete this work, it takes the focused
effort of more than 4,400 full-time professional and
administrative salaried staff and more than 10,000 hourly
tradespeople.

While our scope and volume of our work has changed, our
commitment to Saskatchewan has not. Our reputation as
a professional builder is founded on the solid prairie ethics
of excellent workmanship, fair business dealings, and good
value for your dollar. On June 27,1977, the Poole family sold
Poole Construction Limited to PCL Construction Holdings
Ltd., signaling the start of employee ownership - a legacy
which continues today.

Embedded in PCL's culture is a passion and commitment

to building sustainable business relationships. PCL strives
to be solution providers, with a passion for excellence that
we bring to every project. As shareholders, we want to
deliver beyond the expected and provide an outstanding
experience for our clients, trades, subcontractors, suppliers,
employees and communities.

Sharing your Vision. Building Success.

BC Place MTS Centre

BMO Field

Air Canada Centre



HIKS Setainment

The HKS Sports and Entertainment Group is
internationally known and recognized for the
establishment and continued development of the
modern day sports venue into an Entertainment
Destination Project. This innovative approach to design
has broadened the game-day experience for all patrons
and uniquely addresses the specific needs of our clients
and their respective leagues.

HKS’s unique approach to Sports and Entertainment
Architecture places it at the “cutting edge” in terms of
transforming this major sector into a multiple revenue-
generating industry. HKS and their clients are setting new
standards and benchmarks for success in terms of venue
performance.

The HKS Sports and Entertainment design team consists
of a diverse pool of professionals from the Sports,
Entertainment, Hospitality, Environmental Graphics,
Commercial, Urban Design and Master Planning fields.
The project team utilizes the specific project and client
goals and objectives to develop innovative, functional
and operationally-efficient design solutions. Through this
collaborative effort, HKS continues to win international
competitions creating some of today’s most successful
world-class venues and entertainment experiences.

Practice

With the diversity of sporting events comes the challenge
for the architect to accommodate you, our client, and
deliver a facility that provides options and solutions,
fulfills your needs and creates excitement. Our group
understands the business of sports and entertainment.
Our design practice has created award-winning projects
for the NFL with AT&T Stadium, Lucas Qil Stadium and the
Minnesota Multi-Purpose Stadium, as wel<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>